FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

SUGARING NYC

NARTOV VENTURES LLC,

a Florida limited liability company
1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6
West Palm Beach, Florida 33409
Telephone: 805-216-6071
E-mail: info@sugaring.org
www.sugaring.org

As a Sugaring NYC franchisee, you will operate a hair removal company using a proprietary organic
sugaring paste resulting in a less painful, longer lasting hair removal experience, along with lash lifts and
other beauty services. We also offer, if a franchisee chooses, laser hair removal.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Sugaring NYC franchised business ranges from
$198,750 to $301,200. This includes $53,050 to $56,650 which must be paid to the franchisor or affiliate.
The total investment necessary to begin operation of an Area Development Business for 3-5 outlets is
$288,750 to $481,200. This includes $143,050 to $236,650 that must be paid to the franchisor or affiliate.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information
in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must
receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or
make any payment to, franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note,
however, that no government agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient to you. To
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Dmytro Nartov, 1025 North Florida
Mango Road, Bay 6, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409; 805-216-6071; info@sugaring.org

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure document
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this
disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600
Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information.

Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising. There
may be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: March 22, 2024
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try
to obtain this information from others, like current
and former franchisees. You can find their names
and contact information in Item 20 or Exhibits G-1
and G-2.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes
the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit F includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised outlets

Will my business be the only
Sugaring NYC business in my
area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the
franchisor and other franchisees can compete with
you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Sugaring
NYC franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits G-1 and G-2 list current and
former franchisees. You can contact them to ask
about their experiences.

‘What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in
this disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue
to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if
your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to
your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the
Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to
resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in
Florida. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less
favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate
with the franchisor in Florida than in your own state.

2. Unopened Franchisees. The franchisor has signed a significant number of
franchise agreements with franchisees who have not yet opened their outlets. If other
franchisees are experiencing delays in opening their outlets, you also may experience
delays in opening your own outlet.

3. Financial Condition. The franchisor’s financial condition, as reflected in its
financial statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor’s financial ability to
provide services and support to you.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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MICHIGAN ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS
ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which
deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee,
after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except
for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision
of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable
opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the franchisee’s
inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no value to
the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the
conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) The
term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other
agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service
mark, trade name, logo type, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the
expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s
intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to
other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a
renewal provision.

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude
the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location
outside this state.

(g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except
for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to
purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to: (i) The failure of the proposed
transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current reasonable qualifications or standards; (ii) The fact that the
proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor; (iii) The unwillingness of the
proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful obligations; (iv) The failure of the
franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to cure any default in the
franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified
with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first
refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party
willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the
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franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if
the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the
breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer
its obligation to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for
providing the required contractual services.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to Department of the Attorney General’s Office,
Consumer Protection Division, Franchise Section, G. Mennen Williams Building, 525 W. Ottawa Street,
Lansing, Michigan 48913; telephone number (517) 373-7117.

THIS MICHIGAN NOTICE APPLIES ONLY TO FRANCHISEES WHO ARE RESIDENTS OF
MICHIGAN OR LOCATE THEIR FRANCHISES IN MICHIGAN.
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ITEM 1. THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENT, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES
The Franchisor.

The franchisor is Nartov Ventures LLC. For ease of reference in this disclosure document, Nartov Ventures,
LLC is referred to as “we,” “us,” or “our” and the person who is considering the franchise is referred to as
“you” or “your.” If you are a corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other legal entity (“legal
entity”), certain provisions of the franchise agreement and any related agreements will apply to your
shareholders, members, partners, officers, managers and directors (“principals”).

We are a Florida Limited Liability Company formed on October 1, 2017.

We do business under our corporate name SUGARING NYC.

Our principal business address is 1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409.
Exhibit B contains our agents for service of process.

We have not operated a business of the type being franchised, engaged in any other line of business, have
not offered franchises in any other line of business, and began offering franchises in December 2017.

Parents, Predecessors, and Affiliates.

Affiliated Sugaring Outlets.

Our CEO operated three businesses of the type being franchised from February 2015 under our Affiliate,
Sugaring USA, LLC, in New York, New York. The principal place of business for Sugaring USA LLC is
1 West Street, #2441, New York, New York 10004.

Our CEO also operated a business of the type being franchised from March 2017 under our Affiliate,
Sugaring Boston, LLC, in Boston, Massachusetts. The principal place of business for Sugaring Boston,
LLC is 221 Newbury Floor 2, Boston, Massachusetts 02116.

Our CEO operated a business of the type being franchised from November 2017 under our Affiliate,
Sugaring Chicago, LLC, in Chicago, Illinois. The principal place of business for Sugaring Chicago, LLC
is 645 N. Michigan Avenue, # 420, Chicago, Illinois 60611.

We have an affiliate, Sugaring 305 LLC, a Florida limited liability company formed on December 1, 2019,
with a principal business address of 551 N. State Road 7, Suite 101A, West Palm Beach, FL 33411, which
manages Florida affiliate outlets.

These Affiliates do not engage in any other line of business, have not offered franchises in this line or any
other line of business, and do not provide products or services to franchisees.

Affiliated Supplier.

We have an affiliate, Skincare Direct LLC, a Florida limited liability company formed on January 1, 2019
with a principal place of business at 1025 N. Florida Mango Road, Suite 6, West Pam Beach, FL 33409.
Skincare Direct LLC provides sugaring supplies to our franchisees, but has never offered franchises in this
line or any other line of business.
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Parents or Predecessors.
We do not have a parent or predecessors.
The Franchise Offered.

We offer franchises for businesses that offer organic hair removal services with a proprietary sugaring paste,
lash lifts, and other beauty services, under the trademark and trade name SUGARING NYC. You may also
choose to offer laser hair removal, if you desire. If you purchase a franchise, you will be the owner of the
franchised business, with staff to assist in the operations of the business. Additional staff may be employed
as your business grows. You will provide these services at your own facility.

You must operate the franchised business according to our standards and specifications, and sign our
standard franchise agreement (“Franchise Agreement”).

We also offer to qualified individuals the right to operate multiple Franchised Businesses, typically three
to five, per an agreed upon development schedule, under an Area Development Agreement. You must
execute the franchise agreement for your first outlet under the Area Development Agreement at the same
time as the Area Development Agreement. You must sign then current future franchise agreements which
may differ from the form of franchise agreement included in this franchise disclosure document. We base
our qualifications on whether or not we will also offer you the opportunity to become an area developer
based on your financial resources, your experience in the industry, your business experience, as well as
your marketing and sales plans.

Market and Competition.

The market for your services and products is the general public. In most areas, the market is developed and
highly competitive. Sales are year-round. Your franchised business competes in the beauty, cosmetology
and aesthetician industry. You may have to compete with other businesses offering services and products
similar to those that we offer (like waxing services), including franchised operations, national chains, beauty
salons, and other independently owned companies. Your franchise may operate within a close proximity to
major competitors, and you may also compete with us or our Affiliates in the sale and distribution of
branded and other goods and services sold retail and through any other distribution channel.

Industry Specific Regulations.

Most states have laws and regulations requiring licensed aestheticians and/or cosmetologists to perform
waxing/hair removal services. You may also be required to obtain a beauty enhancement business license.
Some states have laws and regulations that restrict the types of services and treatments aestheticians can
offer. You must ensure that only licensed aestheticians and/or cosmetologists, where applicable, perform
these waxing/hair removal services or other services for which a license is required. You will also need to
comply with local health and safety laws, licensing, zoning, and construction laws. You should investigate
application of these laws further.

ITEM 2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

CEO —DMYTRO NARTOV

Mr. Nartov has served as our CEO from our inception in October 2017. Mr. Nartov has served as CEO of
our Affiliate, Sugaring USA, LLC, in New York, New York since February 2015. Mr. Nartov has also
served as CEO of our Affiliate, our Affiliate, Sugaring Boston, LLC, in Boston, Massachusetts, from March
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2017 to the present. Mr. Nartov has also served as CEO of our Affiliate, Sugaring Chicago, LLC, in
Chicago, Illinois, from November 2017 to the present. Mr. Nartov served as CMO of Digital Direct Inc. in
New York, New York from March 2010 to July 2015.

MANAGING PARTNER/HEAD ESTHETICIAN — DARIA AFANASEVA

Ms. Afanaseva has served as our Managing Partner and Head Esthetician from our inception in October
2017. Ms. Afanaseva has served as Managing Partner and Head Esthetician with our Affiliate, Sugaring
USA, LLC, in New York, New York since February 2015. Ms. Afanaseva was a Student at Pace University
in New York, New York from September 2012 to September 2015 studying Business Economics.

ITEM 3. LITIGATION
Concluded Actions

L’Oreal USA Creative, Inc. et al. v. Dmytro Nartov, Nartov Ventures LLC et al., Case No. 1:19-cv-07127-
DAB, filed in the U.S. District Court of the Southern District of New York on July 30, 2019. The plaintiffs
alleged that the defendants engaged in trademark counterfeiting and infringement, unfair competition and
false designation of origin, unfair and deceptive trade practices, and unfair competition. The defendants
denied the allegations. On November 21, 2019, the parties resolved the allegations whereby the defendants
agreed to the entry of a Final Judgment and Permanent Injunction on Consent pursuant to which the
defendants would not sell, offer for sale, or advertising products bearing certain trademarks owned by the
plaintiffs.

Other than this action, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 4. BANKRUPTCY

There is no bankruptcy information required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 5. INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee

You must pay us, upon signing the franchise agreement, a $45,000 initial franchise fee (“Initial Franchise
Fee”) to own and operate a Sugaring NYC Franchised Business.

Pre-Opening Purchases

You must pay us prior to opening the business for certain pre-opening expenses for your business, such as
inventory, equipment, and marketing materials. This amount ranges from $8,050 to $11,650.

Area Development Program

If you sign an Area Development Agreement (“ADA”) and become an area developer, you will pay us the
Initial Franchise Fee of $45,000 for your first franchise and a development fee (“Development Fee”) based
on the number of Businesses to be developed. The number of Businesses required by the Development
Schedule will be determined by a number of factors, such as the size of the Development Area, the
population of the Development Area, and your financial capacity and expertise in developing businesses.
The Development Fee for each Business that you develop will be $40,000. You will be required to sign our
then-current Franchise Agreement for each Business. The Development Fee is paid in a lump sum at the
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time the ADA is signed, is uniform to all developers currently acquiring development rights, is not
refundable and will not be credited against any other fees paid to us or our affiliates. The Development Fee

for 3-5 outlets is $80,000 - $160,000.

Refundability of Initial Fees.

The initial fees discussed above are uniformly imposed, are fully earned when the franchise agreement is

signed, and are non-refundable.

ITEM 6. OTHER FEES

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
"Gross Revenue" means all of your revenue
Due monthly by from operating Store, but excll.lding ta).(es
- . th collected from customers and paid to taxing
Continuing  Service | 5% of Gross the 10" of the .
. authority, and reduced by the amount of any
and Royalty Fee Revenue month for the ., .
revious month documented refunds, gratuities, credits,
P allowances, and chargebacks the Business in
good faith gives to customers.
Local advertising requirements are discussed
in Item 11. Any advertising materials you wish
Local  Advertising | 2% of Gross . to use must first be approxfgd by us. be you fa}l
. As incurred. to spend the local advertising requirement in
Requirement Revenue . . . .
any given period, you will be required to pay
the difference to the National Advertising and
Development Fund.
. .. Due monthly by
National Advert . ..
atona verusing 1% of Gross the 10th of the | To support national advertising and brand
and Development
Fund® Revenue month for the | development.
previous month
Lesser of 1.5%
per month or the
highest
Interest® commercial ja(i:ys after due Due on all overdue amounts.
contract interest
rate allowed by
law
. If, aff if k
Maintenance and | You must , after we notify you, you do.not 1.mderta e
o . . efforts to correct deficiencies in Store
Refurbishing of | reimburse our As incurred .
. 3 appearance, then we can undertake the repairs
Business expenses .
and you must reimburse us.
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Fee

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Due if you have insufficient funds in your
. . EDTA to cover a payment, or if you pay by
4
Insufficient Funds $75 As incurred check, a check is returned for insufficient
funds.
Our cost in At fime  of
Relocation Assistance | providing . If you need our assistance to relocate.
. assistance
assistance
If you are unable to location an acceptable
business address within your non-exclusive
Territory Addendum ‘ terr1t01.'y within the time allotted by your
Fee $599 As incurred franchise agreement, you may relocate your
non-exclusive territory, subject to our then-
available territories and after payment of the
Territory Addendum Fee.
Zenoti POS System $170 Monthly Paid directly to Provider.
$15 per email
address
. requested,
Email Fee beyond one email Monthly Payable to us.
address, which is
included
Varies, ..
depending on size Payable to us for digital storage (presently
pending on s Google Drive). Up to 30GB of storage is
required, but ;
Storage Fee Annually provided at no cost, however, the cost for
between $19.99 .. .
and $99.99 per additional storage is between $19.99/year (for
' 100GB) and $99.99/year (for 1TB).
year
Bookkeeping Between $50 and Monthly Paid directly to Provider for bookkeeping
$100 per month. software system.
You agree to pay us this fee to create customer
social media content for you. This fee is per
S M Conen
Creation Contribution | $200/month Monthly Y 5 pay

fee, if Franchisee is in default of any payment
obligations, and fails to cure within ten (10)
days, Franchisor may cease all advertising for
Franchisee’s location.
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Renewal Fee® $5,000 At time of
renewal

Retraining Fee

Our then current
standard rates or
$375 per trainee

At the time of

Payable to us if your manager does not pass
initial training and we permit you to send a

Additional Training
or Assistance®

er day, | retrainin, . e
]\?vhichever }i/s & substitute manager to us for training.
greater
Currently, we
charge $375 per
day per person
lus expenses for - .
f)r ainin P at our We may charge you for training newly-hired
locatio%l and personnel; for refresher training courses; for
$375 e; day per the conventions, seminars, conferences, and
P yP When training | webinars; and for additional or special

person plus
expenses for
training plus
travel, lodging,
and meal
expenses incurred
by our trainer for
training at your

or  assistance
begins

assistance or training you need or request. For
all training sessions and conferences, you must
pay for your trainees' and representatives'
salaries and benefits, and for their travel,
lodging, and meal expenses.

location.
. Minimum " You agree to spend a minimum of $11,500 to
Refurbishment Fee $11,500 Every 57 year update your equipment every 5™ year.
We do not have a Cooperative Advertising
Program at this time, but reserve the right to
implement one. Franchisor owned outlets will
. . h th t t tlet
Cooperative 2% of Gross As Cooperative ave the same vote, one vote per outlet, as

Advertising Programs

monthly Revenue

Program directs

franchised outlets have on any fees imposed by
cooperatives. Any amounts you contribute to a
cooperative program will count toward the 2%
of gross revenues you are required to spend on
local advertising through the NADF.

Grand
Advertising

Opening

$3,000-$5,000

As incurred.

This is the minimum you must spend in “Grand
Opening” advertising and promotions before
and during the 30-day period following the
commencement of operations.
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
If you request and we agree to provide any
additional advertising design work that you
Custon} . Designed $50/hr. As incurred requ'est (\yhether rs:lated to the internet, social
Advertising media, print materials, etc.), you agree to pay
to us $50/hour for any design work beyond the
templates that we provide.
Cost of
inspection plus
the amount of the
underpayment
plus interest from
the date such Cost of
amount was due | inspection — at
until received by | time of Due if the audit or any other inspection should
Audit Fee’ Franchisor, paid | inspection; reveal that any payments to Franchisor have
at the rate of the | Underpayment | been underpaid.
lesser of 1.5% and interest —
per month or the | immediately.
highest
commercial
contract interest
rate allowed by
law
$2,000 - $4,000 You must buy products and services from us,
Product and Service | PT month . our affiliates, a.nd designated and approved
Purchases depending on | As incurred vendors whose items meet our standards and
location size and specifications. We may permit you to buy from
customer count other suppliers to the industry.
Testing of Products or This covers the costs of testing new products
Not to exceed . . . .
Approval of new $250 When billed or inspecting new suppliers you propose to us.
Suppliers®
If you do not resolve a customer complaint or
Actual amount of have operated outside of applicable rules and
Customer Service Fee | our  cost  or | When billed regulations, we may intervene and satisfy the
reimbursement customer. You agree to reimburse our costs in
doing so.
You agree to pay this fee to us to maintain the
Website Hosting Fee | $250/year Annually website, including the page location for your

franchise.
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the sales price or
25% of our then-

Transfer Fee

Before transfer

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
You must If you fail to obtain insurance, we may obtain
Insurance reimburse our As incurred insurance for you and you must reimburse us.
costs
Greater of 10% of

No charge if Franchise Agreement transferred
to an entity you control. The amount of this fee

(Unit franchise)™ current franchise completed is subject to applicable state law.
fee
If you fail to de-identify upon termination or
De-Identification Actual costs . expiration of the Franchise Agreement, we
. . As incurred
Reimbursement Fee | incurred may make such changes and you agree to

reimburse any cost we incur to do so.

$375 per person

Due when we (or a third party) manage your

attorneys’ fees

er day (plus . store after your managing owner’s death or
M. tFee | P A d ore @
anagement Fee other costs and | % "MCUTE disability, or after your default or
expenses) abandonment.
You must reimburse us if we are held liable for
Indemnification'! Will vary As incurred claims from your Store’s operation. To date,
we have never charged an indemnification fee.
All costs You must reimburse us for all costs in
. L enforcing obligations if we prevail, under both
Cost of including :
Enf 1 reasonable Upon demand | the Franchise Agreement and the Area
nforcement

Development Agreement.

Transfer Fee (Area | Our out of pocket
Development expenses not to
Agreement) exceed $15,000

Before transfer
is completed

This fee covers our time and work to review
and approve a proposed transfer and is in
addition to any transfer fee on the unit
franchise transfer. The amount of this fee is
subject to applicable state law.

We may require that all fees payable to us be paid through an Electronic Depository Transfer Account
(“EDTA”). Even if we do not require payment through an EDTA, we reserve the right to charge you an
additional fee for the use of any other payment instrument. This additional fee will cover our additional
expenses from processing a non-EDTA payment to us or any third party.

Unless otherwise stated, all fees are uniformly imposed by, payable to, and collected by us. We mandate
several fees for third party services and it is your duty to pay such fees. All fees payable to us are non-
refundable. Whether fees paid to third parties are refundable would depend on their policies.
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NOTES

'Royalty Fee: As a Franchisee, you are obligated to pay us a percentage of your sales as compensation for
your rights as a Franchisee (the “Royalty”). The Royalty rate is currently set at 5% of your Gross Revenues
as calculated per calendar month for the entire term of the Franchise Agreement. The Royalty obligation
begins immediately on the first month your Business is open for operation. The Royalty is due and payable
monthly on the 10th day of each month, to be paid according to our specifications. If you open the Business
for operation on the 25th of the month or any time until the 25th of the next month, then your Business will
be deemed to have opened during the immediately following calendar month. For example, if you open
your Business on January 26", then we would consider February as your first month in operation and since
there are no Royalties due for your first month, your royalty payments would begin in March for your
February Royalty obligation. If your Franchise Agreement is terminated, you will be required to continue
Royalty payments for the remaining term of your Franchise Agreement.

Royalty fees shall be payable to us by direct deposit from franchisee’s account. See the Direct Deposit
Agreement, attached herein and incorporated as Schedule 5 of the Franchise Agreement. We reserve the
right to change the time and manner of payment at any time upon written notice to you. All Royalty fees
are non-refundable.

’Interest: Interest and late charges begin to accrue on amounts not received within 5 days after the due date.
In addition to any interest and late charges, you must also pay any damages, expenses, collection costs,
and/or reasonable attorney fees we may incur when you do not make the required payments, provided no
interest charged shall exceed the maximum legal rate of any local, national, or international authority having
jurisdiction over your Business activities.

*Maintenance and Refurbishment: We may charge you certain maintenance and refurbishment fees for any
work we perform on your behalf to repair or otherwise improve your franchise location, including any such
repairs or improvements made on our own initiative if you refuse to complete any requested maintenance
or refurbishment. The total amount of the maintenance and refurbishment fees that you pay us will vary
depending on the labor and material costs of any such maintenance and refurbishing, as well as any
associated costs or losses we may incur due to your failure to maintain or refurbish the location in
accordance with our requests.

*Insufficient Funds: We may charge you an insufficient funds fee if any payment you owe is rejected due
to insufficient funds in your EDTA, or if any other payment instrument you are authorized to use is rejected
4or insufficient funds.

’Renewal Fee: Renewal fees are due at the time of renewal of the Franchise Agreement.
®Training Fees: Training fees may be imposed on you according with our policies.

"Audit Fee: We will assess Audit fees against you if you fail to provide us reports, supporting records, or
any other information we require under the Franchise Agreement; or if you understate (or if we have reason
to believe you understated) required Continuing Support, Royalty payments, or NADF contributions by
more than 2%. The total amount of the audit fees that you pay us will vary depending on the cost of the
audit itself (for which you will be entirely liable), and whether you have any unpaid Continuing Support,
Royalties, or NADF for which you may be penalized in accordance with the Franchise Agreement.

$Testing of Products or Approval of New Suppliers: You will be required to obtain our written approval for
any product, vendor, supplier, or piece of equipment that you wish to use in the operation of your Business
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(as described in Item 8) and you will be charged an assessment fee for the examination of any product,
vendor, supplier, or piece of equipment submitted to us for approval. This fee is up to, but not in excess of,
$1,000 for any single product, vendor, supplier, or piece of equipment you wish to offer, use, and/or
substitute in your operation of the Business. We may waive these fees at our sole and absolute discretion if
the equipment, products, vendors and/or suppliers you select meet our requirements and are added to our
approved list of equipment, products, vendors and/or suppliers for all franchise locations.

Transfer Fee: The term “transfer” means any of the following: the sale of 20% or more of the assets of
your franchise; the sale, assignment, or conveyance of 20% or more of your stock, membership interest,
membership units, or partnership units of your franchise to any third party; or the placement of your assets,
stock, membership interest, partnership units, or membership units of your business into a business trust.

"Management Fee: Management fees will only be charged when one of our employees, or a third party
appointed by us, actively controls the day to day management of your business. The total amount of
Management fees that you owe will be determined by the number of days that it is necessary for us to
manage your business.

"Indemnification: You must protect, defend, indemnify, and hold us harmless against any claims, lawsuits,
or losses arising out of your operation of the Franchised Business brought by third parties, or any default
under the Franchise Agreement. You must pay for any and all damages, legal fees, enforcement or
collection costs, and/or any other costs assessed against us in any proceeding related to your Franchised
Business to the extent permitted by law, provided that no indemnification fee shall exceed the actual total
costs assessed against us.

12Cost of Enforcement: Cost of enforcing the Franchise Agreement fees will be levied against you if we
prevail against you in any dispute arising out of the Franchise Agreement or the Area Development
Agreement. However, the total amount of any such fees will vary depending on the value of legal fees,
expert witness fees, accountant fees, costs to us or our employees in complying or addressing the dispute,
and any travel expenses that we deem necessary to resolve the dispute.
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ITEM 7. ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

A. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Estimated To Whom
Type of Amount Method of When Due Payment is to be
Expenditure Payment Made
Low High
Upon signing
Initial Franchise | ¢45 500 | $45.000 | Lump sum your To us
Fee Franchise
Agreement
Traveling and
Living Expenses $700 $1,500 | Asarranged | As incurred Third parties
while Training®
Grand Op c_:m?g $3,000 $5,000 | Asarranged | As incurred Third parties
Advertising
Real Property
Lease and Pre- $5,000 $9,000 | Asarranged | As incurred To your landlord
Opening Rent
Furm'ture anjd $8,300 $81,000 | Asarranged | As incurred To third party
Equipment
Construction of
Leasehold $100,000 | $120,000 | Asarranged | As incurred Contractors
Improvements®
Inventor_y a7nd $2,500 $4,000 | Asarranged | As incurred Suppliers and us
Supplies
Deposits, Pre-paid $0 $500 As arranged | As incurred To third party
Expenses
Before
Start-up Marketing signing your .
Package® $1,500 $3,000 | Asarranged Franchise Third party and us
Agreement
Licenses, Permits As incurred,
and Certifications’ $1,000 $2,000 | Asarranged befgre _lease To third party
signing
Insurance . .

(3 Months) $500 $700 As arranged | As incurred To third party
Archltectpra}o/ $1.500 $3,000 | Asarranged | As incurred Architectural/engineering
Engineering firms
Attorneys and $750 $1,500 | Asarranged | As incurred Attorneys/accountants

Accountants
Additional Fulrllds $29,000 | $25,000 | Asarranged | As incurred Emplqyees, suppliers,
(3 months) utilities, lessors, etc.
Total'? $198,750 | $301,200
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NOTES

'The Initial Franchise Fee is $45,000 for a single territory. All fees payable to us in the above table are
non-refundable. Whether fees paid to third parties are refundable would depend on their policies.

2We will train you (or your managing owner) and one of your manager-level employees. Additional persons
attending training concurrently may attend initial training if you pay our then current training charge for
each additional person. You must also pay for all travel and living expenses that you and your employees
incur while they train.

*This is the minimum you must spend in “Grand Opening” advertising and promotions before and during
the 30-day period following the commencement of operations.

*We anticipate that you will rent the Business’s premises. It is possible, however, that you might choose to
buy, rather than rent, real estate on which a building suitable for the Business already is constructed or
could be constructed. Real estate costs depend on location, size, visibility, economic conditions,
accessibility, competitive market conditions, and the type of ownership interest you are buying. Because of
the numerous variables that affect the value of a particular piece of real estate, this estimated initial
investment table does not reflect the potential cost of purchasing real estate. The estimated size of your
Sugaring NYC will be between 1,100 and 1,500 square feet.

>The equipment, furniture, fixtures, and signage necessary for the operation of a Sugaring NYC Business
includes all office equipment, computers, and furniture, sinks, tables, display cases, and miscellaneous other
items, many of which may be leased, and all interior and exterior signs that may or may not bear the
proprietary Marks licensed to you by us. The cost of signs may vary depending on the type, size, and
location of the signs, and may also be affected by municipal restrictions. Does not include freight or installs,
based on where the location is geographically, the number will vary. The high-end estimate includes an
amount for the purchase of laser hair removal equipment. While this offering is option, Sugaring NYC
estimates that, by 2026, laser hair removal will be 25% or more of revenue per location. Sugaring NYC has
partnered with Cartessa Inc., and received preferred pricing and financing options. The high-end estimate
includes Sugaring NYC’s negotiated price of $69,500 (reduced from the retail price of $130,000). The low-
end does not include any equipment associated with laser hair removal, as this is an optional service.

®The cost of leasehold improvements depends upon the condition and size of the leasehold, the local cost
of contract work and the location of the Franchise. The estimated figures include remodeling walls, ceilings,
floors, and other construction including electrical, plumbing and carpentry work. This amount will vary
based on the condition of the existing leasehold. Many locations are built in existing structures, while many
others are new build-outs. You will incur expenditures in this category if you take over space which was
occupied by a prior tenant. It is difficult, if not impossible, to estimate what it might cost to improve existing
property. Tenant improvement allowances, if any, paid to you may defray a portion of build-out costs.

"Opening inventory of products and supplies will vary based on expected volume of business and size of
storage areas in the leasehold.

8Start up marketing package will include any necessary printed materials, signs, promotional tools and
online marketing campaign to raise the initial brand awareness in specified locality.

°Estimated costs of obtaining required licenses and permits to operate your business. Some costs may vary
depending on the location of the Franchised Business.

'9The architect will provide architectural services relating to the building.
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"This estimate is for your initial startup expenses only. You should have a three month cash reserve to
cover the development and operations of the franchised business, including costs for payroll.

12We relied on our Affiliate’s experience in the format of the franchise business to compile these estimates.
We do not offer financing directly or indirectly for any part of the initial investment.

B. AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Method of To Whom
Expenditure Amount ‘When Due Payment is to be
Payment
Made
Low High
Upon entering into
Area Development Fee $90,000 $180,000 | Lump Sum | Area Development Us
(Note 1)
Agreement

Initial Investment for
Your Initial Franchised $198,750 | $301,200 See Chart 7(A) above.
Business (Note 2)

TOTAL $288,750 | $481,200

Note 1- The low-end comprises of the additional franchise fee of $45,000 multiplied by two. The high-end
comprises of the additional franchise fee of $40,000 multiplied by four. The initial franchise fee for the first
unit, of $45,000, is incorporated in Chart 7(A).

The Area Development Fee ranges from $80,000 to $160,000 for three to five territories, as explained in
Item 5 above. The Area Development Fee includes the Initial Franchise Fee on the first territory purchased
under the Development Agreement and a reduced Initial Franchise Fee on additional territories.

This figure represents the total estimated initial investment required to open your initial Franchised
Business under the Franchise Agreement you must enter into with us at the same time as the execution of

your Development Agreement.

Other than the Development Fee, this figure does not include the costs associated with opening a second
and subsequent locations which will incur additional costs.

ITEM 8. RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
The Goods or Services Required to be Purchased or Leased:

Advertising and Marketing

You must use advertising material from us, a vendor that we designate, or we must approve the advertising
in writing, prior to its use.
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Architectural and Engineering Services

You must purchase architectural and engineering services to assist in your build out. You may purchase
these services from any qualified vendor.

Bookkeeping
You shall use a bookkeeping service according to our guidelines, which may include a vendor designation.

Computers and Programs

You must purchase computer hardware and software designated by us. You will set up, maintain and utilize
e-mail capability with an e-mail service designated by us for the purposes of receiving electronic
correspondence from us, other franchisees and your customers.

Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment

You must purchase furniture, fixtures, and equipment from a vendor that we designate or subject to our
specifications.

Inventory
You must purchase initial and continuing inventory from us and approved suppliers that we designate.
Insurance

You are required to obtain the requisite insurance as set forth below:

$1,000,000 Per Occurrence
General Liability Insurance
$2,000,000 In the Aggregate
Business Liability Insurance $500,000 Per Month
Workmen’s Compensation As required by law Per Employee
Optional: Business Interruption Insurance | $50,000 Not less than Per Month

Leased Location
You will need a site in which to operate the franchised. We furnish site selection guidelines. We require
you to send to us any proposed lease and information as required by us to evaluate the site for our approval

before you sign the lease. You may lease from any landlord.

Leasehold Improvements

You may purchase leasehold improvements from any supplier but must build out your location according
to our specifications.

Signage
You must purchase signage according to our specifications, including our interior plexiglass signage.
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Video Surveillance System

You must purchase a video surveillance system according to our specifications. Currently, our video
surveillance system costs approximately $450.

Whether we or our Affiliates are Approved Suppliers:

We are currently an approved supplier of advertising material and inventory, but not the only approved
supplier of such items.

Our affiliate, Skincare Direct LLC is currently an approved supplier, and the only approved supplier of
sugaring supplies to our franchisees.

Officer Interests in Suppliers:
Our officer, Dmytro Nartov, owns an interest in us and in our affiliate, Skincare Direct LLC.
Alternative Suppliers:

We do not maintain written criteria for approving suppliers and thus these criteria are not available to you
or your proposed supplier. We do permit you to contract with alternative suppliers if approved by us and
they meet our criteria. We charge our any costs incurred, up to $1,000, to test another supplier that you
propose. If you wish to propose to us another supplier, you may submit the proposed supplier that you wish
for us to consider in writing. Your request must include sufficient specifications, photographs, drawings
and other information and samples to enable us to determine whether supplier meets our specifications.
Your request must also provide confirmation that the supplier is financially sound and carries adequate
liability insurance. We will examine the quality of the items and the supplier’s ability to supply a sufficient
quantity in a timely way with good customer service to determine whether to consider adding the supplier
to our list of approved vendors. We will notify you within 30 days if we approve or disapprove of an
alternative supplier. If we revoke approval for a supplier, we will provide written notice to you.

Issuance and Modification of Specifications:

We issue specifications and standards to franchisees or approved suppliers through our Operations Manual
or through informational bulletins we issue from time to time.

Revenue from Required Purchases:

We presently receive a fee from Amazon.com for purchases made as a result of referrals from Sugaring
NYC’s intranet/franchise portal.

In our last fiscal year, ending on December 31, 2023, we received $139,489 revenue or other material
consideration from required purchases or leases by franchisees. This was 7.10% of our total revenues of
$1,950,253.

In our last fiscal year ending December 31, 2023, our affiliate, Cartessa Inc., earned $234,929 in gross
revenue from franchisee purchases of sugaring supplies.

In our last fiscal year ending December 31, 2023, our affiliate, Skincare Direct LLC, earned $2,005,610 in

gross revenue from franchisee purchases of sugaring supplies.
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Required Purchases as a Proportion of Costs:

We estimate that approximately 70% of your expenditures for leases and purchases in establishing your
Franchised Business will be for goods and services that must be purchased from us, an Affiliate, an
approved supplier, or from another party according to our standards and specifications. We estimate that
approximately 30% of your expenditures on an ongoing basis will be for goods and services that must be
purchased either from us, an Affiliate, an approved supplier or another party according to our standards and
specifications.

Supplier Payments to Us:
Designated suppliers may make payments to us from franchisee purchases.

In the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, we did not yet receive any supplier rebates but anticipate
supplier rebates in the future.

Purchasing or Distribution Cooperatives:
At this time, we do not have any purchasing or distribution cooperatives.
Purchase Arrangements:

We negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers, including price terms, for the benefit of our
franchisees.

Material Benefits:

We do not provide material benefits to you based on your use of a particular supplier. However, when your
franchise is up for renewal, to continue your franchise rights, we require you to be in compliance with your
franchise agreement, which includes compliance with any supplier standards that are contained in our
Operations Manual.

ITEM 9. FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS
This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you

find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other Items of this
Disclosure Document.

Section in Section in Area
Franchisee’s Obligations Franchise Development Item in Disclosure
Agreement Agreement
a. Slte.se_:l_ectlon and 2 and5 2.4 11,12
acquisition/lease
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases 3,13, and I3 2,4 7,811
c. Site development and other 2,3,5,8,and 10 2,3,4 11
pre-opening requirements
d. Initial and ongoing training 8 Not Applicable 1
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Section in

Section in Area

Franchisee’s Obligations Franchise Development Item in Disclosure
Agreement Agreement
. 4,5,11,and 13 4 11
e. Opening
3,4,8,10, 11, 12,
fF 13, 15, 18, 21, 22, 3,8,9 5,6,7,8,11
- rees and 23
g. Compliance with standards 6,7,9,10,and 13 2,4,6 8,11, 14,16
and policies/Manual
h. Trademarks and proprietary 6,7,and 9 6 13, 14
information
i Restrlctllons on products/ 6and 13 Not Applicable 8.16
services offered
j. Warranty and customer service 13 Not Applicable 16
requirements
k. Territorial development and N/A 4 12
sales quotas
1. Ongoing product/service 13 Not Applicable 8,11
purchases
m. Malnteqance, appearance & 3,10, and 13 Not Applicable 6
remodeling requirements
1. Insurance 15 Not Applicable 6,7,8
o. Advertising 11 Not Applicable 6,7,8,11
p. Indemnification 21 10 6
q. Owner’s participation/ 8and 13 Not Applicable 15
management/staffing
r. Records and reports 12 Not Applicable 1
s. Tnspections and Audits 6 and 12 Not Applicable 6,11,13
18 and 19; Schedule
t. Transfer 1 i 6,17
. Renewal 4; Schedule 1 Not Applicable 17
v. Post-termination obligations 17, Schedule 2 8 17
7,9, and 17; 6.8 17
w. Non-competition covenants Schedule 2 ’
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Section in Section in Area

Franchisee’s Obligations Franchise Development Item in Disclosure
Agreement Agreement
23, Schedules 2, 3 10 17

x. Dispute resolution

ITEM 10. FINANCING
We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease or obligation.

ITEM 11. FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND
TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.
1. Before you open your Franchised Business, we will:
a. Provide an initial training program. This training does not include any professional

licenses, certification, or other training you must possess and/or complete before you can operate the
Franchised Business. (Section 8.1 of the Franchise Agreement).

b. Provide to you opening assistance and guidance to assist you with any questions
you may have in operating and establishing the Franchised Business. (Section 8.2 of the Franchise
Agreement).

c. Provide to you, on loan, one copy of the Sugaring NYC Operations Manual or

provide you with access to an electronic copy of the Operations Manual. The Table of Contents of the
Operations Manual, along with number of pages devoted to each section, is included as Exhibit D to this
Disclosure Document. (Section 9.1 of the Franchise Agreement). The Operations Manual contains a total
of 137 pages.

d. Provide assistance and guidance in establishing prices for products and services.
The Company’s Operations Manual shall provide you with a list of minimum and maximum prices (subject
to restrictions imposed under applicable law) for the sale of the products and services to be offered by you.
(Sections 6.7, 9, and 13 of the Franchise Agreement).

e. We provide assistance with obtaining equipment, signs, fixtures, opening
inventory, and supplies. We provide specifications or a list of approved suppliers for these items. We do
not deliver or install these items. (Section 13.2 of the Franchise Agreement).

f. We provide assistant to conform the premises to local ordinances and building
codes and obtaining any required permits. We provide specifications from which your contractor can
construct, remodel, or decorate the premises. (Section 9.1 of the Franchise Agreement).

g. We provide assistance in hiring and training employees. (Section 9.1 of the
Franchise Agreement).
2. After the opening of the Franchised Business, we will:
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a. Offer you advice, discuss problems, and offer general guidance by telephone
and/or electronic correspondence, with respect to planning and operating the Franchised Business. (Section
14.1 of the Franchise Agreement).

b. Make available to you ongoing training as we think necessary. (Section 8.4 of the
Franchise Agreement).

c. Provide you with modifications to the Operations Manual as they are made
available to franchisees. (Section 9.2 of the Franchise Agreement).

Except as expressly disclosed in this Item, we have no obligation to develop products or services you will
offer to your customers, hire, or train your employees, improve, and/or develop your franchised business,
resolve operational problems encountered by you, or establish: (a) prices, or (b) administrative,
bookkeeping, accounting, or inventory control procedures.

3. Advertising and Promotion:

a. Grand Opening Advertising. You must spend a minimum of $3,000 - $5,000
directly with third party vendors in “Grand Opening” advertising and promotions before and during the 30-
day period following the commencement of operations. (Section 11.3 of the Franchise Agreement).

b. Local Advertising. You are not currently required to participate in a local or
regional advertising cooperative, but we may require you to do so in the future. However, you are required
to spend at least two percent (2%) of Gross Revenue per month on local marketing, advertising and
promotion in such manner as Sugaring NYC may, in its sole discretion, direct in the Manual or otherwise
in writing from time-to-time. At present, Sugaring NYC intends to collect two percent (2%) of Gross
Revenue per month, to be used by Sugaring NYC, on your behalf, on digital advertising. You may request
Sugaring NYC to spend more than two percent (2%) of Gross Revenue per month on advertising on your
behalf, on condition that you reimburse Sugaring NYC for any additional costs and expenses. If advertising
is not directed through Sugaring NYC, upon Sugaring NYC’s request, You shall provide satisfactory
evidence of its local advertising and promotion expenditures in such manner as Sugaring NYC shall direct
in the manual or otherwise in writing from time-to-time.

For all advertising not conducted by Sugaring NYC, you must submit to us, for our approval, all media and
materials to be used for local advertising, unless the media and/or materials have been approved before or
unless we provided the materials to you. All materials containing our proprietary marks must include the
designation service mark ™, trademark ™, registered trademark ®, copyright ©, or any other designation
we specify. If you do not receive written or oral approval of any materials submitted within 30 days from
the date we receive the materials, the materials are disapproved. We may require you to withdraw and/or
discontinue the use of any promotional materials or advertising, even if previously approved. We must
make this requirement in writing, and you have 5 days after receipt of our notice to withdraw and/or
discontinue use of the materials or advertising. Your submission of advertising for our approval does not
affect your right to determine the prices at which you sell your services.

You may have as many telephone numbers and telephone directory listing for the franchised business as
you choose; however, you acknowledge and agree that we will own all rights and interest in each telephone
number (regardless of whether such telephone number pre-existed any Franchise Agreement) and telephone
directory listing, email address, domain name, social media platform, and comparable electronic identify
that is associated in any manner with your Franchise and/or with any Mark (“Listing”). You acknowledge
and agree that all goodwill arising from or in connection with the use of each Listing will inure to our
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benefit. Promptly after expiration, termination, repurchase or transfer of the Franchise, you will notify each
telephone or Internet Service Provider (“ISP”) with whom you have any Listing and direct them to transfer
the Listing to us, or any persons we designate, at your expense; and you agree to execute all documents
necessary to complete these transfers.

You must include in any significant display advertisements, and in marketing materials for your Sugaring
NYC Business, a notice that your Sugaring NYC Business is individually owned and operated. Subject to
any legal restrictions, you also are required to display or make available in your Sugaring NYC Business’s
reception area, marketing materials that we may provide to you about the purchase of Sugaring NYC
franchises, but you have no responsibility or authority to act for us in franchise sales.

You may not solicit business outside your Territory through the use of a toll-free number, direct mail,
website, social media platform, or other advertising method without our prior written approval. You may
not establish your own website or social media platforms without approval.

c. Each month, you will be required to pay 1% of your Gross Revenue to be
contributed to a national advertising fund, which will fund both national advertising for the system and
local advertising, promotions, and public relations in the local area surrounding your franchised business.
We may, subject to our sole discretion, allow you to directly control elements of the local advertising
program, including designing your own materials, using your own materials, or designing an advertising
program. If we allow you to control any such elements of the local advertising program, you must first
obtain our prior written consent for all materials you design or create before you use them. In no event do
we grant you any control of the advertising without you first obtaining our express written permission; such
permission not to exceed 15 days without the express written extension of approval by us. We shall have
the right to review all marketing materials and must approve such materials prior to their use. (Section 11
of the Franchise Agreement).

d. Each month, you will be required to pay 1% of your Gross Revenue to be
contributed to a national advertising fund (Section 11.1 of the Franchise Agreement). We will administer
the marketing fund as follows:

i We will control the creative concepts and the materials and media to be
used, and we will determine the placement and allocation of advertisements. We may use print, television,
radio, Internet, or other media for advertisements and promotions. We have complete control over the
source of the advertising and may administer in-house or engage third parties, including national or regional
advertising agencies. We are not obligated to spend any particular amount on advertising in your territory
and do not guarantee that any particular franchisee will benefit directly or in proportion to their contribution
from the placement of advertising by the marketing fund. Media coverage may be local, regional, or
national, as we determine in our sole discretion.

ii. Contributions will be used for producing, maintaining, administering and
directing consumer advertising (including but not limited to the cost of preparing and conducting television,
radio, Internet, magazine, direct mail and newspaper advertising campaigns and other public relations
activities; hosting an Internet web page of similar activities; employing advertising agencies to assist
therein; providing promotional brochures; conducting market research; and providing other marketing
materials to franchisees). We will maintain your contributions in a separate account from our funds and we
will not use them for any of our general operating expenses, except for our reasonable administrative costs
and overhead related to the administration of the marketing fund. We will not use marketing fund
contributions for the direct solicitation of franchise sales.
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iil. We expect to use all contributions in the fiscal year they are made. We will
use any interest or other earnings of the marketing fund before we use current contributions. We intend for
the marketing fund to be perpetual, but we have the right to terminate it if necessary. We will not terminate
the marketing fund until all contributions and earnings have been used for advertising and promotional
purposes or we have returned your pro rata share, meaning the portion you contributed.

iv. We will have an accounting of the marketing fund prepared each year and
we will provide you with a copy if you request it. We may require that the annual accounting be reviewed
or audited and reported on by an independent certified public accountant at the marketing fund’s expense.
We are not required to have the fund audited.

V. The marketing fund is not a trust and we assume no fiduciary duty in
administering the marketing fund.

Our Affiliate is not required to contribute to the fund, nor is Franchisor. Except for salaries of
marketing personnel employed by Sugaring NYC, we do not currently receive compensation for providing
goods or services to the fund.

During our last fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, we collected $59,193.76 in National
Advertising and Development Fund contributions. Of those funds, we used 90% on media placement and
10% on administrative expenses. No advertising funds will be used principally for solicitation of new
franchisees.

e. Although we are not obligated to do so, we may create a Cooperative Advertising
program for the benefit of all Franchised Businesses located in a particular geographic region. We have the
right to allocate any portion of the marketing fund to cooperative advertising; and collect and designate all
or a portion of the local advertising for cooperative advertising. We will determine the geographic territory
and market areas for each Cooperative Advertising program, in our discretion. You must participate in any
Cooperative Advertising program established in your region and contribute up to 2% of Gross monthly
Sales. If cooperative advertising is implemented in a particular region, we may establish an advertising
council for franchisees in that region to self-administer the program, in our discretion. We will require all
franchisees in the geographic region to participate, including Franchisor and affiliate owned stores.

If a cooperative program is established for your geographic region, you must
participate and we currently expect that each other Sugaring NYC Business operating in the region (whether
franchised, or owned by us or an affiliate) must contribute up to 2% of Gross Revenues to the cooperative
program periodically as specified by us. Any amounts you contribute to a cooperative program will count
toward the 2% of gross revenues you are required to spend on local advertising through the NADF.

We have the power to form, change, dissolve, or merge any cooperative program.
Our cooperative programs will not operate from any written governing documents. We will make available
for your review any records showing payments to and expenses of any cooperative program in which you
participate.

We do not have a franchisee advisory council that advises us on advertising policies.
However, we may have a franchise advisory council at any time in the future. (Section 11.3 of the Franchise
Agreement).

f. You are restricted from establishing a presence on, or marketing on the Internet
without our written consent. We have an Internet website at the uniform resource locator
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www.sugaringnyc.com that provides information about the System and about Sugaring NYC franchises.
We may provide you with a page on our home page, where we will have contact information for your
location. All information posted on the Sugaring NYC website or any linked webpages must be approved
by us before it is posted. We retain the sole right to market on the Internet, including the use of websites,
domain names, uniform resource locators, keywords, linking, search engines (and search engine
optimization techniques), banner ads, meta-tags, marketing, auction sites, e-commerce, and co-branding
arrangements. You may be requested to provide content for our Internet marketing and you must follow
our intranet and Internet usage rules, policies and requirements. We retain the sole right to use the Marks
on the Internet, including on websites, as domain names, directory addresses, search terms and meta-tags,
social media pages and in connection with linking, marketing, co-branding and other arrangements. We
retain the sole right to approve any linking to, or other use of, the Sugaring NYC website. You are not
permitted to use a domain name containing “Sugaring NYC” in the URL. (Section 11.4 of the Franchise
Agreement).

4. Computer Systems:
You must purchase and use any hardware and software programs we designate. (Section

12.5 of the Franchise Agreement). Presently, we require you to purchase the following hardware and
software:

Hardware
Tablet
Printer, Cash Drawer, Card Reader, Zenoti Stand
Computer (optional)
Video Surveillance System
Software
Zenoti

The approximate cost of the hardware and software ranges from $3,000 to $4,000,
including approximately $450 for the video surveillance system.

Neither we nor our affiliates or any third party have any obligation to provide ongoing
maintenance, repairs, upgrades, or updates. You must maintain your computer systems in good working
order and must replace, update, or upgrade your hardware systems as we require. There is no contractual
limitation on the frequency or cost of such maintenance duties. The estimated annual cost of optional or
required maintenance, updating, upgrading, or support contracts to your computer systems is approximately
$500.

You are provided one email address as part of your Franchised Business. If you require
additional email addresses, the present cost is $15 per email address per month. Additionally, as part of
your Franchised Business, our current digital storage provider (Google Drive) provides 30GB of storage at
no cost. If you require additional storage, the present cost is between $19.99/year (for 30GB) and
$99.99/year (for 1TB).

Independent Access to Information. We have, and you are required to provide, independent access to the
information that will be generated or stored in your computer systems, online billing account such as Zenoti
and Stripe.com which includes, but not limited to, customer, transaction, and operational information. You
also must provide to us 24-hour access to video surveillance video stream via approved equipment. We
have the right to review your business operations, in person, by mail, or electronically, and to inspect your
operations and obtain your paper and electronic business records related to the Franchised Business and
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any other operations taking place through your Franchised Business. There are no contractual restrictions
on our right to access your data. (Section 12.6 of the Franchise Agreement).

S. Site Selection

We provide site selection criteria to you to assist you in locating a site for the Franchised
Business. We do not generally own the premises and lease it to you. We consider the following factors
when reviewing a proposed site: (i) residential population, (ii) income levels, (iii) demographics, (iv)
competition, (v) visibility, (vi) proximity to other Sugaring NYC locations, (vii) accessibility, (viii) traffic,
(ix) size, (x) condition and character, (xi) parking, and (xii) available signage. (Franchise Agreement,
Section 8.2).

You must secure a location for the Business within 75 days of the signing of the Franchise
Agreement; this includes the requirement of obtaining our approval for your selected location. We will
generally approve or deny your selected location within 15 days, but we maintain the right to take additional
time if circumstances demand it. In addition, you must sign the lease or otherwise secure the legal right to
occupy the location, meeting all the state and local specifications, within 15 days following our approval
of such location. If you and we do not agree on a selected site in the permitted time, we can allow you
more time or terminate the Franchise Agreement.

For franchisees under Area Development Agreements, we use the same site selection assistance
procedures and timing for each additional unit franchise agreement you enter into with us as part of the
Area Development Agreement.

6. Typical Length of Time Before Operation

We estimate that the typical length of time between the signing of the Franchise Agreement
and the opening of the franchise is 100 to 120 days. Factors that may affect your beginning operations
include ability to secure permits, zoning and local ordinances, acquiring the vehicle, weather conditions,
and attending training. You must open your franchised business and be operational within 180 days from
executing the Franchise Agreement. Nonetheless, we reserve the right to grant extensions to the Time
Before Operations period at our sole and absolute discretion, we are in no way obligated to consider such
extensions in any case. (Section 5.4 of the Franchise Agreement).

7. Training

We provide you with an initial training program before you commence operations,
covering the areas identified in the below table. This training is offered on an as-needed basis at our
headquarters in West Palm Beach, FL, or another franchisor training center we designate. You must
satisfactorily complete the initial training before the opening of the Franchised Business. Training is divided
into two parts:

1) Owner training (Franchisee-Operator) — Up to two (2) people will be trained, including the
franchise owner.

2) Esthetician training (Service Provider, aka Sugarista) — Up to two (2) estheticians are required
to attend the Sugaring NYC training facility for initial training. Up to four (4) estheticians can
attend the training at the franchising location for the final part of the training.

3) Laser hair removal training (optional)
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The time frames provided in the chart are estimates of the time it will take to complete training.
We do not charge for the initial training. You must pay for all travel costs and living expenses for yourself
and any of your attendees. You will be charged for additional training, as provided for in Item 6. This initial
training is in addition to the on-site opening assistance we may provide to you. Your franchised business
must at all times either be under your day-to-day supervision as the Owner/Operator, or by an approved
manager who has satisfactorily completed our training program. Additional training shall be at a cost of
$350 per person per day if at our location, or $350 per person per day if the training is at your location (plus
costs of travel, air fare and incidentals). (Sections 8.1, 8.3, and 8.4 of the Franchise Agreement).

FRANCHISEE/OWNER TRAINING

Subject Franch3smg Virtual Training Location
Location
Introduction to Sugaring 0 Hours 2 hours Remote.Vlrtual
NYC Sessions
Understanding Sugaring Franchising Location
NYC & its Services 1 Hours 1hours + Virtual Sessions
Location Selection 0 Hours 4 hours Virtual Sessions
Perm} ts and qumg 0 Hours 2 hours Virtual Sessions
Compliance & Signage
Construction Assistance 0 Hours 4 hours Virtual Sessions
POS & Schefh{hng System 3 hours 3 hours Franchlsmg Logatlon
Training + Virtual Sessions
Staffing & Hiring Franchising Location
Assistance 1 Hour 3 hours + Virtual Sessions
. .. Franchising Location
Customer Service Training 2 hours 2 hours + Virtual Sessions
. . Franchising Location
Operations Training 11 hours 2 hours + Virtual Sessions
Do’s and Don’ts 0 hours 2 hours Virtual Sessions
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Subject Franch}smg Virtual Training Location
Location
. .. Franchising Location
Marketing and advertising 2 hours 2 hours + Virtual Sessions
Post-Opening Support 0 hours 4 hours Virtual Sessions
Procurement (Vendors & 1 hours 2 hours Franchising Location
Suppliers) + Virtual Sessions
Totals 21 Hours 21 Hours

ESTHETITIAN TRAINING (SUGARISTA TRAINING)

Subject Franchising Location Virtual Training At Training Facility Location
Sugaring Video Tutorials 3 hours 0 Hours 0 Hours Remote VVlrtual
Sessions
Pre-Sugaring and After- Franchising Location
Sugaring Treatment Guide I Hours I Hours I Hours + Virtual Sessions
. . . .
Sugaring Flick Technique 1 hours 0 Hours 3 Hours Royal Pah_n Bzl
Florida
Body, Face and Bikini Franchising Location
Sugaring Guide and 0 Hours 15 hours 19 Hours isimg -ocat
. + Training Facility
Practice
Lash Lift, V-Facial, Brow Franchising Location
lamination Guide and 1 hours 3 hours 3 Hours + Training Facility +
Practice Virtual Sessions
Customer Service & .. .
Product Education 0 hours 1 hour 0 Hours Franchising Location
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Subject Franchising Location Virtual Training At Training Facility Location
POS & Schedq]lng System 0 hours 1 hour 0 Hours Franchising Location
Training
Laser Halr Removal 1 hours 0 hours 0 Hours Virtual Sessions
(Optional)
Follow Up Training (6 1 hours 0 hours 0 Hours Virtual Sessions
weeks after launch)
Totals 21 hours 7 hours 26 hours

The location of training may change if the Franchisor believes, in its sole discretion, that training
would benefit from attending training in a different location. All persons attending the initial training
program must complete the program to our satisfaction. If you cannot complete the program to our
satisfaction, as set forth in the Operations Manual, we may terminate the Franchise Agreement. (Sections
8.1 and 8.3 of the Franchise Agreement). Note, the hours of training on the above chart may overlap and
be provided concurrently, in our discretion.

The following instructors teach our initial training program: Daria Afanaseva and Andrea
Schwartzman. We describe the nature of Daria Afanaseva’s experience in Item 2. We describe the nature
of Andrea Schwartzman’s experience here:

Andrea Schwartzman, Manager and Corporate Trainer, Andrea Schwartzman has served as a
Manager/Corporate Trainer for our Affiliate, Sugaring USA, LLC in Manhattan, New York since 2016.
From 2015 to 2016, Ms. Schwartzman was a self-employed Esthetician in Manhattan, New York. From
2012 to 2015, Ms. Schwartzman served as a Wax Specialist for European Wax Center in Manhattan, New
York.

We set forth the length of the Instructors’ experience in the industry and with the franchisor below:

Instructor Years of Experience in the Years of Experience with the
Field Franchisor*
Daria Afanaseva 6 6
Andrea Schwartzman 9 5

*Includes years of experience with any of our affiliates.
The principal instructional materials will consist of the Operations Manual.

From time to time, we may provide and if we do, have the right to require that you attend ongoing
training programs, seminars, or webinars during the term of this Agreement, at your expense of $375 per
person per day if ongoing training is at our location, or $375 per person per day (plus hotel, air fare and
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other expenses incurred by our trainer) if ongoing training is at Franchisee’s location. We will not require
you to attend more than two (2) sessions in any calendar year. You will be responsible for all travel costs,
room and board and employees’ salaries incurred in connection with its attendance at such training. (Section
8.4 of the Franchise Agreement).

ITEM 12. TERRITORY

You must operate your Business within the specific location identified in your Franchise
Agreement. You are awarded a non-exclusive protected marketing territory (the “Territory”) that will
include a business area that will encompass the lesser of a 3-mile radius from your Sugaring NYC
Franchised Business or a land area with a population of 25,000 people. You will receive an exclusive
territory; however, You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from
other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. We use the US Census Bureau or other
data we deem reliable to determine population. We reserve the right to grant each franchisee a territory on
a case-by-case basis in order to account for the unique features of each geographic marketplace. You may
not conduct business at any other site or sites other than the Territory as described in your Franchise
Agreement, or any additional part of the Territory that may be added by an addendum attached to your
Franchise Agreement. While you must conduct your business at the primary location, you may also conduct
additional activities to sell products and/or provide services (for example at promotional events, charity
events, etc.), so long as such events are within your Territory.

You will receive an exclusive territory; however, You may face competition from other franchisees,
from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. Your
exclusive territory is not dependent upon achieving certain sales volumes, market penetration, or any other
contingency.

Your licensed Territory is determined by population, competition, traffic patterns, proximity to
major roads, demographics of the surrounding area, available parking, market penetration, and/or other
conditions important to the successful operation of a Sugaring NYC Business, as we deem appropriate and
as identified in your Franchise Agreement. We retain the right to delineate the exact bounds of your licensed
Territory once a primary location is chosen, and such Territory may be altered during the initial term, but
only by: (i) mutual consent of the parties as demonstrated in a writing signed by both parties; (ii) at the time
of transfer or renewal as a condition to transfer or renew; or (iii) for any default of this Agreement which
triggers Franchisor’s ability to terminate. Your Territory will also not be affected by the number of
customers you retain, products or services that you sell, your revenues, or your sales volume. Certain
locations, such as major metropolitan areas may have smaller territories due to the relative density of the
populated areas. You may not open your primary location in the Territory for your Business until we grant
you our explicit written permission.

You may not relocate your Business or establish additional locations within your Territory until we
grant you our explicit written consent, such consent to be given at our sole and absolute discretion. We will
base any such consent on traffic patterns at your proposed new location, a study of the local population,
and a review of your lease agreement.

We do not grant options, rights of first refusal, or similar rights to acquire additional territories.

If you want to establish more than one franchise with us, you must submit a separate application
for each such proposed franchise. You shall pay a $40,000 fee for each additional acquisition, and you must
further be in compliance with all other terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement. We must also
approve the location of any additional Location as contemplated in Items 11 and 12 above.
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The Territory described above will affect where you and other franchisees may solicit business.
You are encouraged to directly advertise and market for clients located within your Territory. Regardless
of any other rights you may have in the Territory, we maintain the right to service clients and sell services
and products to anyone from anywhere at our affiliate’s location without compensation to you. You are
prohibited from soliciting and/or marketing products and services outside of your respective Territory,
specifically including Target Marketing within the territory of another Sugaring NYC operation (including
competing franchises and/or a company/affiliate owned businesses). Target Marketing means a concerted
effort by a franchisee to solicit and obtain clients through any type of advertisement or marketing, directed
at all or a portion of another franchisee’s territory (“Target Marketing”). We will use commercially
reasonable efforts to enforce this requirement regarding Target Marketing if you or any other franchisee
violates it.

While the Franchise Agreement is in effect, and while you are not in breach thereof, we shall not
establish either a company-owned franchise nor license any other person or entity to locate a franchise
within your Territory. However, we make no guarantee or promise that you will not face competition from
other franchisees in other territories, from other outlets that we may own, or from other channels of
distribution or competitive brands that we control. We sell products and services through alternative
channels of distribution (such as online marketplaces). However, we will not permit other franchisees, or
company-owned outlets to make sales through alternative channels of distribution in your Territory. We
reserve the same right to sell products (including shipping such items) to anyone from anywhere without
compensation to you.

If during the term of the Franchise Agreement you are unable to promptly and properly service any
of your customers, you must refer such customers to another franchisee, company-owned business, or
directly to us. If you fail to refer off-site events or customers as stated here, we will have the right to
immediately terminate the Franchise Agreement. For any default of the Franchise Agreement, as an
alternative to termination, we may, at our sole and absolute discretion, unilaterally modify or completely
eliminate any rights that you may have with respect to the Territory, effective ten (10) days after delivery
of written notice to you. In addition, we may modify, or eliminate completely, the Territory. (Franchise
Agreement Section 2.4).

We encourage Sugaring NYC businesses, when owned by different individuals or entities, to work
out referral relationships and joint advertising strategies or arrangements if they are within close proximity
of each other (close proximity to be defined as any two territories which lie within a twenty-five (25) mile
radius of each other). We must be notified in writing of all such arrangements before they go into effect.

We have the exclusive right to negotiate and enter into agreements, or to approve the forms of
agreements, to sell services and/or products to any business or organization which owns, manages, controls
or otherwise does business in more than one geographic area whose presence is not confined within any
one particular franchisee’s territory, regardless of the contract amount of the products to be provided or
services to be performed (a “National Account”). After we sign a contract with a National Account, we
may, at our sole option, directly provide products or perform services to businesses under the National
Account contract, even if such sales or services would occur within your Territory, and without
compensation to you. At our sole option, we may direct you to provide services and/or products to any
National Account and/or direct the National Account to your Franchise for assistance.

We reserve the right to issue binding policies to coordinate marketing councils and/or advertising
cooperative programs. For example, we may require that all franchisees within close proximity participate
in local advertising programs or cooperatives. We will personally direct and coordinate all online and web
advertising for the Sugaring NYC business brand. All advertising programs, whether local, national,
international, online or physical, as well as any accompanying policies are our proprietary trade secrets and
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you shall make every effort to preserve their confidentiality. Such programs may refer acquired customers
to certain Territories or to certain designated franchisees at our discretion.

Any rights not expressly granted to you are reserved to us. Such rights reserved to us include, but
are not limited to:

1. Advertise, market, and sell products or services in your Territory;

2. Advertise, offer, and sell products and services through the internet via mobile app and/or
other related venues, no matter where the customer is based, to brand the System and/or fulfill the demand
in your Territory;

3. Sell, offer, or distribute products or services to anyone from anywhere through any
alternative or other channels of distribution other than local facilities providing art-related services and
products under the Marks and System, and on any terms and conditions we deem appropriate. We retain
this right whether or not we are using the Marks or System, or are acting inside or outside the Territory
designated on your Franchise Agreement;

4. Develop, manufacture, and/or distribute any labeled products or services that have been
branded with our Mark or logo, or any different brand of products or equipment through any outlet located
anywhere (including, by way of illustration, discount warehouses, retail stores, online marketplaces, and/or
similar venues) and on any terms and conditions we deem appropriate. If we decide to develop and/or
distribute products or services, you will receive no compensation from us for such sales inside your
Territory, unless we have agreed otherwise in another signed writing;

5. Implement advertising cooperative programs which may allow us or others to offer art
related products, services, and/or equipment to anyone from any designated franchise or company owned
outlet. We also reserve the right to issue mandatory policies to coordinate such advertising cooperative
programs;

6. Own and/or operate, or authorize others to own and/or operate, (a) any business located
outside the Territory designated in your Franchise Agreement, whether or not such business shall use the
Marks and/or System; (b) any business anywhere, whether or not they shall use the Marks and/or System,
which is not substantially similar to the business franchised to you under the Franchise Agreement; and/or
(c) any business anywhere which does not use the Marks; and

7. Acquire, merge, affiliate with, or engage in any transaction with other businesses (whether
competitive or not), located anywhere, including arrangements in which we are acquired and/or us or our
franchised businesses (including your own Business) are converted to another format, or if we acquire a
similar business which will be maintained under the System or otherwise. You will fully participate in any
conversion related to merger or acquisition, whether initiated by us or a third party, and we will reimburse
you for reasonable costs directly related to such conversion.

We are not responsible for paying any compensation to you concerning the sale of services over
the internet or other similar venues, by alternative means of distribution, advertising cooperative programs,
outlets, businesses that are or are not substantially similar to the Franchised Business, or any business that
does not use the Marks. For clarity, the Franchise Agreement grants you no rights to offer and/or provide
services and products, through any alternative channels of distribution (other than our approved list of
channels of distribution) without our express permission or share in any of the proceeds from our activities
through alternative channels of distribution.
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We have not established, and do not presently intend to establish, other franchises or company-
owned businesses, except as disclosed in Item 1 of this Franchise Disclosure Document, that offer similar
services or products under a trade name or trademark different than the Marks.

Area Developers:

Under the Area Development Agreement (the “ADA”), you will develop, open and operate multiple
Sugaring NYC Businesses within a defined Development Area (the “Development Area”). We determine
the Development Area using the same criteria that we use in deciding the Territory for a Business. However,
the Development Area must be able to support the number of Businesses you intend to establish in that
area. As a result, the Development Area generally consists of a portion of a city, county, or designated
market area. Your Development Area will be described in the ADA before you sign it.

Subject to your compliance with the ADA and all Franchise Agreements, we will not develop or
operate, or grant anyone else to develop or operate a Sugaring NYC business in your Development Area.
Subject to your compliance with the ADA, the continuation of territorial exclusivity is not dependent upon
achieving certain sales volumes, market penetration, or any other contingency. The reserved rights and
limitations described above regarding what we and our affiliates can and cannot do in a franchisee’s
Territory for a single Franchise are generally the same for the Development Area under the ADA. In
addition, we and our affiliates have the right to continue to own and operate, and allow others to own and
operate, currently operating Sugaring NYC businesses existing inside your Development Area as of the
date you sign the ADA.

You will receive an exclusive territory; however, You may face competition from other franchisees,
from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

You have no right of first refusal or similar rights to acquire additional franchises or establish
additional Businesses that are not in your Development Area. In addition, you will not be entitled to a right
of first refusal for any territories that are immediately adjacent to your own which are not in your
Development Area. If you wish to obtain an additional location, it must be included in your Development
Schedule and you will be required to enter into a separate Franchise Agreement for such location.

Upon expiration or termination of the ADA, we will be entitled to develop and operate, or to
franchise to others the right to develop and operate, Sugaring NYC Businesses in the Development Area,
except within any Territory under any Franchise Agreement between us and you that has not been
terminated.

We may terminate the ADA if you: (i) fail to comply with the Development Schedule; (ii) make or
attempt to make a transfer or assignment in violation of the ADA; (iii) fail to comply with any terms and
conditions of the ADA; (iv) fail to comply with any terms and conditions of any individual Franchise
Agreement or any other agreement to which you and we or our affiliates are parties, and do not cure such
failure within the applicable cure period (regardless of whether we in fact terminate such Franchise
Agreement or any other agreement). For any default of the ADA, as an alternative to termination, we may,
at our sole and absolute discretion: (i) modify or completely eliminate any territorial rights that you may
have with respect to your Development Area and either operate or grant others to operate businesses within
the Development Area; or (ii) reduce the Development Area and Development Schedule to a size and
magnitude that we estimate you are capable of operating otherwise in accordance with the ADA (Area
Development Agreement Section 7).

ITEM 13. TRADEMARKS
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You receive the right to operate your business under the name “Sugaring NYC” which is the
primary Mark used to identify our System per the limitations in the Franchise Agreement and/or Operations
Manual. You may also use any other current or future Marks to operate your franchised business that we
designate, including the logo on the front of this Disclosure Document and the service mark listed below.
By “Mark,” we mean any trade name, trademark, service mark or logo used to identify your business. We
have filed for the registration of the following Mark in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”)

Principal Register:

PRINCIPAL OR
MARK REGISTRATION | REGISTRATION SUPPLEMENT
NUMBER DATE REGISTER OF THE
USPTO
SUGARING NYC 4957645 May 10, 2016 Supplemental
SUGARING NYC 6620812 January 18, 2022 Principal
5548976 August 28, 2018 Principal

In addition, we have applied for the registration of the following Mark in the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office (“USPTO”) Principal Register:

MARK

SERIAL NUMBER
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SWEET GLIDE 97535071 August 4, 2022 N/A

We have filed all required affidavits and renewals.

We have two license agreements dated December 1, 2017 for the use of our trademarks. We have
a license agreement with our Affiliate, Sugaring USA LLC, for the use and sublicensing of the word Mark
“Sugaring NYC” to our franchisees for use in operating Sugaring NYC businesses. We have a license
agreement with our CEO, Mr. Nartov, for the use and sublicensing of the design mark shown above to our
franchisees for use in operating Sugaring NYC businesses. Both license agreements are perpetual in
duration and may be terminated upon a material breach not remedied after 30 days’ written notice. If the
License Agreement was terminated, you could lose the right to use the trademarks licensed to us under the
License Agreement. There are no other agreements currently in effect that significantly limit our rights to
use or license the use of the Marks in any manner material to the franchise.

We do not have a federal registration for our principal trademark. Therefore, our trademark does
not have many legal benefits and rights as a federally registered trademark. If our right to use the trademark
is challenged, you may have to change to an alternative trademark, which may increase your expenses.

There are no currently effective determinations of the USPTO, the Trademark Trial and Appeal
Board, or any state trademark administrator or any court; or any pending infringement, opposition, or
cancellation proceeding in which we unsuccessfully sought to prevent registration of a trademark in order
to protect a trademark licensed by the franchisor. There is no pending material federal or state court
litigation regarding our use or ownership rights in a trademark.

We know of no infringing or prior superior uses that could materially affect the use of the Marks.

You do not receive any rights to the Marks other than the right to use them in the operation of your
Franchised Business. You must follow our rules when you use the Marks. You must use the Marks as the
sole trade identification of the franchised business. You cannot use any Mark or portion of any Mark as
part of any business entity name. You may not use any Mark in connection with the sale of any unauthorized
services or products, or in any other manner that we do not authorize in writing. Y ou must obtain a fictitious
or assumed name registration if required by your state or local law. Any unauthorized use of the Marks by
you is a breach of the Franchise Agreement and an infringement of our rights in the Marks. You must not
contest the validity or ownership of the Marks, including any Marks that we license to you after you sign
the Franchise Agreement. You must not assist any other person in contesting the validity or ownership of
the Marks.

You must immediately notify us in writing when you learn about any claim of infringement, unfair
competition, or similar claims about the Marks. You must not communicate with any person other than us
and our counsel regarding any infringements, challenges or claims unless you are legally required to do so.
however, you may communicate with your own counsel at your own expense. We are not required to take
affirmative action when notified of these uses or claims. We have the sole right to control any administrative
or judicial proceeding involving a trademark licensed by us. The Franchise Agreement does not require us
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to participate in your defense or indemnify you for expenses or damages if you are a party to an
administrative or judicial proceeding involving a trademark licensed by us to you or if the proceeding is
resolved unfavorable to you. You must take any actions that, in the opinion of our counsel, may be
advisable to protect and maintain our interests in any proceeding or to otherwise protect and maintain our
interests in the Marks.

If we require, you must modify or discontinue the use of any Mark and use other trademarks or
service marks we designate. We do not have to reimburse you for modifying or discontinuing the use of a
Mark or for substituting another trademark or service mark for a discontinued Mark. If we adopt and use
new or modified Marks, you must add or replace equipment, supplies and fixtures, and you must make
other modifications we designate as necessary to adapt your franchised business for the new or modified
Marks. We do not reimburse you for any loss of goodwill associated with a modified or discontinued Mark.

You must notify us if you apply for your own trademark or service mark registrations. You must
not register or seek to register as a trademark or service mark, either with the USPTO or any state or foreign
country, any of the Marks or a trademark or service mark that is confusingly similar to any of our Marks.

ITEM 14. PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

No patents are material to the franchise. We own copyrights in the Operations Manual, our website,
our marketing materials, training manuals or videos, and other copyrightable items that are part of the
System. While we claim copyrights in these and similar items, we have not registered these copyrights with
the United States Register of Copyrights. You may use these items only as we specify while operating the
Franchised Business and you must stop using them if we direct you to do so.

We do not have an obligation to protect the copyrights or to defend you against claims arising from
your use of the copyrighted items. You must notify us if any claim for copyright infringement is brought
against you over materials in which we claim a copyright. We have the right to control litigation over our
copyrights. We are not required to participate in your defense of indemnify you for expenses and damages
in a proceeding involving a copyright licensed to you. Your rights in the franchise agreement would
continue if we require you to modify or discontinue using the subject matter covered by the copyright.

We know of no effective determinations of the U.S. Copyright Office or any court regarding any
of our copyrighted materials. Our right to use or license copyrighted items is not materially limited by any
agreement or known infringing use.

We have developed certain trade secrets and other confidential information, including methods of
business management, sales and promotion techniques, and know-how, knowledge of, and experience in,
operating a Sugaring NYC Business. We will provide our trade secrets and other confidential information
to you during training, in the Operations Manual and as a result of the assistance we furnish you during the
term of the franchise. You may only use the trade secrets and other confidential information for the purpose
of operating your Franchised Business. You may only divulge trade secrets and/or other confidential
information to employees who must have access to it to operate the Franchised Business. You are
responsible for enforcing the confidentiality provisions as to your employees.

Certain individuals with access to trade secrets or other confidential information, including your
shareholders (and members of their immediate families and households), officers, directors, partners,
members, if you are a corporation, limited liability company or other business entity, and your managers,
executives, employees and staff may be required to sign nondisclosure and non-competition agreements in
a form the same as or similar to the Nondisclosure and Non-Competition Agreement attached to the
Franchise Agreement. We will be a third-party beneficiary with the right to enforce those agreements.
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All ideas, concepts, techniques or materials concerning the franchised business and/or the System,
whether or not protectable intellectual property and whether created by or for you or your owners or
employees, must be promptly disclosed to us and will be deemed our sole and exclusive property and a part
of the System that we may choose to adopt and/or disclose to other franchisees, and you agree to assign to
us all right, title and interest in any intellectual property so developed without additional compensation to
you. Likewise, we will disclose to you concepts and developments of other franchisees that we make part
of the System. You must also assist us in obtaining intellectual property rights in any concept or
development if requested.

Your use of the Operations Manual, trade secrets or other confidential information in an
unauthorized manner is a default of the Franchise Agreement that may result in automatic termination of
the Franchise Agreement. Further information about termination of the Franchise Agreement following a
default is included in Item 17.

ITEM 15. OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE
FRANCHISE BUSINESS

Either the Franchisee or its on-site Designated Manager must devote sufficient efforts to the
management of the day-to-day operations of the Franchised Business, but not less than forty (40) hours per
week. While you have the right to select any Designated Manager, we retain the right to accept or reject
any proposed individual or entity as the Designated Manager. You will be responsible for the compensation
to any individual or entity you contract to act as the Designated Manager of the Business, you have the sole
legal responsibility for any dispute relating to such individual or entity. We maintain the right to require
any approved Designated Manager to attend and satisfactorily complete our initial training program before
opening the Business. You must keep us informed at all times of the identity of your Designated Manager.
If you must replace the Designated Manager, your replacement Designated Manager must be approved by
us within 60 days, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld — we may additionally require such
replacement Designated Manager to attend and complete our training program at your expense.

As described in ITEM 14, certain individuals associated with your Franchised Business, including
your owners (and members of their immediate families and households), officers, directors, partners, and
your managers, executives, employees, and staff may be required to sign nondisclosure and non-
competition agreements the same as or similar to the Nondisclosure and Non-Competition Agreement
attached to the Franchise Agreement. We will be a third-party beneficiary with the independent right to
enforce the agreements. In order to be considered in compliance, you must fulfill all Franchisee-required
obligations, including, but not limited to, financial, operational, and administrative obligations.

If you are a corporation or other business entity, anyone who owns a 5% or greater interest in the
entity must personally guarantee the performance of all of your obligations under the Franchise Agreement
and agree to be personally liable for your breach of the Franchise Agreement by signing the Unlimited
Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations attached to the Franchise Agreement. This does not apply to
spouses of franchisees, unless such spouse owns a 5% or greater interest in the entity.

ITEM 16. RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer and sell all the services and products we specify. You may not sell any services or
products that we have not authorized and you must discontinue offering any services or products that we
may disapprove of. We may take action, including terminating your franchise if you purchase or sell
unapproved products or make purchases from unapproved suppliers. We may periodically change required
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or authorized services or products. There are no limits on our right to do so, except that your investment
required to change required or authorized products or services will not be unreasonably disproportionate to
your initial investment.

Periodically, we may allow certain services or products that are not otherwise authorized for general
use as a part of the System to be offered locally or regionally based on factors, including test marketing,
your qualifications, and regional or local differences.

We do not place restrictions on you with respect to who may be a customer of your Franchised
Business.
ITEM 17. RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should
read these provisions in the agreement attached to this Disclosure Document.

SECTION IN FRANCHISE
PROVISION OR OTHER AGREEMENT SUMMARY

FA: The initial term is 10 years.
ADA: Term is the date the last
Location is required to be opened
according to the Development
Schedule.
FA: You have the right to renew
for additional ten (10) year terms
by entering into a then current
franchise agreement with us,
which may contain materially
different terms and conditions
that your original franchise
agreement. You must pay the
renewal fee of $5,000. If you do
not meet the conditions, we may
refuse to renew or extend the
terms  of your  Franchise
Agreement.
FA: You may renew the
Franchise Agreement if you:
have fully complied with the
provisions of the Franchise
Agreement; have made capital
FA: Section 4.2 expenditures as necessary to
ADA: Not Applicable maintain uniformity with the
System; have satisfied all
monetary obligations owed to us
or any of our affiliates; are not in
default of any provision of the
Franchise Agreement or any

a. Length of Franchise FA: Section 4.1
Term ADA: Section 5

b. Renewal or Extension FA: Section 4.2
of Term ADA: Not Applicable

c. Requirements for
Franchisee to Renew or
Extend
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other agreement between you
and us; have given timely written
notice of your intent to renew;
sign a current Franchise
Agreement, with  materially
different terms and conditions
than your original Franchise
Agreement; comply with current
qualifications and agree to
comply with any training
requirements; sign a general
release (subject to applicable
state law) in a form we proscribe,
and pay a renewal fee of $5,000.

Termination by you

FA: Section 16.1
Not Applicable

FA: You may terminate the
Franchise Agreement under any
ground permitted by law.

ADA: You may terminate upon
any ground permitted by law.

Termination by
Franchisor without
Cause

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

f.

Termination by
Franchisor with Cause

FA: Section 16.2
ADA: Section 7, 8(F)

FA: We may terminate the
Franchise Agreement only if you
default. If we terminate the
Franchise Agreement following
a default, your interest in the
franchise will terminate.

ADA: We may terminate the
ADA if you default. If we
terminate, you may maintain
your Locations if you have
opened at least 50% of the
Locations required under the
Development Schedule. If you
have not opened at least 50% of
the required Locations, your
interest in the franchises will
terminate.

g.

“Cause” Defined —
Curable Defaults

FA: Section 16.2.2
ADA: Section 7(B)

FA: If a default arises from your
failure to comply with a
mandatory specification in the
Franchise Agreement or
Operations Manual, you can
avoid termination of the
Franchise Agreement if you cure
the default within 30 days of
receiving our notice of default,
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except for the defaults that
require cure in a shorter time and
non-curable defaults. If a default
arises from your failure to
maintain insurance, you can
avoid termination of the
Franchise Agreement if you cure
the default within 10 days of
receiving our notice of your
failure to maintain insurance. If a
default arises from your failure to
make payments due to us, you
can avoid termination of the
Franchise Agreement if you cure
the default within 5 days of
receiving our notice of default. If
we terminate the Franchise
Agreement following a default,
your interest in the franchise will
terminate.

ADA: You shall have a 30-day
cure period if you are in default

h.

“Cause” Defined — Non-
Curable Defaults

FA: Section 16.2.1
ADA: Section 7(B)

of any term of the ADA.
FA: We have the right to
terminate the Franchise

Agreement without giving you
an opportunity to cure if you: fail
to timely establish, equip and
begin  operations of  the
franchised business; fail to
satisfactorily complete training;
fail to maintain all required
professional licenses, permits
and certifications for more than 5
business days; made a material
misrepresentation or omission in
the application for the franchise;
are convicted of or plead no
contest to a felony or other crime
or offense likely to affect the
reputation of either party or the
Franchised Business; after notice
to cure, fail to refrain from
activities, behavior or conduct
likely to adversely affect either
party or the Franchised Business;
use the Operations Manual, trade

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document

37




secrets or other confidential
information in an unauthorized
manner; if required, fail to have
your owners (and members of
their immediate families and
households), officers, directors,
managers, other executives,
employees and professional
staff, and other individuals
having access to trade secrets or
other confidential information
sign nondisclosure and non-
competition agreements or, if
requested, fail to provide us with
copies of all signed
nondisclosure and non-compete
agreements; abandon the
Franchised Business for 5 or
more consecutive days;
surrender or transfer control of
the Franchised Business in an
unauthorized manner; fail to
maintain the Franchised
Business under the supervision
of a Designated Manager
following  your death or
disability; submit reports on 2 or
more separate occasions
understating any amounts due by
more than 2%; are insolvent;
misuse or make unauthorized use
of the Marks; fail on 2 or more
occasions within any 12 months
to submit reports or records or to
pay any fees due us or any
affiliate; violate on 2 or more
occasions any health, safety or
other laws or operate the
Franchised Business in a manner
creating a health or safety hazard
to customers, employees or the
public; take any action reserved
to us; fail to comply with
applicable law after notice;
repeatedly breach the franchise
agreement or comply with
specifications; or default under
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any other agreement with us (or
an affiliate) so that we (or the
affiliate) have the right to
terminate the agreement.

ADA: We have the right to
terminate the ADA if (i) you
become insolvent, (ii) you fail to
meet the development
obligations in the Development
Schedule attached as Appendix
B, (iii) failure to start substantial
construction of any of the
Locations by the date established
in Section 4.C (iv) failure to
secure  financing for  the
construction of any of the
Locations by the date in Section
4.C (v) you fail to comply with
any other provision of this
Agreement and do not correct the
failure within 30 days after
written notice of that failure is
delivered to you, or (vi) we have
delivered to you a notice of
termination of a Franchise
Agreement in accordance with
its terms and conditions.

i.  Franchisee’s
Obligations on
Termination/Non-
Renewal

FA: Section 17.1
ADA: Section 8

FA and ADA: If the Franchise
Agreement is terminated or not
renewed, you must: stop
operating the Franchised
Business; stop using any trade
secrets, confidential information,
the System and the Marks; cancel
or assign to us any assumed
names; pay all sums owed to us
including damages and costs
incurred in  enforcing the
Franchise Agreement; return the
Operations Manual, trade secrets
and all other confidential
information; assign your
telephone and facsimile numbers
to us; comply with the covenants
not to compete and any other
surviving provisions of the
Franchise Agreement.
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j-  Assignment of Contract
by Franchisor

FA: Section 18.1
ADA: Section 9(A)

FA and ADA: There are no
restrictions on our right to assign
our interest in the Franchise
Agreement.

k. “Transfer” by
Franchisee — Definition

FA: Section 18.2
ADA: Section 9(B)

FA: “Transfer” includes transfer
of an interest in the franchise, the
Franchise Agreement or the
Franchised Business’ assets.
ADA: “Transfer” means any
sale, assignment, gift, pledge,
mortgage or any  other
encumbrance,  transfer by
bankruptcy, transfer by judicial
order, merger, consolidation,
share exchange, transfer by
operation of law or otherwise,
whether direct or indirect,
voluntary or involuntary, of this
Agreement or any interest in it,
or any rights or obligations
arising under it, or of any
material portion of your assets, or
of any interest in you.

. Franchisor’s Approval
of Transfer by
Franchisee

FA: Section 18.2
ADA: Section 9(B)

FA and ADA: You may not
transfer your interest in any of
the items listed in (k) above
without our prior written
consent. If Franchisee is in
compliance with this Agreement,
Franchisor’s consent to such
transfer shall be conditioned
upon the satisfaction of the
requirements in FA Section 18.2

(a)-(m).

m. Conditions for
Franchisor Approval of
Transfer

FA: Section 18.2
ADA: Section 9(E)

FA: We will consent to a transfer
if: we have not exercised our
right of first refusal; all
obligations owed to us are paid;
you and the transferee have
signed a general release (subject
to applicable state law) in a form
we proscribe; the prospective
transferee meets our business
and financial standards; the
transferee and all persons
owning any interest in the
transferee sign the then current
Franchise = Agreement; you
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provide us with a copy of all
contracts and agreements related
to the transfer; you or the
transferee pay a fee of the greater
of 10% of the franchise sales
price or 25% of our then-current
initial  franchise fee; the
transferee or the owners of
transferee have agreed to be
personally bound by all
provisions of the Franchise
Agreement; the transferee has
obtained all necessary consents
and approvals of third parties;
you or all of your equity owners
have signed a non-competition
agreement in a form the same as
or similar to the Nondisclosure
and Non-Competition attached to
the Franchise Agreement; and
the transferee has agreed that it
will complete the initial training
program  before  assuming
management of the franchised
business.

ADA: You may only Transfer
your rights and interests under
this Agreement if you obtain our
prior written consent and you
transfer all of your rights and
interests under all Franchise
Agreements for Locations in the
Development  Territory and
provided the transferee meets the
conditions in the ADA, including
good moral standing and
completion of the initial training.

n. Franchisor’s Right of
First Refusal to Acquire

Business

FA: Section 19

Franchisee’s Franchised ADA: Sections 8(F) and 9(C)

FA and ADA: We may match an
offer for your Franchised
Business or an ownership
interest you propose to sell.

o. Franchisor’s Option to
Purchase Franchisee’s
Franchised Business

FA: Section 17.4
ADA: Section 8(F)

FA: Except as described in (n)
above, we do not have the right
to purchase your franchised
business; however, during the
30-day period after the
termination or expiration of the
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Franchise Agreement, we have
the right to purchase any assets of
the franchised business for book
value.

ADA: In the event of termination
of the ADA, and provided that
you have not developed at least
50% of the required Locations
according to the Development
Schedule, we have the right to
purchase all of your Locations at
book value.

p- Death or disability of
Franchisee

FA: Section 18.6
ADA: Section 9(D)

FA: After the death or incapacity
of an owner of the franchise, his
or her representative must
transfer, subject to the terms of
the Franchise Agreement, the
individual’s interest in the
franchise within 180 days of
death or incapacity or we may
terminate the Franchise
Agreement.

ADA: After the death or
incapacity of an owner of the
developer, his or her
representative must transfer,
subject to the terms of the ADA,
the individual’s interest in the
ADA within 6 months of death or
incapacity.

q. Non-Competition
Covenants During the
Term of the Franchise

FA: Section 7.3
ADA: Not Applicable

FA: You, your owners (and
members of their families and
households) and your officers,
directors, executives, managers,
professional staff, and
employees are prohibited from:
attempting to divert any business
or customer of the Franchised
Business to a competitive
business or causing injury or
prejudice to the Marks or the
System; owning or working for a
competitive business.

r.  Non-Competition
Covenants After the
Franchise is Terminated
or Expires

FA: Section 17.2
ADA: Not Applicable

FA: For 2 years after the
termination or expiration of the
Franchise Agreement, you may
not offer competitive business
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services within 25 miles of any
other Sugaring NYC Business, or
planned expansion thereof, or of
any other Franchisor owned
business; or soliciting or
influencing any of our customers
or business associates to compete
with us or terminate their
relationship with us. Subject to
applicable state law.

s. Modification of the
Agreement

FA: Sections 9.2, 22.7, and 22.8
ADA: Sections 10(B) and 10(E)

FA: The Franchise Agreement
can be modified only by written
agreement between you and us.
We may modify the Operations
Manual without your consent if
the modification does not
materially alter your
fundamental rights.

ADA: The ADA can be modified
only by written agreement
between you and us.

t. Integration/Merger
Clause

FA: Section 22.7
ADA: Section 10(J)

FA and ADA: Only the terms of
the  Franchise = Agreement,
Development Agreement, and
other related written agreements
are binding (subject to state law).
No other representations or
promises will be binding.
Nothing in the Franchise
Agreement, Development
Agreement, or in any other
related written agreement is
intended to disclaim
representations made in the
franchise disclosure document.

u. Dispute Resolution by
Arbitration or Mediation

FA: Section 23.9; Schedules 2
and 3
ADA: Section 10(F); Appendix
E

FA and ADA: You must mediate
and arbitrate claims against us
(subject to applicable state law).

FA: Section 23.2; Schedules 2

FA and ADA: Any mediation,
litigation or arbitration must be

. and 3 .
v. Choice of Forum ADA: Section 10(F) and pursyed in Pe}lm Beach C(.)unty,
. Florida (subject to applicable

Appendix E

state law).

. FA: Section 23.1; Schedules2 | FA and ADA: Except as to
w. Choice of Law .

and 3 claims governed by federal law,
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ADA: Section 10(F); Appendix
E(1)

Florida law applies

applicable state law).

(subject to

ITEM 18. PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not currently use any public figures to promote our franchise.

ITEM 19. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for
the information, and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at
a particular franchised location or under particular circumstances.

FPR #1: 2023 Historic Company-Store Financial Performance

In the first table below, you will find the gross sales for calendar year 2023 for our Affiliate
locations which operated the entire year or almost the entire 2023 calendar year.

As of December 31, 2023, we had 10 Affiliate outlets of which 9 operated the entire 2023 calendar
year, which reported financial results as follows:

Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
. from Pre- Total

Center from from from from from Gift s 1
. . Paid Gift | Gross Sales

Services Products | Memberships | Packages Cards Cards
Boston $375,276.47 | $3,050.65 $18,930.00 $4,645.00 | $1,325.00 $60.00 $403,287.12
Chicago | $249,063.70 | $2,138.99 $23,718.08 $3,601.25 $960 $0.00 $279,482.02
Miami $169,872.67 | $6,741.89 $17,626.75 $675 $1,156.35 $0.00 $196,072.66
Astoria | $567,916.90 | $9,067.81 $80,818.83 $27,037.03 | $2,846.58 $45.00 $687,732.15
C(zl;rr:ll;us $397,882.43 | $6,336.40 $32,203.10 $7,954.40 | $1,500.00 $0.00 $445,876.33
Midtown | $334,049.97 | $3,454.95 $15,688.98 $1,917.57 | $2,190.00 $36.58 $357,338.05
Park Slope | $664,499.13 | $9,980.99 $47,851.17 $6,865.62 | $3,361.58 $80.99 $732,639.48
;’:3;:2 $650,412.97 | $10,468.13 $51,242.63 $10,977.68 | $2,960.00 $0.00 $726,061.41
Ei‘t’%‘?ge $584,303.86 | $7.956.67 | $4423895 | $8.427.88 | $2.275.00 | $0.00 | $647,202.36

Average Median High Low
$482,923.34 $424,581.73 $732,639.48 $196,072.66
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FPR #2: 2023 Historic Franchised-Store Financial Performance

In the second table below, you will find the gross sales for calendar year 2023 for our Franchised
locations which operated the entire year or almost the entire 2023 calendar year- (i.e.. 50 or more weeks).

In the year ending December 31, 2023, eurwe had 56 franchisees that operated for the entire 2023
calendar year, of which 34 were performing in compliance with our system standards reported financial
results as follows:

Average

Median

High

Low

$426,782.41

$377,305.20

$902,949.81

$181,089.09

Of these units, 13 (or 38.2%) attained or surpassed the average sales resulted stated in this FPR.

For the purposes of this Item 19, “in compliance with our system standards” means operating pursuant to
the Operations Manual and Franchise Agreement, including spending the required amount of advertising
submitting monthly reports, and paying royalties in a timely manner.

FPR #3: 2022 Historic Company-Store Financial Performance

In the third table below, you will find the gross sales for calendar year 2022 for our Affiliate
locations which operated the entire year or almost the entire 2022 calendar year.

As of December 31, 2022, we had 10 Affiliate outlets of which 10 operated the entire 2022 calendar
year, which reported financial results as follows:

Average

Median

High

Low

$497,385.29

$497,371.52

$714,192.67

$184,952.03

Of these units, six (or 60%) attained or surpassed the average sales resulted stated in this FPR.

FPR #4: 2022 Historic Franchised-Store Financial Performance

In the fourth table below, you will find the gross sales for calendar year 2022 for our Franchised
locations which operated the entire year or almost the entire 2022 calendar year.

As of December 31, 2022, we had 30 Franchised outlets of which 25 operated the entire 2022

calendar year, following the franchise system, which reported financial results as follows:

Average

Median

High

Low

$436,456.63

$392,089.87

$836,367.16

$106,637.19

Of these units, 11 (or 44%) attained or surpassed the average sales resulted stated in this FPR.

In 2022, we had 5 franchisees that did not comply with system standards for more than 10% of the fiscal
year and, as such, are excluded from this Item 19 as non-complying franchisees.
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2021 Historic Financial Performance-Franchised Store Outlets

# of outlets that attained % of oflﬂets that
Outlet Gross Sales or surpassed the stated attained or
result surpassed the stated

result
Lincoln Park, Illinois $968,567 1 9%
Memphis, Tennessee $817,982 2 18%
Bedford, New Hampshire $653,617 3 27%
Dallas (Flower Mound), Texas $644,226 4 36%
Gig Harbor, Washington $608,881 5 45%
Katy, Texas $599.,544 6 54%
Springdale, Arkansas $583,786 7 63%
Northville, Michigan $529.,870 8 72%
North Miami, Florida $522,526 9 81%
Hoover, Alabama $423,408 10 90%
Daytona, Florida $306,193 11 100%

FPR #5: 2021 Historic Company-Store Financial Performance

In the fifth table below, you will find the gross sales for calendar year 2021 for our Affiliate
locations which operated the entire year or almost the entire 2021 calendar year.

As of December 31, 2021, we had 9 Affiliate outlets of which 9 operated the entire 2021 calendar
year, including:

Union Square, New York (opened May 2018)
Midtown, New York (opened March 2015)
Upper East Side, New York (opened May 2019)
Columbus, New York (opened January 2017)
Astoria, New York (opened January 2019)
Brooklyn, New York (opened January 2020)
Chicago, Illinois (opened November 2017)
Boston, Massachusetts (opened April 2017)

West Palm Beach, Florida (opened January 2020)

Material financial and operational differences between the affiliated company outlets and a franchise outlet:
There are no material operational differences between the company outlets whose results are reported in
the tables below and a franchise outlet that a franchisee would operate, except age of outlet. The company
outlets and a franchisee outlet would offer the same goods and services to the same client base. However,
the company outlets have operated varying periods of time as set forth above. In addition, there are financial
differences. A franchised outlet would incur Royalties (5% of Gross Sales), Local Advertising
Requirements (2% of Gross Sales), and National Ad Fund Fees (1% of Gross Sales).
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2021 Historic Financial Performance-Affiliate Company Store Outlets

. % of outlets that
Outlet Gross Sales # of outlets that attained or att:i)ned or surpassed
surpassed the stated result

the stated result
Union Square $982,336 1 11%
Upper East Side $844,701 2 22%
Astoria $744,409 3 33%
Brooklyn $741,778 4 44%
Midtown $600,469 5 55%
Columbus $512,692 6 67%
Chicago, Illinois $492,130 7 78%
Boston, Massachusetts $451,594 8 89%
West Palm Beach, Florida $376,783 9 100%

FPR #6: 2021 Historic Franchised-Store Financial Performance

In the sixth table below, you will find the gross sales for calendar year 2021 for our Franchised
locations which operated the entire year or almost the entire 2021 calendar year.

As of December 31, 2022, we had 11 Franchised outlets of which 11 operated the entire 2021
calendar year, including:

e Hoover, Alabama

e Lincoln Park, Illinois

e Daytona, Florida

e Gig Harbor, Washington

e Katy, Texas

e Memphis, Tennessee

e Bedford, New Hampshire

e North Miami, Florida

e Northville, Michigan

e Springdale, Arkansas

e Dallas, Texas

2021 Historic Financial Performance-Franchised Store Outlets
# of outlets that attained % :ftg;l;lti;sozhat
Outlet Gross Sales or surpassed the stated
result surpassed the stated
result

Lincoln Park, Illinois $968,567 1 9%
Memphis, Tennessee $817,982 2 18%
Bedford, New Hampshire $653,617 3 27%
Dallas (Flower Mound), Texas $644,226 4 36%
Gig Harbor, Washington $608,881 5 45%
Katy, Texas $599,544 6 54%
Springdale, Arkansas $583,786 7 63%
Northville, Michigan $529,870 8 72%
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North Miami, Florida $522,526 9 81%

Hoover, Alabama $423,408 10 90%

Daytona, Florida $306,193 11 100%

FPR #7: 2020 Historic Company-Store Financial Performance

In the seventh table below, you will find the gross sales for calendar year 2020 for our Affiliate
locations which operated the entire year or almost the entire 2020 calendar year.

As of December 31, 2020, we had 8 Affiliate outlets of which 8 operated the entire 2020 calendar
year, including:

Union Square, New York (opened May 2018)
Midtown, New York (opened March 2015)
Chicago, Illinois (opened November 2017)
Boston, Massachusetts (opened April 2017)
Upper East Side, New York (opened May 2019)
Columbus, New York (opened January 2017)
Astoria, New York (opened January 2019)
Downtown, New York (opened December 2015)

Material financial and operational differences between the affiliated company outlets and a franchise outlet:
There are no material operational differences between the company outlets whose results are reported in
the tables below and a franchise outlet that a franchisee would operate, except age of outlet. The company
outlets and a franchisee outlet would offer the same goods and services to the same client base. However,
the company outlets have operated varying periods of time as set forth above. In addition, there are financial
differences. A franchised outlet would incur Royalties (5% of Gross Sales), Local Advertising
Requirements (2% of Gross Sales), and National Ad Fund Fees (1% of Gross Sales).
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2020 Historic Financial Performance-Affiliate Company Store Outlets

# of outlets that attained % of oflﬂets that
Outlet Gross Sales or surpassed the stated attained or
surpassed the stated
result result
Brooklyn $265,118 8 100.00%
Upper East Side $286,985 7 87.50%
Columbus $292,194 6 75.00%
Astoria $293,039 5 62.50%
Boston $306,997 4 50.00%
Chicago $369,134 3 37.50%
Midtown $376,744 2 25.00%
Union Square $472,366 1 12.50%

FPR #8: 2020 Historic Franchised-Store Financial Performance

In the eighth table below, you will find the gross sales for calendar year 2020 for our Franchised
locations which operated the entire year or almost the entire 2020 calendar year.

As of December 31, 2020, we had 12 Franchised outlets of which 2 operated the entire 2020

calendar year, including:

e  Gig Harbor, Washington

e Memphis, Tennessee

The remaining 10 franchisees did not operate for the entire 2020 calendar year, in light of the COVID-19

pandemic.
2020 Historic Financial Performance-Franchised Store Outlets
0,
# of outlets that attained % :{tg?lfie:i);hat
Outlet Gross Sales or surpassed the stated
surpassed the stated
result

result
Gig Harbor, Washington $182,516 2 100%
Memphis, Tennessee $431,957 1 50%

Notes Applicable to all tables:

Gross Sales: “Gross Sales” means total revenue derived from the sale of goods or services less
sales tax, discounts, allowances, and returns.

For the purposes of this Item 19, a conforming location is one that fulfills all Franchisee-required
obligations, including, but not limited to, financial, operational, and administrative obligations.

The financial performance representation figures do not reflect the costs of sales, operating

expenses, or other costs or expenses that must be deducted from the gross revenue or gross sales figures to

obtain your net income or profit.

s e
Franchise Disclosure Document, may be one source of this information.
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Written substantiation for this financial performance representation is available to you upon
reasonable written request.

Some outlets have earned these amounts. Your individual results may differ. There is no
assurance that you will earn as much.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make any financial
performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such
representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide
you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or
projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting
Dmytro Nartov, 1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409, 805-216-6071;
the Federal Trade Commission; and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20. OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
TABLE 1

SYSTEMWIDE OUTLET SUMMARY
FOR YEARS 2021 TO 2023

Outlet Type Year Startof the Year | Endof the vear | Nt Change
Franchised 2021 1 24 13
2022 24 76 +52
2023 76 107 +31
2021 9 10 +1
Company-Owned* 2022 10 10 0
2023 10 10 0
2021 20 34 +14
Total Outlets 2022 34 86 +52
2023 86 117 +31
*Company-Owned refers to outlets run by our Affiliates.
TABLE 2
TRANSFERS OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS
FOR YEARS 2021 TO 2023
State Year Number of Transfers
2021 0
Wisconsin 2022 1
2023 0
2021 0
Total 2022 1
2023 0
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TABLE 3

STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS
FOR YEARS 2021 TO 2023

State

Year

Outlets
at Start
of Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminations

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations
— Other
Reasons

Outlets
at End
of Year
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State

Year

Outlets
at Start
of Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminations

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations
— Other
Reasons

QOutlets
at End
of Year
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TABLE 4
STATUS OF COMPANY-OWNED OUTLETS
FOR YEARS 2021 TO 2023*

Outlets
Swte | Year | Starcor | Quiets | Reacouired | Outlets | Gig%e | Endof
Year Franchisees Franchisees Year
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
California 2022 0 1 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021 1 1 0 0 0 2
Florida 2022 2 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 0 0 0 0 2
2021 1 0 0 0 0 1
Illinois 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021 1 0 0 0 0 1
Massachusetts | 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021 6 1 0 0 0 7
New York 2022 7 0 0 1 0 6
2023 6 0 0 0 0 6
2021 9 1 0 0 0 10
Total 2022 10 1 0 1 0 10
2023 10 0 0 0 0 10

*Company-Owned refers to outlets run by our Affiliates.

TABLE 5
PROJECTED OPENINGS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023

Franchise Projected New Projected New
o Franchised Company-Owned
State Agreements Signed 5 q
But Outlet Not Open Outle.ts in the Outle'ts in the
Next Fiscal Year Next Fiscal Year
Arizona 1 1 0
Arkansas 1 1 0
California 2 2 0
Colorado 1 1 0
Florida 2 2 0
Georgia 2 2 0
Illinois 0 0 0
Kansas 0 0 0
Kentucky 0 0 0
Maryland 0 0 0
Michigan 1 1 0
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Mississippi
Missouri

New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
North Carolina
Ohio
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
Tennessee
Texas
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Washington
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Exhibit G-1 contains a list of the names of all current franchisees and the address and telephone number of
each of their outlets.

Exhibit G-2 contains a list of the names, city and state, and current business telephone number, or if
unknown, the last known home telephone number of every franchisee who had an outlet terminated,
canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise
agreement during our most recently completed fiscal year or who have not communicated with us within
10 weeks of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document. If you buy this franchise, your contact
information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

During the last three fiscal years, no current or former franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses that
restrict them from discussing with you their experiences as a franchisee in our franchise system.

We are not aware of any trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system
being offered.

ITEM 21. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Exhibit F contains our audited financial statements for our fiscal years ended December 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021. Our fiscal year ends on December 31.

ITEM 22. CONTRACTS
The following contracts are attached to this Disclosure Document:

Exhibit C FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
Schedule 1-General Release
Schedule 2-Nondisclosure and Non-Competition Agreement
Schedule 3-Unlimited Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations
Schedule 4-Collateral Assignment of Lease
Schedule 5-ACH Payment Agreement
Schedule 6-Holders of Legal or Beneficial Interest in Franchisee; Officers; Directors
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Schedule 7-State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement
Schedule 8-SBA Addendum

Exhibit E AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
Appendix A-Development Territory
Appendix B-Development Schedule
Appendix C-Owner’s Guaranty and Assumption of Developer’s Obligations
Appendix D-List of Principals
Appendix E-State Addenda to the Area Development Agreement

ITEM 23. RECEIPTS

Exhibit K contains our copy and your copy of the Disclosure Document Receipts.
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EXHIBIT A TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS

CALIFORNIA
Commissioner of Financial
Protection and Innovation
Department of Financial
Protection and Innovation
2101 Arena Boulevard
Sacramento, CA 95834
(213) 576-7500

(866) 275-2677 (toll free)
www.dfpi.ca.gov
Ask.DFPI@dfpi.ca.gov

FLORIDA

Division of Consumer Services
Attn: Business Opportunities
2005 Apalachee Parkway
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-6500

HAWAII

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii,

Dept. of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

ILLINOIS

Chief, Franchise Bureau
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-4465

INDIANA

Secretary of State, Franchise Section
302 West Washington, Room E-111
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

(317) 232-6681

MAINE

Department of Professional and Financial

Regulations

Bureau of Banking
Securities Division
121 Statehouse Station
Augusta, Maine 04333
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CONNECTICUT

Connecticut Banking Commissioner
Department of Banking

Securities & Business Investments Division
260 Constitution Plaza

Hartford, Connecticut 06103

KENTUCKY

Office of the Attorney General
700 Capitol Avenue

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-3449
(502) 696-5300

NEBRASKA

Nebraska Department of Banking and Finance
1200 N Street-Suite 311

Post Office Box 95006

Lincoln, Nebraska 68509

(402) 471-3445

NEW YORK

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty St. 21* Floor
New York, NY 10005
212-416-8222

NORTH CAROLINA

Secretary of State

Securities Division

300 North Salisbury Street, Suite 100
Raleigh, North Carolina 27603-5909

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities Department
600 Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol
Fifth Floor, Dept. 414

Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712
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MARYLAND

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
(410) 576-6360

MICHIGAN

Consumer Protection Division,
Franchise Section

G. Mennen Williams Building
525 W. Ottowa Street, 7th Floor
Lansing, Michigan 48913

(517) 373-7117

MINNESOTA
Commissioner of Commerce
Department of Commerce
85 7th Place East, Suite 280
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101
(651) 53-1600

SOUTH CAROLINA

Office of the Secretary of State
1205 Pendleton Street

Edgar Brown Building, Suite 525
Columbia, South Carolina 29201

UTAH

Utah Department of Commerce
Division of Consumer Protection
160 East Three Hundred South
P.O. Box 146704

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-6704

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document

RHODE ISLAND

Department of Business Regulation
Securities Division

Bldg. 69, First Floor

John O. Pastore Center

1511 Pontiac Avenue

Cranston, Rhode Island 02920
(401) 462-9585

SOUTH DAKOTA

Department of Labor and Regulation

Division of Insurance and Securities Regulation
124 S. Euclid, Suite 104

Pierre, South Dakota 57501

(605) 773-3563

TEXAS

Office of the Secretary of State
Statutory Document Section
1019 Brazos Street

Austin, Texas 78701

VIRGINIA

State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities

and Retail Franchising

1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9051

WASHINGTON

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

P.O. Box 9033

Olympia, WA 98507

(360) 902-8760

WISCONSIN

Office of the Commissioner of Securities
345 West Washington Avenue, Fourth Floor
Madison, Wisconsin 53703

(608) 261-9555
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EXHIBIT B TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
LIST OF STATE AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

CALIFORNIA

Commissioner of Financial Protection and
Innovation

320 West Fourth Street, Suite 750

Los Angeles, California 90013-2344
(213) 576-7500

(866) 275-2677 (toll free)
www.dfpi.ca.gov

Ask.DFPl@dfpi.ca.gov

HAWAIIL

Commissioner of Securities

of the State of Hawaii

Dept. of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

ILLINOIS

Illinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-4465

INDIANA

Secretary of State, Securities Division
302 West Washington Street, Room E-111
Indianapolis, IN 46204

MARYLAND

Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
(410) 576-6360

MICHIGAN
Department of the Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division
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MINNESOTA
Commissioner of Commerce
85 7th Place East, Suite 280
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101
(651) 539-1600

NEW YORK

New York State Department of State
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor
Albany, New York 12231-0001
(518) 473-2492

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities Commissioner
600 Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol
Fifth Floor

Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510

RHODE ISLAND

Director of Department of Business Regulation
Department of Business Regulation

Securities Division

Bldg. 69, First Floor

John O. Pastore Center

1511 Pontic Avenue

Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

(401) 462-9585

SOUTH DAKOTA

Department of Labor and Regulation

Division of Insurance and Securities Regulation
124 S. Euclid, Suite 104

Pierre, South Dakota 57501

(605) 773-3563

VIRGINIA
State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities and Retail Franchising

Exhibit B: State Agents for Service of Process



Attn: Franchise 1300 East Main Street, First Floor
G. Mennen Williams Building Richmond, Virginia 23219

525 W. Ottowa Street, 7th Floor (804)371-9051

Lansing, Michigan 48910

(517) 373-7117

WASHINGTON WISCONSIN

Director of Department of Commissioner of Securities

Financial Institutions 345 West Washington Avenue, Fourth Floor
Securities Division Madison, Wisconsin 53703

150 Israel Road, S.W. (608) 261-9555

Tumwater, Washington 98501
(360) 902-8760
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EXHIBIT C TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
NARTOV VENTURES, LLC

SUGARING NYC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document Exhibit C: Franchise Agreement
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NARTOV VENTURES, LLC

SUGARING NYC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Franchise Agreement made this day of , 20, is by and between
NARTOV VENTURES, LLC, a Florida limited liability company having its principal place of business at
1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 (“Franchisor,” “we,” “us,” or
“our”) and , whose principal address is
(“Franchisee,” “you,” or “your”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Franchisor has developed, and is in the process of further developing, a System
identified by the service mark “Sugaring NYC” and relating to the establishment and operation of a hair
removal company using a proprietary organic sugaring paste resulting in a less painful, longer lasting hair
removal experience, lash lifts, and other beauty services and, if desired, laser hair removal; and

WHEREAS, in addition to the service mark “Sugaring NYC” and certain other Marks, the
distinguishing characteristics of the System include: uniform standards and procedures for efficient
business operations; procedures and strategies for marketing, advertising and promotion; customer service
and development techniques; other strategies and techniques; and Trade Secrets and other Confidential
Information; and the Operations Manual; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor grants to qualified persons and business entities the right to own and
operate a Sugaring NYC Business using the System and the Marks; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee desires to operate a Sugaring NYC Business, has applied for the Franchise
and such application has been approved by Franchisor in reliance upon all of the representations made
herein and therein; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee understands and acknowledges the importance of Franchisor’s high and
uniform standards of quality, operations and service and the necessity of operating the Franchised Business
in strict conformity with Franchisor’s System.

NOW, THEREFORE, Franchisor and Franchisee, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

Whenever used in this Agreement, the following words and terms have the following meanings:

“Affiliate” means any business entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with Franchisor;

“Agreement” means this agreement entitled “Nartov Ventures, LLC Franchise Agreement” and all
instruments supplemental hereto or in amendment or confirmation hereof;,

“Approved Supplier(s)” has the meaning given to such term in Section 13.10;

“Competitive Business” means any business that offers waxing or other hair removal services
(including laser hair removal) under any service system, or any other mass market hair removal experience,
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lash lifts, or other services the same as or similar to those provided by Sugaring NYC businesses or in which
Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information could be used to the disadvantage of Franchisor, any
Affiliate or its other franchisees; provided, however, that the term “Competitive Business” shall not apply
to (a) any business operated by Franchisee under a Franchise Agreement with Franchisor, or (b) any
business operated by a publicly-held entity in which Franchisee owns less than a five percent (5%) legal or
beneficial interest;

“Confidential Information” means technical and non-technical information used in or related to
the Sugaring NYC Franchise and not commonly known by or available to the public, including, without
limitation, Trade Secrets, methods and products, customer services techniques and other techniques and
methodologies not generally known to the industry or public, and any other information identified or labeled
as confidential when delivered by Franchisor. Confidential Information shall not include, however, any
information that: (a) is now or subsequently becomes generally available to the public through no fault of
Franchisee; (b) Franchisee can demonstrate was rightfully in its possession, without obligation of
nondisclosure, prior to disclosure per this Agreement; (c) is independently developed without the use of
any Confidential Information; or (d) is rightfully obtained from a third party who has the right, without
obligation of nondisclosure, to transfer or disclose such information;

“Cooperative Advertising” means the combined advertising program of two (2) or more
franchisees established within a common market that Franchisor may require for Sugaring NYC businesses

within a particular region;

“Effective Date” means the date on which Franchisor and Franchisee fully execute this Agreement,
thereby commencing its effectiveness and term;

“Electronic Depository Transfer Account” means an account established at a national banking
institution approved by Franchisor and providing Franchisor with access to electronically withdraw any
funds due Franchisor;

“Franchise” means the right granted to Franchisee by Franchisor to use the System and the Marks;

“Franchise Fee” has the meaning given to such term in 3.1;

“Franchised Business” means the Sugaring NYC Business to be established and operated by
Franchisee per this Agreement;

“Franchisee” means the individual or entity defined as “Franchisee” in the introductory paragraph
of this Agreement;

“Franchisor” means Nartov Ventures, LLC, a Florida limited liability company;

“Franchisor Indemnities” has the meaning given to such term in Section 21.3;

“Gross Revenues” means all business revenue which the Franchisee accrues during the operation
of the Franchise, but excluding taxes collected from customers and paid to any taxing authority, and reduced
by the amount of any documented refunds, gratuities, credits, allowances, and chargebacks given in good

faith to customers;

“Gross Revenues Reports” has the meaning give to such term in Section 12.2;
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“Incapacity” means the inability of Franchisee, or any holder of a legal or beneficial interest in
Franchisee, to operate or oversee the operation of the Franchised Business on a regular basis by reason of
any continuing physical, mental or emotional condition, chemical dependency or other limitation;

“Internet” means any one (1) or more local or global interactive communications media that is
now available, or that may become available, including sites and domain names on the World Wide Web;

“Marketing Fund” has the meaning given to such term in Section 11.1;
“Marketing Fund Contribution” has the meaning given to such term in Section 11.1;

“Marks” means the service mark “Sugaring NYC” and such other trade names, trademarks, service
marks, trade dress, designs, graphics, logos, emblems, insignia, fascia, slogans, drawings and other
commercial symbols as Franchisor may designate to be used in connection with the Sugaring NYC
Business;

“Operations Manual” means the Sugaring NYC Operations Manual, whether in paper or
electronic form, and any other items as may be provided, added to, changed, modified or otherwise revised
by Franchisor from time to time that contain or describe the standards, methods, procedures and
specifications of the System, including other operations, administration and managers’ manuals and all
books, computer programs, password-protected portions of an Internet site, pamphlets, memoranda and
other publications prepared by, or on behalf of, Franchisor;

“Royalty Fee” has the meaning given to such term in Section 3.2.

“System” means the uniform standards, methods, procedures and specifications developed by
Franchisor and as may be added to, changed, modified, withdrawn or otherwise revised by Franchisor for
the operation of a Sugaring NYC Business; and

“Trade Secrets” means information in any form (including, but not limited to, technical or non-
technical data, formulas, patterns, compilations, programs, devices, methods, techniques, drawings,
processes, financial data, financial plans, product plans, passwords, lists of actual or potential customers or
suppliers) related to or used in the operation of a Sugaring NYC Business that is not commonly known by
or available to the public and that information: (a) derives economic value, actual or potential, from not
being generally known to, and not being readily ascertained by proper means by, other persons who can
obtain economic value from its disclosure or use; and (b) is the subject of efforts that are reasonable under
the circumstances to maintain its secrecy.

2. GRANT OF FRANCHISE; APPROVED FRANCHISED BUSINESS
2.1 Grant

Franchisor hereby grants to Franchisee, upon the terms and conditions herein contained and subject
to this Agreement, the right, license, and privilege to operate a Sugaring NYC Business, and Franchisee
hereby accepts a franchise under the terms and conditions stated here to operate a Business that has been
assigned a protected territory as in Section 2.4 (referred to as the “Territory”). Along with the right to use
solely in connection therewith the Franchisor’s Names and Mark, Services, Products, its advertising and
merchandising methods, and Franchisor’s System, as they may be changed or improved and/or further
developed from time to time, only at the accepted location of the Franchisee’s Business as in Section 2.2,
and provided the Franchisee shall adhere to the terms and conditions hereof.
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It is understood and agreed that, except as expressly provided herein or in any other executed
agreement, this franchise includes no right of Franchisee to sub franchise.

Except as provided in this Agreement, Franchisee shall be free to use the materials provided by
Franchisor in the manner that Franchisee, in Franchisee’s sole and absolute discretion, deems most
appropriate for the operation of a Sugaring NYC Franchise, provided that Franchisee shall not violate any
applicable law, regulation or provision of this Agreement in exercising such discretion.

2.2 Franchised Business

The street address or geographical description of the area for the Franchised Business (the
“Accepted Location”) is:

2.3 Sub-Franchising/Agents

Franchisee shall not sublicense the use of the System or Marks to any person or entity. Except as
permitted in Section 18, Franchisee shall not grant any person or entity the right to perform any part of
Franchisee’s rights or obligations licensed hereunder.

2.4 Territory

The exclusive territory which is hereby granted to Franchisee shall be , at
(the “Territory”). Franchisee shall be
prohibited from operating a franchise outside of the Territory without the prior written consent of
Franchisor. You will receive an exclusive territory; howeer, you may face competition from other
franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we
control.

(a) If the Parties do not select a Territory prior to the signing of this Franchise Agreement, then
they shall agree to it at a later date as contemplated under the terms of this Agreement. Failure to agree on
a Territory within sixty (60) days of execution of this Agreement, and/or failure of Franchisee to open the
Facility within 180 days (or other such date as provided in the Area Development Agreement) after the
execution of this Agreement (or other such dates as provided in the Area Development Agreement, if
applicable) shall permit Franchisor to terminate this Agreement, as provided in Section 16. We reserve the
right to grant a Territory that is larger than the territory described above in order to account for more densely
or sparsely populated areas. Franchisee may not conduct business at any other location or locations other
than the Accepted Location identified above; however, Franchisee may conduct business at off-site events
(for example at transportation expos, travel expos, promotional events, charity events, etc.) to sell Services
and/or Products as long as such events are within Franchisee’s Territory.

(b) The size of the Territory shall be the lesser of 3 miles or a land area containing 25,000
people. The location will be determined by the number of factors, including the population base,
demographics of the surrounding area, traffic patterns, proximity to major roads, available parking,
competition, availability of appropriate sites, customer demographics, adequate square footage, reasonable
rent, or other conditions important to the successful operation of a Franchised Business as we deem
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appropriate. The Territory is determined once a location is chosen and approved by us, and will not be
altered even if there is a population increase or decrease during the term of this Agreement. The Territory
is not dependent upon achievement of certain revenues, number of customers, customers Franchisee retains,
market penetration or any other contingency.

(c) Franchisee shall not relocate a Sugaring NYC Business that has been assigned a Territory,
without the express prior written consent of Franchisor. During the term of this Agreement, and so long as
the Territory contains a population of less than 25,000 people, Franchisor shall not establish, nor license
another party or entity to establish, a Sugaring NYC Business within the Territory. If Franchisee decides to
open additional Facilities and buys the rights to additional Franchises, such sale and purchase to be at our
sole and absolute discretion, then those separate franchise agreement(s) will dictate the terms of the
applicable territory (a separate Franchise Agreement is required for each additional Facility).

(d) Franchisee must operate its Facility within the specific Territory as identified in this
Section 2.4. Franchisee may conduct business at off-site events in other geographical areas where there is
no existing Sugaring NYC Business only after providing notice to us and after obtaining our written
approval; however, Franchisee cannot perform Target Marketing outside the Territory as further described
in Section 2.4 (e) below. We shall approve or deny your request in writing or by email, such approval to be
in our sole and absolute discretion, within 3 business days of receipt of your written request to conduct
business at off-site events in other geographical areas (outside your Territory) that have not been sold to
one or more Franchisee(s). If Franchisor later agrees to sell or assign such outside territory to any other
franchisee, Franchisor must immediately relinquish and cease all business activities within the outside
geographical area. Franchisee may sell and ship products to customers located outside the Territory only if
such sales are arranged or otherwise take place within the Territory.

(e) Franchisee cannot perform any Target Marketing in any other territory of any other
Sugaring NYC franchisee, or of any business owned by an affiliate of the Franchisor. The term Target
Marketing means a concerted effort by Franchisee to solicit customers or market products within another
franchisee’s territory or in any territory operated directly by the Franchisor (“Target Marketing”).
Franchisor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to deal with any franchisee that violates this policy.
Franchisee is prohibited from selling similar products and conducting similar services through any
alternative channels of distribution (such as Websites as defined below) without our written approval.

) If Franchisee is asked by a third party to conduct business outside of the Territory (such as
at expos, promotional events, charity events, elementary schools, etc.) in geographical areas in which there
is another franchisee or Franchisor affiliate-owned business, Franchisee must immediately refer that request
to that Sugaring NYC business which is located in that outside territory, or directly to Franchisor, except
that if the other franchisee or Franchisor affiliate-owned business gives Franchisee permission to conduct
business at the off-site event within the outside territory, then that Franchisee may do so if, and only if,
Franchisee immediately informs Franchisor of such permission in writing. If there is not a Sugaring NYC
business located in the outside territory, then the franchisee must submit a request to Franchisor for
permission to conduct business within the outside territory. However, Franchisee must be prepared to
immediately cease conducting such events in that other geographical area when that unassigned area is
purchased by a new Sugaring NYC franchisee as applicable. Franchisor shall approve or deny Franchisee’s
request to conduct business at off-site events in other geographical areas not owned by other franchisees,
Franchisor or its affiliates; which approval is in Franchisor’s sole discretion, within three (3) days of
Franchisee’s written request.
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(g) If, during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee is unable to promptly and properly
provide customers services or products due to excessive work or for any other cause, Franchisee must refer
that customer to another franchisee, Franchisor affiliate-owned business, or to Franchisor.

(h) If Franchisee fails to: (i) refrain from Target Marketing, or (ii) refer businesses or off-site
opportunities to other franchisees as described herein, Franchisor will have the right to terminate this
Agreement immediately without fault, as described in section 16.2.1(u) and 16.2.1(v) of this Agreement.
For any default of this Agreement which triggers Franchisor’s ability to terminate, as an alternative to
termination, Franchisor will have the right, in its sole discretion, to modify or completely eliminate any
rights Franchisee may have with respect to the Territory, effective ten (10) days after delivery of written
notice to Franchisee.

We encourage Sugaring NYC businesses when owned by different individuals to work out a
referral and advertising strategy and/or arrangement for both businesses if they are within close proximity
of each other (defined as being within a twenty-five (25) mile radius of each other). We must be notified in
writing of any consent to all such arrangements.

1) Franchisor shall have the exclusive right to negotiate and enter into agreements or approve
forms of agreements to sell services and products to any business including, but not limited to, large
businesses, national organizations, or non-profit organizations with outlets located in multiple territories,
or government agencies who on their own behalf or through agents, franchisees, or other third parties owns,
manages, controls or otherwise has responsibility for products, buildings, or common-services in more than
one location whose presence is not confined within any one particular franchisee’s territory (a “National
Account”). Franchisor may, at its sole discretion, give Franchisee the option to provide services and
products to businesses under the National Account contract, including businesses that would otherwise fall
outside the Territory. If we choose, then we may direct the National Account to seek such services, products,
equipment, and products from you in your Territory. The National Account program is defined as follows:

(1) The term “National Account” means a special class of customers which may include
but are not limited to large businesses, national organizations or non-profit organizations
with outlets located in multiple territories and government agencies who on their own
behalf or through agents, franchisees or other third parties owns, manages, controls or
otherwise has responsibility for products, buildings or common-services in more than one
location whose presence is not confined within any one particular franchisee’s Territory
regardless of the aggregate contract amount of Services and/or Products the Franchisee
performs or provides. Any dispute as to whether a particular account is a National Account
shall be determined by Franchisor in its sole and absolute discretion, and Franchisor’s
determination shall be final and binding;

(i1) If Franchisor chooses to grant Franchisee the right to sell services or products to any
businesses falling under the National Account, such sales and services shall be provided
on the terms and conditions as determined by the Franchisor in its sole and absolute
discretion. Franchisee shall have no right to modify the terms or conditions of any service
or sales to any business under a National Account, even if such business should give any
indication of consent to such modification, shall have the exclusive right, unless otherwise
specified in writing, on behalf of itself, Franchisee and/or other franchisees utilizing the
Marks, to negotiate and enter into agreements or approve forms of agreement to offer
Services and Products to National Account customers, including any affiliate, company-
owned, or franchised locations within the Territory;
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a) Following the execution of a contract with or the acceptance of a bid by a
National Account which contemplates the provision of Services or
Products to one or more National Account locations within the Territory
Franchisor will, if we choose to provide Franchisee the option to perform
Services and/or offer Products according to the terms and conditions of the
National Account contract or on such terms and conditions as we in our
sole discretion determine;

(iii) If Franchisee elects not to provide Services and/or Products to a National Account or
a business under such National Account in conformity with the terms and conditions as
communicated by Franchisor, or fails to make an election within the time specified by
Franchisor, then Franchisor shall have the right, exercisable in its sole discretion, to:

a) Provide directly, or through any other affiliate utilizing our Mark,
Services, and/or Products, to a National Account location(s) within the
Territory on the terms and conditions contained in the National Account
bid or contract; and/or

b) Contract with another party to provide Services and/or Products to a
National Account business located anywhere within the Territory, on the
terms and conditions contained in the National Account bid or contract
between Franchisor and the National Account Member, utilizing
Franchisor’s Marks or any trademarks, service marks, or trade names.

(iv) Neither the direct provision by Franchisor (or an affiliate or agent of Franchisor) of
Services of Products to National Account customers as authorized in (a) above, nor if
Franchisor contracts with another party to provide Services or Products as authorized in
(b) above, shall constitute a violation of Section 2.4 of this Agreement relating to the
Franchisee’s Territory, even if such Services and/or Products are performed or offered from
a location within the Territory. Franchisee disclaims any compensation for Services
performed or Products provided by others in the Territory according to this section.

Franchisee’s rights in the Territory are solely as expressly in this Section 2.4. Except as
expressly provided in this Agreement, Franchisee has no right to exclude, control, or impose conditions on
the location, operation, or other management of present or future Sugaring NYC (or any other brand)
franchises or Franchisor-owned store units or distribution channels of any type, franchised or company-
owned, regardless of their location or proximity to the Territory and whether the offer competing services
which may affect Franchisee’s operations. Franchisee does not have any rights with respect to other and/or
related businesses, services, and/or products, in which Franchisor or any Franchisor-related persons or
entities may be involved, now or in the future.

(k) Any territorial rights not expressly granted to the Franchisee are reserved to the Franchisor,
whether or not such rights impact the Territory. Such rights reserved to the Franchisor in the Territory

include but are not limited to the following:

(1) the right to advertise, market, and sell products and conduct similar services in your
Territory;

(ii) the right to advertise, offer, and sell products online or through other electronic venues,
no matter where the customer is based;
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(iii) the right to sell, offer, or distribute products or services to anyone from anywhere
through any alternative or other channel of distribution, other than through local businesses
providing such products under the Marks and System and on any terms and conditions
Franchisor deems appropriate. Franchisor maintains this right whether or not the Marks or
System used, and regardless of whether Franchisor is acting inside or outside the Territory;

(iv) the right to develop, manufacture, and/or distribute any services or products that have
been branded with the Mark, or any separate brand of products or equipment through any
outlet located anywhere (including, by way of illustration, discount warehouses, retail
stores, online sales and/or similar venues). If Franchisor decides to develop and distribute
products or conduct similar services within the Territory, Franchisee will receive no
compensation from Franchisor for such sales, unless agreed otherwise by the parties in
writing;

(v) implement advertising cooperative programs which may allow us or others to offer
services, equipment and/or products to anyone from that franchised or company owned
outlet. We also reserve the right to issue mandatory policies to coordinate such advertising
cooperative programs;

(vi) own and/or operate ourselves or authorize others to own and/or operate (a) any
business located outside the Territory as designated on your Franchise Agreement, whether
or not using the Marks and/or System, (b) any business anywhere, whether using the Marks
and /or System or not, which is not substantially similar to the business franchised to you
under the Franchise Agreement, and/or (c) any business anywhere which does not use the
Marks; and

(vii) acquire, merge, affiliate with or engage in any transaction with other businesses
(whether competitive or not), with businesses located anywhere, including arrangements
in which we are acquired, and/or company-owned, franchised or other businesses
(including your own Business) are converted to another format or we acquire a similar
business which will be maintained under the System or otherwise. You will fully
participate in any conversion subject to any person/entity merging with, or acquiring us or
when we acquire, reimbursing you for reasonable costs directly related to the conversion.

We are not responsible for paying any compensation to you concerning the sale or providing of
services over the Internet, World Wide Web, other similar venues, by alternative means of distribution,
advertising cooperative programs, outlets, businesses that are or are not substantially similar to the
Franchised Business or any business that does not use the Marks. For clarity, the Franchise Agreement
grants you no rights to offer and provide services and/or products through any alternative channels of
distribution (other than our approved list of channels of distribution) without our permission or share in any
of the proceeds from our activities through alternative channels of distribution.

1)) Franchisee’s Territory may be altered during the initial term, but only by: (i) mutual
consent of the parties as demonstrated in a writing signed by both parties; (ii) at the time of transfer or
renewal as a condition to transfer or renew; or (iii) for any default of this Agreement which triggers
Franchisor’s ability to terminate as described above.
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3. FEES
3.1 Franchise Fee

Upon execution of this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay a fee (“Franchise Fee”) to Franchisor of
$45,000. The Franchise Fee shall be deemed fully earned upon execution of this Agreement and is non-
refundable. The Franchise Fee is payment, in part, for expenses incurred by Franchisor in furnishing
assistance and services to Franchisee as in this Agreement and for costs incurred by Franchisor, including
general sales and marketing expenses, training, legal, accounting and other professional fees.

3.2 Monthly Royalty Fee

(a) Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor without offset, credit or deduction of any nature, a
monthly fee (“Royalty Fee”) equal to FIVE percent (5%) of Gross Revenues for the previous month period.
The Royalty Fee is due on the tenth (10th) day of each month (for the prior month) and begins on the first
(1st) month after the Business is open for operation and continues for the duration the term of this
Agreement. If Franchisee opens the Business for operation on the twenty-fifth (25th) of the month or
anytime thereafter until the 25th of the next month, then Franchisee’s Business will be deemed opened for
operation on the month immediately succeeding the month of the 25th. As an example, if Franchisee opens
the Business for operation on January 26th, then the business would be considered to have opened on
February as Franchisee’s first month in operation, Franchisee’s Royalty payments would begin in March
for Franchisee’s February Royalty obligation. The Royalty Fee is uniform as to all persons and entities
currently acquiring a Sugaring NYC Franchise and is nonrefundable. If the Franchise Agreement is
terminated, Franchisee may be required to continue such Royalty payments to the Franchisor. The
Franchisee will provide to Franchisor a Gross Revenues Report, as required by Section 12.2, for each month
during the operation of the Franchise. If Franchisor requires Franchisee to pay Royalty Fees through
electronic transfer as in Section 3.4, such reports shall instead be submitted to Franchisor via facsimile
transmission, e-mail or intranet system.

33 Taxes
Franchisee shall pay its own taxes as related to the Business.
34 Electronic Transfer

Franchisor shall require all Royalty Fees, Internet Advertising Program Fees, Marketing Fund
Contributions, amounts due for purchases by Franchisee from Franchisor and other amounts due to
Franchisor to be paid through Automated Clearing House (ACH). At Franchisor’s request, Franchisee shall
provide Franchisor with the corporate account number and routing number designated to pay Royalty Fees,
Internet Advertising Program Fees, Marketing Fund Contributions and other payments for the purpose of
receiving any payments due to Franchisor. The franchisee shall make deposits to the account sufficient to
cover amounts owed to Franchisor prior to the date such amounts are due. The franchisee shall execute any
documents Franchisor’s or Franchisee’s bank requires to establish the franchisor's ability to debit
Franchisee's bank account. Once established, Franchisee shall not close the corporate bank without a written
Franchisor’s written consent.

35 Late Fees

All Royalty Fees, Marketing Fund Contributions, amounts due from purchases by Franchisee from
Franchisor and other amounts not received by Franchisor within five (5) days after the due date shall incur
late fees at the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month (or the highest rate allowed by the law of

the state where Franchisee is located, whichever is lower) from the date payment is due to the date payment
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is received by Franchisor. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor for all costs incurred by Franchisor in the
collection of any unpaid and past due amounts due Franchisor, including reasonable accounting and legal
fees. This Section shall not constitute an agreement by Franchisor to accept any payments after the due date
or a commitment by Franchisor to extend credit to or otherwise finance Franchisee.

3.6 Operations Manual Replacement Fee
Franchisee agrees to pay to Franchisor $250 if Franchisee loses or destroys the Operations Manual.
3.7 Maintenance and Refurbishing of Business

If, after we notify you, you do not undertake efforts to correct deficiencies in Store appearance,
then we can undertake the repairs and you must reimburse us.

3.8 Insufficient Funds Fee

Franchisee agrees to pay to Franchisor $75 if any payment Franchisee owes is rejected due to
insufficient funds in Franchisee’s Electronic Depository Transfer Account (“EDTA”), or if any other
payment instrument Franchisee uses is rejected for insufficient funds.

3.9 Relocation Assistance

If Franchisee needs Franchisor’s assistance to relocate, Franchisee agrees to pay to Franchisor its
costs in providing such assistance.

3.10 Software and POS

Franchisee agrees to pay directly to the Provider the fee for such software and POS system as we
specify, presently $150 per month. Additionally, to the extent more than one email address is required,
Franchisee agrees to pay to us $15 per month per email. Beyond the foregoing, our current digital storage
provider (Google Drive) provides 30GB of storage at no cost. If you require additional storage, the present
cost is between $19.99/year (for 30GB) and $99.99/year (for 1TB).

3.11 Bookkeeping

Franchisee agrees to pay directly to the Provider the fee for a bookkeeping system that we may
specify.

3.12  Social Media Content Creation Contribution Fee

You agree to pay to us $200 per month for the creation of custom content for social media
advertising for your franchise, presently for use on Instagram, but we may change the social media platform
over time if we feel market conditions warrant. We may also offer additional services to you in the future,
for example, if the Instagram platform changes, for an additional fee, and you may purchase such services
if offered. This fee is per location operated. Although Franchisee is continually obligated to make payment
of this fee, if Franchisee is in default of any payment obligations, and fails to cure within ten (10) days,
Franchisor may cease all advertising for Franchisee’s location.
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3.13  Territory Addendum Fee

If you are unable to location an acceptable business address within your exclusive territory within the time
allotted by your franchise agreement, you may relocate your territory, subject to our then-available
territories and after payment of the Territory Addendum Fee. FA

3.14  Application of Payments

Notwithstanding any designation by Franchisee, Franchisor shall have the right to apply any
payments by Franchisee to any past due indebtedness of Franchisee for Royalty Fees, Marketing Fund
Contributions, purchases from Franchisor or any other amount owed to Franchisor in any proportion or
priority.

4. TERM AND RENEWAL
4.1 Initial Term

This Agreement shall be effective and binding for an initial term of TEN (10) years from the
Effective Date, unless sooner terminated according to this Agreement.

4.2 Successor Terms

Subject to the conditions below, Franchisee has the right to obtain a successor franchise at the
expiration of the term of this Agreement by entering into a new franchise agreement with Franchisor for
successive terms of TEN (10) years each. To qualify for a successor franchise, each of the following pre-
conditions shall have been fulfilled and remain true as of the last day of the term of this Agreement:

4.2.1 Franchisee has, during the entire term of this Agreement, fully complied with all
material provisions of this Agreement;

4.2.2  Franchisee has, at its expense, made such capital expenditures as were necessary
to maintain uniformity with any Franchisor-required System modifications such that the Franchised
Business reflects Franchisor’s then-current standards and specifications;

4.2.3  Franchisee has satisfied all monetary obligations owed by Franchisee to Franchisor
(or any Affiliate), and has timely met these obligations throughout the term of this Agreement;

4.2.4  Franchisee is not in default of any provision of this Agreement or any other
agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor;

4.2.5 Franchisee has given written notice of its intent to operate a successor franchise to
Franchisor not less than nine (9) months nor more than twelve (12) months prior to the end of the term of
this Agreement;

4.2.6  Franchisee has executed Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise agreement (or
has executed other documents at Franchisor’s election that modify this Agreement to reflect the fact that
the Franchise Agreement relates to the grant of a successor franchise), which franchise agreement shall
supersede this Agreement in all respects, and the terms of which may differ from the terms of this
Agreement by requiring, among other things, a different percentage Royalty Fee or Marketing Fund
Contribution; provided, however, that Franchisee shall not be required to pay the then-current Franchise
Fee;
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4.2.7 Franchisee has complied with Franchisor’s then-current qualifications for a new
franchisee and has agreed to comply with any training requirements;

4.2.8 Franchisee has executed a general release, in a form the same as or similar to the
General Release attached as Schedule 1, of any and all claims against Franchisor, any Affiliate and against
their officers, directors, shareholders, managers, members, partners, owners, employees and agents (in their
corporate and individual capacities), except to the extent prohibited by the laws of the state where the
Franchised Business is located; and
42,9  Franchisee has paid the renewal fee of $5,000.
5. FRANCHISED BUSINESS
5.1 Operation of Franchised Business
Franchisee shall operate the Franchised Business within the Territory from a fixed location (the
“Premises”). Franchisee shall manage and administer the Franchised Business from the Premises, and shall
maintain and store the books and records of the Franchised Business at its headquarters.
5.2 Failure to Develop Franchised Business
Should Franchisee fail to develop the Franchised Business, in accordance with the other provisions
of this Section 5 and within 180 days after this Effective Date, Franchisor has the right to terminate this
Agreement and retain all fees paid to Franchisor by Franchisee.

53 Opening

Before opening the Franchised Business and commencing business, Franchisee must:

(a) fulfill all of the obligations of Franchisee according to the other provisions of this Section
5;

(b) furnish Franchisor with copies of all insurance policies required by this Agreement, or by
the lease, or such other evidence of insurance coverage and payment of premiums as Franchisor may
request;

(c) complete initial training to the satisfaction of Franchisor;

(d) possess all required state, county, city, and local professional licenses and certifications;

(e) obtain all necessary state, county, city, and local permits and licenses;

) pay in full all amounts due to Franchisor;

(g) if Franchisee is a business entity, Franchisee has caused each of its stock certificates or

other ownership interest certificates to be conspicuously endorsed upon the face thereof a statement in a
form satisfactory to Franchisor that such ownership interest is held subject to, and that further assignment
or transfer thereof is subject to, all restrictions imposed upon transfers and assignments by this Agreement;
and
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(h) obtain Franchisor’s permission and approval of an opening date; Franchisor shall not
unreasonably withhold consent to open. Permission to open shall be based on Franchisor’s determination
that Franchisee is ready to open and satisfactorily prepared to operate.

Franchisee shall comply with these conditions and be prepared to open and continuously operate
the Franchised Business within 180 days after the Effective Date. Time is of the essence.

5.4 Failure to Open

Should Franchisee fail to commence operations of the Franchised Business within 180 days after
the Effective Date, Franchisor has the right to terminate this Agreement. Franchisee must secure a location
within 60 days. Franchisor shall have a period of 15 days to approve such location, and Franchisee must
sign the lease within 15 days following our approval of such location. If this Agreement is terminated
according to this Section 5.4, Franchisor shall retain the entire Franchise Fee paid by Franchisee. The
Franchise Fee retained shall be specifically understood and agreed by the parties to be in consideration of
the services provided, time expended, work performed, and other efforts of Franchisor up to the date of
Franchisee’s failure to timely commence operations of the Franchised Business and shall not be construed
as nor considered to be a penalty.

6. PROPRIETARY MARKS
6.1 Ownership

Franchisee’s right to use the Marks is derived solely from this Agreement, is exclusive and is
limited to the conduct of business by Franchisee according to, and in compliance with, this Agreement and
all applicable standards, specifications and operating procedures prescribed from time to time by
Franchisor. Any unauthorized use of the Marks by Franchisee is a breach of this Agreement and an
infringement of the rights of Franchisor in and to the Marks. Franchisee’s use of the Marks, and any
goodwill created thereby, shall inure to the benefit of Franchisor. Franchisee shall not at any time acquire
an ownership interest in the Marks by virtue of any use it may make of the Marks. This Agreement does
not confer any goodwill, title or interest in the Marks to Franchisee. Franchisee shall not, at any time during
the term of this Agreement or after its termination or expiration, contest the validity or ownership of any of
the Marks or assist any other person in contesting the validity or ownership of any of the Marks.

6.2 Limitations on Use

Franchisee shall not use any Mark or portion of any Mark as part of any business entity name.
Franchisee shall not use any Mark in connection with the sale of any unauthorized product or service or in
any other manner not expressly authorized in writing by Franchisor. Franchisee shall give such notices of
trademark and service mark registrations as Franchisor specifies and obtain such fictitious or assumed name
registrations as may be required under applicable law to do business as a Franchised Business. Franchisee
shall not register or seek to register as a trademark or service mark, either with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office or any state or foreign country, any of the Marks or a trademark or service mark that is
confusingly similar to any Mark licensed to Franchisee. Franchisee shall include on its letterhead, forms,
cards and other such identification, a prominent notice stating that the Franchised Business is an
“Independently Owned and Operated Sugaring NYC Franchise” of Franchisee.

6.3 Notification of Infringements and Claims

Franchisee shall immediately notify Franchisor in writing of any infringement, claim of
infringement, unfair competition, or challenge to its use of any of the Marks or claim by any person of any
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rights in any of the Marks. Franchisee shall not communicate with any person other than Franchisor and
Franchisor’s counsel in connection with any such infringement, challenge, or claim. However, Franchisee
may communicate with Franchisee’s counsel at Franchisee’s expense. We are not required to take
affirmative action when notified of these uses or claims. We have the sole right to control any
administrative or judicial proceeding involving a trademark licensed by us. The Franchise Agreement does
not require us to participate in your defense or indemnify you for expenses or damages if you are a party to
an administrative or judicial proceeding involving a trademark licensed by us to you or if the proceeding is
resolved unfavorable to you. Franchisee shall execute any and all instruments and documents, render such
assistance, and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of Franchisor’s counsel, be necessary or
advisable to protect and maintain Franchisor’s interests in any such litigation or other proceeding or to
otherwise protect and maintain Franchisor’s interest in the Marks.

6.4 Indemnification for Use of Marks

Franchisor is not required to participate in your defense or indemnify you for expenses or damages
if you are a party to an administrative or judicial proceeding involving a trademark. At Franchisor’s option,
Franchisor or its designee may defend and control the defense of any proceeding arising directly from
Franchisee’s use of any Mark.

6.5 Discontinuance of Use

If Franchisor deems it necessary for Franchisee to modify or discontinue use of any of the Marks,
and/or use one (1) or more additional or substitute trade names, trademarks, service marks or other
commercial symbols, Franchisee shall comply with Franchisor’s directions within ten (10) business days
after notice to Franchisee by Franchisor and subject to the limitations in Section 10.2. Franchisor shall not
be required to reimburse Franchisee for its expenses in modifying or discontinuing the use of a Mark or any
loss of goodwill associated with any modified or discontinued Mark or for any expenditures made by
Franchisee to promote a modified or substitute Mark.

6.6 Right to Inspect

To preserve the validity and integrity of the Marks and any copyrighted materials licensed
hereunder, and to ensure that Franchisee is properly employing the Marks in the operation of the Franchised
Business, Franchisor reserves the right to inspect the Franchised Business at any time without advanced
notice.

6.7 Franchisor’s Sole Right to Domain Name

Franchisee shall NOT advertise on the Internet, or establish, create, or operate an Internet site or
website using a domain name or uniform resource locator containing, the Marks or the words “Sugaring
NYC” or any variation thereof without Franchisor’s written approval. Franchisor is the sole owner of a
right, title, and interest in and to such domain names. Franchisor shall grant Franchisee a page on its website,
www.sugaringnyc.com that will provide contact information for your Franchised Business.

7. TRADE SECRETS AND OTHER CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
7.1 Confidentiality of Trade Secrets and Other Confidential Information
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor shall disclose Trade Secrets and other Confidential
Information to Franchisee during the training program, through the Operations Manual, and as a result of

guidance furnished to Franchisee during the term of this Agreement. Franchisee shall not acquire any
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interest in the Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information, other than the right to use it in the
development and operation of the Franchised Business and in performing its duties during the term of this
Agreement. Franchisee acknowledges that the use or duplication of the Trade Secrets or other Confidential
Information in any other business venture would constitute an unfair method of competition. Franchisee
acknowledges that the Trade Secrets and other Confidential Information are proprietary and are disclosed
to Franchisee solely on the condition that Franchisee (and all holders of a legal or beneficial interest in
Franchisee and all officers, directors, executives, managers and members of the professional staff of
Franchisee): (a) shall not use the Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information in any other business or
capacity; (b) shall maintain the absolute confidentiality of the Trade Secrets and other Confidential
Information during and after the term of this Agreement; (c) shall not make any unauthorized copies of any
portion of the Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information disclosed in written or other tangible form;
and (d) shall adopt and implement all reasonable procedures prescribed from time to time by Franchisor to
prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Trade Secrets and other Confidential Information. Franchisee
shall enforce this Section as to its employees, agents and representatives and shall be liable to Franchisor
for any unauthorized disclosure or use of Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information by any of them.

7.2 Additional Developments

All ideas, concepts, techniques or materials concerning the System or developed, in whole or in
part, using Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information, whether or not protectable intellectual property
and whether created by or for Franchisee or its owners or employees, shall be promptly disclosed to
Franchisor and shall be deemed the sole and exclusive property of Franchisor and works made-for-hire for
Franchisor, and no compensation shall be due to Franchisee or its owners or employees therefore, and
Franchisee hereby agrees to assign to Franchisor all right, title and interest in any intellectual property so
developed. Franchisor has the right to incorporate such items into the System. To the extent any item does
not qualify as a “work made-for-hire” for Franchisor, Franchisee shall assign, and by this Agreement, does
assign, ownership of that item, and all related rights to that item, to Franchisor and shall sign any assignment
or other document as Franchisor requests to assist Franchisor in obtaining or preserving intellectual property
rights in the item. Franchisor shall disclose to Franchisee concepts and developments of other franchisees
that are made part of the System. As Franchisor may reasonably request, Franchisee shall take all actions
to assist Franchisor’s efforts to obtain or maintain intellectual property rights in any item or process related
to the System, whether developed by Franchisee or not.

7.3 Exclusive Relationship

Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor would be unable to protect the Trade Secrets and other
Confidential Information against unauthorized use or disclosure and would be unable to encourage a free
exchange of ideas and information among Sugaring NYC franchisees if owners of Sugaring NYC and
members of their immediate families or households were permitted to hold an interest in or perform services
for any Competitive Business. Therefore, during the term of this Agreement and for a TWO (2) year period
following termination hereof, neither Franchisee nor any holder of a legal or beneficial interest in
Franchisee (or any member of their immediate families or households), nor any officer, director, executive,
manager or member of the professional staff of Franchisee, either directly or indirectly, for themselves, or
through, on behalf of or in conjunction with any person, partnership, corporation, limited liability company
or other business entity, shall:

(a) Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the Franchised Business to any
Competitive Business, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, directly or indirectly,
any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Marks or the System; or
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(b) Own an interest in, manage, operate, or perform services for any Competitive Business
within a 25-mile radius from any Sugaring NYC franchise or Affiliate-owned location.

74 Nondisclosure and Non-Competition Agreements with Certain Individuals

Franchisor has the right to require any holder of a legal or beneficial interest in Franchisee (and any
member of their immediate families or households), and any officer, director, executive, manager or
member of the professional staff and all employees of Franchisee to execute a nondisclosure and non-
competition agreement, in a form the same as or similar to the Nondisclosure and Non-Competition
Agreement attached as Schedule 2, upon execution of this Agreement or prior to each such person’s
affiliation with Franchisee. Upon Franchisor’s request, Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with copies of
all nondisclosure and non-competition agreements signed according to this Section. Such agreements shall
remain on file at the business of Franchisee and are subject to audit or review as otherwise stated here.
Franchisor shall be a third-party beneficiary with the right to enforce covenants contained in such
agreements.

7.5 Reasonableness of Restrictions

Franchisee acknowledges that the restrictive covenants contained in this Section are essential
elements of this Agreement, and that without their inclusion Franchisor would not have entered into this
Agreement. Franchisee acknowledges that each of the terms stated here, including the restrictive covenants,
is fair and reasonable and is reasonably required for the protection of Franchisor, the System and the Marks
and Franchisee waives any right to challenge these restrictions as being overly broad, unreasonable or
otherwise unenforceable.

8. TRAINING AND ASSISTANCE
8.1 Initial Training

Franchisor shall make an initial training program available to a total of 2 employees of Franchisee
(if applicable). Prior to the opening of the Franchised Business, the designated persons must attend and
successfully complete, to Franchisor’s satisfaction, an initial training program pertaining to the operation
and administration of the Franchised Business including, but not limited to, sales and marketing methods;
financial controls; maintenance of quality standards; customer service techniques; record keeping; and
reporting procedures and other operational issues. Initial training will be comprised of up to one week at
the corporate location, and may be followed by on the field training at the franchisee’s territory. Franchisor
shall conduct the initial training program at its headquarters or at another designated location. Franchisor
shall not charge tuition or similar fees for initial training; however, all expenses incurred by Franchisee in
attending such program including, but not limited to, travel costs, room and board expenses and employees’
salaries, shall be the sole responsibility of Franchisee. Franchisee shall be responsible for training its
management and other employees.

8.2 Opening Assistance

We provide site selection assistance to you to guide you in the selection of a location for your
Franchised Business. Also, in conjunction with the beginning of operation of the Franchised Business,
Franchisor will make available to Franchisee an opening team to be on site of Franchisee’s location around
three (3) days prior and three (3) days after the Grand Opening for the purpose of familiarizing Franchisee’s
staff with the Sugaring NYC techniques and for the purpose of providing general assistance and training in
connection with the opening of the Franchised Business. Additionally, Franchisor will provide a one day
follow up training six (6) weeks after the Grand Opening. If Franchisee requests additional assistance with
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respect to the opening or continued operation of the Franchised Business, and should Franchisor deem it
necessary and appropriate to comply with such request, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor’s then-current
standard rates, plus expenses, for such additional assistance.

8.3 Failure to Complete Initial Training Program

If Franchisor determines that the Franchisee is unable to satisfactorily complete the training
program described above, Franchisor has the right to terminate this Agreement and retain the Franchise
Fee. If Franchisee is a business entity and the Manager fails to complete the initial training program to
Franchisor’s reasonable satisfaction, Franchisee may be permitted to select a substitute manager and such
substitute manager must complete the initial training to Franchisor’s satisfaction. Franchisee will be
required to pay Franchisor’s then-current rates for additional training or $375 per day per person, whichever
is greater, for providing the substitute manager an initial training program at our location, or our then-
current rates for additional training or $375 per day per person, whichever is greater, for training at
Franchisee's location (plus hotel, air fare and other expenses incurred by our trainer).

8.4 Ongoing Training

From time to time, Franchisor may provide and if it does, has the right to require that the Franchisee
attend ongoing training programs, seminars, conferences, conventions, or webinars during the term of this
Agreement, at Franchisee's expense of $375 per person per day if ongoing training is at our location, or
$375 per person per day (plus hotel, air fare and other expenses incurred by our trainer) if ongoing training
is at Franchisee's location. Franchisor shall not require the Franchisee to attend more than two (2) sessions
in any calendar year. Franchisee shall be responsible for all travel costs, room and board and employees’
salaries incurred in connection with its attendance at such training.

9. OPERATIONS MANUAL
9.1 Loan by Franchisor

While this Agreement is in effect, Franchisor shall grant Franchisee access to an electronic copy of
the Operations Manual. Franchisee shall conduct the Franchised Business in strict accordance with the
provisions in the Operations Manual. The Operations Manual may consist of one (1) or more separate
manuals and other materials as designated by Franchisor and may be in written or electronic form. The
Operations Manual shall, at all times, remain the sole property of Franchisor and shall promptly be returned
to Franchisor upon expiration or termination of this Agreement.

9.2 Revisions

Franchisor has the right to add to or otherwise modify the Operations Manual from time to time to
reflect changes in the specifications, standards, operating procedures, and rules prescribed by Franchisor;
provided, however, that no such addition or modification shall materially alter Franchisee’s fundamental
status and rights under this Agreement. Franchisor may make such additions or modifications without prior
notice to Franchisee. Franchisee shall immediately, upon notice, adopt any such changes and shall ensure
that its copy of the Operations Manual is up-to-date at all times. If a dispute as to the contents of the
Operations Manual arises, the terms of the master copy of the Operations Manual maintained by Franchisor
at Franchisor’s headquarters shall be controlling.
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9.3 Confidentiality

The Operations Manual contains Trade Secrets and other Confidential Information of Franchisor
and its contents shall be kept confidential by Franchisee both during the term of the Franchise and
subsequent to the expiration and non-renewal or termination of this Agreement. Franchisee shall at all times
ensure that its copy of the Operations Manual is available at the Franchised Business in a current and up-
to-date manner. If the Operations Manual is in paper form or stored on computer-readable media,
Franchisee shall maintain the Operations Manual in a secure manner at the Franchised Business; if the
Operations Manual is in electronic form, Franchisee shall maintain the Operations Manual in a password-
protected file. Franchisee shall only grant authorized personnel, as defined in the Operations Manual, access
to the Operations Manual or any key, combination, or passwords needed for access to the Operations
Manual. Franchisee shall not disclose, duplicate or otherwise use any portion of the Operations Manual in
an unauthorized manner.

10. FRANCHISE SYSTEM
10.1  Uniformity

Franchisee shall strictly comply, and shall cause the Franchised Business and its employees to
strictly comply, with all requirements, specifications, standards, operating procedures and rules in this
Agreement, the Operations Manual or other communications supplied to Franchisee by Franchisor. In order
to be considered in compliance, you must fulfill all Franchisee-required obligations, including, but
not limited to, financial, operational, and administrative obligations.

10.2  Modification of the System

Franchisee recognizes that from time to time, Franchisor may introduce, as part of the System,
other methods or technology which require certain System modifications including, without limitation, the
adoption and use of modified or substitute Marks, new computer hardware and software, equipment or
signs. Franchisee agrees to make all required upgrades and modifications at its expense as may be required
by Franchisor; provided, however, that Franchisee shall not be required to make any expenditures during
the first year of the initial term or any expenditures which are unreasonably disproportionate to Franchisee’s
initial investment to establish the Franchised Business during the initial term. If such additional investment
is required to be made in the last year of the initial term, Franchisee may avoid making the investment by
providing notice of intent not to renew the Franchise unless the investment is in connection with a
modification to the System required by law or court order. Franchisee acknowledges that any required
expenditures for changes or upgrades to the System shall be in addition to expenditures for repairs and
maintenance as required in Section 13.2 of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisee shall
be required to make any and all improvements or modifications whenever such are required by law,
regulation, agency decision or court order.

10.3  Refurbishment of the Equipment

Every fifth (5th) year after execution of this Agreement, Franchisee, upon Franchisor’s request
shall expend a minimum of 15,000 for purposes of updating Franchisee’s equipment. Franchisor shall
provide Franchisee with specifications and assistance in such refurbishment. The obligations described
herein are exclusive of the obligations described in Section 10.2.
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10.4  Variance

Franchisor has the right to vary standards or specifications for any franchisee based upon that
particular franchisee’s qualifications, the peculiarities of the particular site or circumstances, the
demographics of the trade area, business potential, existing business practices or any other condition which
Franchisor deems to be of importance to the successful operation of any particular Sugaring NYC Business.
Franchisor shall not be required to disclose or grant to Franchisee a like or similar variance hereunder.

11. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES
11.1  National Advertising and Development Fund

Franchisor will begin collecting a System-wide marketing, advertising, and promotion fund to
assist in Franchisor’s regional and national advertising (“Marketing Fund”) after Franchisee has completed
one (1) month of operation. Franchisee shall be required to contribute monthly to the Marketing Fund in an
amount of 1% of Gross Revenues for the previous month (“Marketing Fund Contribution”). Marketing
Fund Contributions shall be made at the time and in the manner provided for Royalty Fees in Section 3.2.
Franchisor shall notify Franchisee at least thirty (30) days before changing Marketing Fund Contribution
requirements. The Marketing Fund shall be maintained and administered by Franchisor or its designee as
follows:

(a) Franchisee shall continuously and consistently promote the Franchised Business. Every
month, Franchisee shall participate in a variety of marketing and promotions such as door mailings, public
relations, online or mobile advertisement, or any other form of marketing within the immediate locality
surrounding the Franchised Business, as well as direct sales support when requested by Franchisor.
Franchisor shall oversee all local advertising/marketing programs, with sole control over creative concepts,
materials, and media used in such programs, and the placement and allocation thereof. Franchisor does not
warrant that any particular franchisee will benefit directly or pro rata from expenditures by its local
advertising program. Franchisor does not warrant the success or effectiveness of any particular
advertising/marketing program.

(b) Franchisee’s Marketing Fund Contributions may be used to meet the costs of, or to
reimburse Franchisor for its costs of, producing, maintaining, administering and directing consumer
advertising (including, without limitation, the cost of preparing and conducting television, radio, Internet,
intranet, magazine, newspaper, and direct mail advertising campaigns and other public relations activities;
developing and/or hosting an Internet and/or intranet web page or site and similar activities; employing
advertising agencies to assist therein; and providing promotional brochures and other marketing materials
to franchisees). All Marketing Fund Contributions shall be maintained in a separate account from the
monies of Franchisor and shall not be used to defray any of Franchisor’s general operating expenses, except
for such reasonable costs and expenses, if any, that Franchisor may incur in activities reasonably related to
the administration of the Marketing Fund.

(c) Franchisor shall endeavor to spend all Marketing Fund Contributions on marketing
programs and promotions during Franchisor’s fiscal year within which such contributions are made. If
excess amounts remain in any Marketing Fund at the end of such fiscal year, all expenditures in the
following fiscal year(s) shall be made first out of such excess amounts, including any interest or other
earnings of the Marketing Fund, and next out of prior year contributions and then out of current
contributions.

(d) Although Franchisor intends the Marketing Fund to be of perpetual duration, Franchisor
has the right to terminate the Marketing Fund at any time. The Marketing Fund shall not be terminated,
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however, until all Marketing Fund Contributions have been expended for advertising and promotional
purposes or returned to Franchisee and other franchisees on a pro rata basis based on total Marketing Fund
Contributions made in the aggregate by each franchisee.

(e) Our Affiliate is not required to contribute to the fund, nor is Franchisor. Except for salaries
of marketing personnel employed by Sugaring NYC, we do not currently receive compensation for
providing goods or services to the fund.

63} An accounting of the operation of the Marketing Fund shall be prepared annually and shall
be available to Franchisee upon request. Franchisor retains the right to have the Marketing Fund reviewed
or audited and reported on, at the expense of the Marketing Fund, by an independent certified public
accountant selected by Franchisor.

(g) Franchisee acknowledges that the Marketing Fund is not a trust and Franchisor assumes no
fiduciary duty in administering the Marketing Fund.

11.2  Cooperative Advertising

Franchisor has the right, but not the obligation, to create a Cooperative Advertising program for
the benefit of Sugaring NYC businesses located within a particular region and require you to participate
and contribute up to 2% of gross monthly sales to the Cooperative Advertising Program. Franchisor also
has the right to collect and designate all or a portion of the Local Advertising or the National Advertising
and Development Fund to payments or contributions to Franchisor for the funding of a Cooperative
Advertising program. Franchisor has the right to determine the composition of all geographic territories and
market areas for the implementation of each Cooperative Advertising program and to require that
Franchisee participate in such Cooperative Advertising programs when established within Franchisee’s
region. If a Cooperative Advertising program is implemented in a particular region, Franchisor has the right
to establish an advertising council to self-administer the Cooperative Advertising program. Franchisee shall
participate in the council according to the council’s rules and procedures and Franchisee shall abide by the
council’s decisions. Should Franchisor establish a Cooperative Advertising program or programs with or
without an advertising council, Franchisor has the right, but not the obligation, to change, dissolve or merge
such program(s) and/or council(s) at any time. Franchisor owned outlets will have the same vote, one vote
per outlet, as franchised outlets have on any fees imposed by cooperatives. Any amounts you contribute to
a cooperative program will count toward the 2% of gross revenues you are required to spend on local
advertising through the NADF.

11.3  Grand Opening Advertising

Franchisee shall spend a minimum of $3,000 to $5,000 in “Grand Opening” advertising and
promotions before and during the 30-day period following the commencement of operations, based upon
Franchisor’s guidelines.

11.4  Local Advertising

You shall spend at least two percent (2%) of Gross Revenue per month on local marketing, advertising and
promotion in such manner as Sugaring NYC may, in its sole discretion, direct in the Manual or otherwise
in writing from time-to-time. At present, Sugaring NYC intends to collect two percent (2%) of Gross
Revenue per month, to be used by Sugaring NYC, on your behalf, on digital advertising. You may request
Sugaring NYC to spend more than two percent (2%) of Gross Revenue per month on advertising on your
behalf, on condition that you reimburse Sugaring NYC for any additional costs and expenses. If advertising
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is not directed through Sugaring NYC, upon Sugaring NYC’s request, You shall provide satisfactory
evidence of its local advertising and promotion expenditures in such manner as Sugaring NYC shall direct
in the manual or otherwise in writing from time-to-time.

11.5 Internet Advertising

You are restricted from establishing a presence on, or marketing on the Internet without our written consent.
We have an Internet website at the uniform resource locator www.sugaringnyc.com that provides
information about the System and about Sugaring NYC franchises. We may provide you with a page on
our home page, where we will have contact information for your location. All information posted on the
Sugaring NYC website or any linked webpages must be approved by us before it is posted. We retain the
sole right to market on the Internet, including the use of websites, domain names, uniform resource locators,
keywords, linking, search engines (and search engine optimization techniques), banner ads, meta-tags,
marketing, auction sites, e-commerce, and co-branding arrangements. You may be requested to provide
content for our Internet marketing and you must follow our intranet and Internet usage rules, policies and
requirements. We retain the sole right to use the Marks on the Internet, including on websites, as domain
names, directory addresses, search terms and meta-tags, social media pages and in connection with linking,
marketing, co-branding and other arrangements. We retain the sole right to approve any linking to, or other
use of, the Sugaring NYC website. You are not permitted to use a domain name containing “Sugaring NYC”
in the URL.

11.6  Custom Designed Advertising

If you request and we agree to provide any additional advertising design work that you request (whether
related to the internet, social media, print materials, etc.), you agree to pay to us $50/hour for any design
work beyond the templates that we provide.

12. ACCOUNTING, RECORDS, AND REPORTING OBLIGATIONS
12.1  Records

During the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall maintain full, complete, and accurate books,
records and accounts in accordance with the standard accounting system prescribed by Franchisor in the
Operations Manual or otherwise in writing. Franchisee shall utilize an accounting software such as
Quickbooks.com (or other Franchisor approved accounting software) to manage its books. Franchisee shall
retain during the term of this Agreement, and for three (3) years thereafter, all books and records related to
the Franchised Business including, without limitation, purchase orders, invoices, payroll records, sales tax
records, state and federal tax returns, bank statements, cancelled checks, deposit receipts, cash receipts and
disbursement journals, general ledgers, and any other financial records designated by Franchisor or required
by law.

12.2  Gross Revenues Reports

Franchisee shall maintain an accurate record of Gross Revenues and shall deliver to Franchisor
electronically a signed and verified statement of Gross Revenues (“Gross Revenues Report™) for the month
ending each month by the 5th day of each month in a form that Franchisor approves or provides in the
Operations Manual. The Gross Revenues Report for the preceding month must be provided to Franchisor
by the close of business on the 5th of each month as provided in Section 3.2.
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12.3  Financial Statements

Franchisee shall supply to Franchisor on or before the fifth (5th) day of each month, in a form
approved by Franchisor, a balance sheet as of the end of the last day of the preceding month and an income
statement for the preceding month and the fiscal year-to-date. Franchisee shall, at its expense, submit to
Franchisor within ninety (90) days after the end of each calendar year, an income statement for the calendar
year just ended and a balance sheet as of the last day of the calendar year. Such financial statements shall
be prepared in accordance with GAAP, applied on a consistent basis. If required by Franchisor, such
financial statements shall be reviewed or audited by a certified public accountant. Franchisee shall submit
to Franchisor such other periodic reports in the manner and at the time specified in the Operations Manual
or otherwise in writing.

12.4  Other Reports

Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor copies of all state sales tax returns that are required to be
filed with the appropriate governmental agency and such other records as Franchisor may reasonably
request from time to time or as specified in the Operations Manual. Franchisor shall have the right to release
financial and operational information relating to the Franchised Business to Franchisor’s lenders or
prospective lenders. Franchisee shall certify as true and correct all reports to be submitted according to this
Agreement.

12.5  Computer and Surveillance Equipment

Franchisor reserves the right to require Franchisee to purchase, install and use computer equipment
consisting of hardware and software in accordance with Franchisor’s specifications. Franchisor shall have
full access to all of Franchisee’s computer, data and systems and all related information by means of direct
access, either in person or by telephone, modem or Internet to permit Franchisor to verify Franchisee’s
compliance with its obligations under this Agreement. Franchisor requires Franchisee to install a video
surveillance system selected by franchisor. Location of cameras to be determined by Franchisor to present
the best monitoring angles of the premise to benefit safety and security of business processes. Franchisor
requires 24-hour access to video stream via approved equipment.

12.6  Right to Inspect

Franchisor or its designee has the right, during normal business hours without notice, to examine,
copy, and audit the books, records and tax returns of Franchisee. If the audit or any other inspection should
reveal that any payments to Franchisor have been underpaid, then Franchisee shall immediately pay to
Franchisor the amount of the underpayment plus interest from the date such amount was due until paid at
the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month (or the rate legally allowed by the law of the state
where Franchisee is located, whichever is lower). Franchisee shall, in addition, reimburse Franchisor for
any and all costs and expenses connected with the inspection (including, without limitation, travel expenses
and reasonable accounting and attorneys’ fees). The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to any other
remedies Franchisor may have.

Independent Access to Information. We have, and you are required to, provide independent
access to the information that will be generated or stored in your computer systems, which includes, but not
limited to, customer, transaction, and operational information. We have the right to review your business
operations, in person, by mail, or electronically, and to inspect your operations and obtain your paper and
electronic business records related to the Franchised Business and any other operations taking place through
your Franchised Business.
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12.7 Release of Records

Under Right To Inspect, at Franchisor’s request Franchisee shall authorize Franchisor and/or its
direct third party(s), including accounting and legal professionals, to release to Franchisor all accounting
and financial records arising from or relating to the operation of the Franchised Business including, but not
limited to, records evidencing Gross Revenues, profits, losses, income, tax liabilities, tax payments,
revenues, expenses, and any correspondence, notes, memoranda, audits, business records, or internal
accounts within said third parties’ possession, custody or control, and to continue to release such records to
Franchisor on a monthly basis for the length of the unexpired term of this Agreement or until such time as
Franchisor withdraws its request. Franchisee shall execute all documents necessary to facilitate the release
of records referenced herein to Franchisor.

13. STANDARDS OF OPERATION
13.1  Authorized Products, Services, and Suppliers

13.1.1 Franchisee acknowledges that the reputation and goodwill of the System is based in large
part on offering high quality products and services to its customers. Accordingly, Franchisee shall provide
or offer for sale or use at the Franchised Business only those services, with the greatest diligence and care
by Franchisee, that Franchisor approves (and which are not thereafter disapproved) and that comply with
Franchisor’s specifications and quality standards. If required by Franchisor, any such items or services shall
be purchased only from Franchisor. Franchisor shall maintain inventory levels for all supplies offered solely
by Franchisor at a level sufficient to ensure prompt delivery to all Franchisees. Franchisee shall NOT offer
for sale, sell or provide through the Franchised Business or from the Franchised Business any products or
services that Franchisor has not approved. Furthermore, Franchisee must offer for sale all services and
products currently offered by Franchisor or which will be offered by the Franchisor in the future.

13.1.2 Notwithstanding anything contrary in this Agreement, Franchisor has the right to review
from time to time its approval of any items or suppliers. Franchisor may revoke its approval of any item,
service or supplier at any time by notifying Franchisee and/or the supplier. Franchisee shall, at its own
expense, promptly cease using, selling or providing any items or services disapproved by Franchisor. The
cost to review a new product or service as proposed by Franchisee shall not exceed $1,000.00 per product
or service.

13.1.3 Franchisor has the right to designate certain products and services, not otherwise authorized
for general use as part of the System, to be offered locally or regionally based upon such factors as
Franchisor determines including, but not limited to, franchisee qualifications, test marketing and regional
or local differences. Franchisor has the right to give its consent to one (1) or more franchisees to provide
certain products or services not authorized for general use as part of the System. Such consent will be based
upon the factors in Section 10.4 and shall not create any rights in Franchisee to provide the same products
or services.

13.1.4 Franchisor has the right to retain volume rebates, markups, and other benefits from
suppliers or in connection with the furnishing of suppliers. Franchisee shall have no entitlement to or
interest in any such benefits.

13.1.5 Franchisor shall provide Franchisee, in the Operations Manual or other written or electronic
form, with a list of specifications and, if required, a list of Approved Suppliers for some or all of the
supplies, furniture, fixtures, inventory, equipment and other approved or specified items and services, and
Franchisor may from time to time issue revisions to such list. If Franchisor or an Affiliate is an Approved
Supplier, Franchisee shall execute a standard form purchase or supply agreement for the items to be
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supplied by Franchisor or its Affiliate. If Franchisee desires to utilize any products, services or new
technology that Franchisor has not approved (for products and services that require supplier approval),
Franchisee shall first send Franchisor sufficient information, specifications and samples for Franchisor to
determine whether the service or product complies with its standards and specifications or whether the
supplier meets its Approved Supplier criteria. Franchisee shall bear all expenses incurred by Franchisor in
connection with determining whether it shall approve an item, service or supplier, not to exceed $1,000.00.
Franchisor will decide within a reasonable time (usually thirty [30] days) after receiving the required
information whether Franchisee may purchase or lease such items or services or from such supplier.
Approval of a supplier may be conditioned on the supplier’s ability to provide sufficient quantity of product;
quality of products or services at competitive prices; production and delivery capability; and dependability
and general reputation. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to require Franchisor to approve any
particular supplier, or to require Franchisor to make available to prospective suppliers, standards and
specifications that Franchisor deems confidential.

13.2  Appearance and Condition of the Franchised Business

Franchisee shall maintain the service equipment, Premises and signage of the Franchised Business
in “like new” condition, and shall repair or replace service equipment, the Premises and signage as
necessary to comply with the health and safety standards and specifications of Franchisor and any
applicable laws or regulations. The expense of such maintenance shall be borne by Franchisee and shall be
in addition to any required System modifications, as described in Section 10.2.

13.3  Ownership and Management

The Franchised Business shall, at all times, be under the direct supervision of Franchisee or its
approved manager. Franchisee and/or its manager shall devote sufficient efforts to the management of the
day-to-day operation of the Franchised Business, but not less than forty (40) hours per week, not excluding
vacation, sick leave and similar absences. Franchisee shall keep Franchisor informed, in writing, at all times
of the identity of its manager. Franchisee must not engage in any business or other activities that will
conflict with its obligations under this Agreement.

13.4  Days of Operation

Franchisee shall keep the Franchised Business open for business during normal business hours on
the days specified in the Operations Manual.

13.5  Contributions and Donations

In order to protect the Marks, Franchisee must obtain Franchisor’s prior written consent before
making any contributions or donations of items, services or funds to any individual or entity, or provide
any type of other benefit to any charitable, religious, political, social, civic or other type of organization (or
to any individual on behalf of any organization). Franchisor may withhold any such consent in its sole and
absolute discretion.

13.6  Licenses and Permits

Franchisee shall secure and maintain in force all required operational and professional licenses,
permits and certificates necessary for the operation of the Franchised Business, and shall operate the
Franchised Business in full compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations. Franchisor
makes no representation to Franchisee with regard to any legal requirements that Franchisee must satisfy
or comply with in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business. Franchisee shall be solely
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responsible for investigating and complying with all such laws, ordinances and regulations with regard to
the operation of the Franchised Business.

13.7  Notification of Proceedings

Franchisee shall notify Franchisor in writing of the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding
involving Franchisee or the Franchised Business, and of the issuance of any order, writ, injunction,
judgment, award or decree which may affect the operation or financial condition of the Franchised Business
not more than five (5) days after notice of such commencement or issuance. Franchisee shall deliver to
Franchisor not more than five (5) days after Franchisee’s receipt thereof, a copy of any inspection report,
warning, certificate or rating by any governmental agency relating to any health or safety law, rule or
regulation that reflects Franchisee’s failure to meet and maintain the highest applicable rating or
Franchisee’s noncompliance or less than full compliance with any applicable law, rule or regulation.

13.8  Compliance with Good Business Practices

Franchisee acknowledges that the quality of customer service, and every detail of appearance and
demeanor of Franchisee and its employees, is material to this Agreement and the relationship created and
licenses granted hereby. Therefore, Franchisee shall endeavor to maintain high standards of quality and
service in the operation of the Franchised Business, including operating in strict compliance with all
applicable rules and regulations. Franchisee shall at all times give prompt, courteous and efficient service
to customers of the Franchised Business. The Franchised Business shall in all dealings with its customers,
vendors and the general public, adhere to the highest standards of honesty, fair dealing and ethical conduct.
If Franchisor deems that Franchisee did not fairly handle a customer complaint or has operated outside of
applicable rules and regulations, Franchisor has the right to intervene and satisfy the customer. Franchisor
has the right to terminate this Agreement for violation of this Section. Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor
for all costs incurred by Franchisor in servicing a customer of the Franchised Business according to this
Section.

13.9  Uniforms

Franchisee shall abide by all uniform and dress code requirements stated in the Operations Manual
or otherwise. Uniforms must be purchased from an Approved Supplier, if such is designated, or if none,
then a supplier who meets Franchisor’s specifications and quality standards for uniforms.

13.10 Credit Cards

Franchisee shall, at its expense, lease or purchase the necessary equipment to process and accept
credit card payments pursuant to our specifications.

13.11 E-Mail

Franchisor will set up an email address for Franchisee’s benefit, using Franchisor’s information,
methods, and trade name. Franchisor may charge a maintenance fee, which fee shall be communicated
contemporaneous of Franchisor’s initiation of the alternative e-mail as mentioned in this section.

13.12 Best Efforts

Franchisee shall use its best efforts to promote and increase the sales and recognition of services
offered through the Franchised Business. Franchisee shall require all of Franchisee’s employees, managers,
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officers, agents and representatives to make a good faith effort to enhance and improve the System and the
sales of all products and services provided as part of the System.

14. FRANCHISOR’S ADDITIONAL OPERATIONS ASSISTANCE
14.1  General Advice and Guidance

Franchisor shall be available to render advice, discuss problems, and offer general guidance to
Franchisee by telephone and/or electronic correspondence, with respect to planning and operating the
Franchised Business. Franchisor shall not charge for this service. Franchisor’s advice or guidance to
Franchisee relative to prices for products and services that, in Franchisor’s judgment, constitutes good
business practice is based upon the experience of Franchisor and its franchisees in operating Sugaring NYC
businesses and an analysis of costs and prices charged for competitive products and services. Within range,
Franchisee shall have the right to change/determine the price to be charged for a particular service by the
Franchised Business at the time of sale (if necessary). Notwithstanding, Franchisee acknowledges and
agrees that Franchisor shall not be held liable for such advice; any decisions made by Franchisee, whether
on its own accord or through suggestion from Franchisor is Franchisee's sole and absolute responsibility.

14.2  Periodic Visits

Franchisor or Franchisor’s representative may make periodic visits, which may be announced or
unannounced, to the Franchised Business for the purposes of consultation, assistance and guidance with
respect to various aspects of the operation and management of the Franchised Business. Franchisor may
also accompany Franchisee and/or Franchisee’s employees along any job site visits, in order to monitor all
business practices and better render any advice or opinions. Franchisor and Franchisor’s representatives
who visit the Franchised Business or accompany Franchisee and/or Franchisee’s employees along job site
visits may prepare, for the benefit of both Franchisor and Franchisee, written reports detailing any problems
or concerns discovered during any such visit and outlining any required or suggested changes or
improvements in the operations of the Franchised Business. A copy of any such written report may be
provided to Franchisee. Franchisee shall implement any required changes or improvements as required by
Franchisor with time being of the essence.

15. INSURANCE
15.1 Types and Amounts of Coverage

At its sole expense, Franchisee shall procure, at least thirty (30) days prior to opening the
Franchised Business, and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, the types of
insurance listed below, and/or requested by law in their territory/city(s) of operation. All policies (except
any workers’ compensation insurance) shall expressly name Franchisor as an additional insured or loss
payee and all shall contain a waiver of all subrogation rights against Franchisor and its successors and
assigns. In addition to any other insurance that may be required by applicable law, or by lender or lessor,
Franchisee shall procure the following insurance:

$1,000,000 Per Occurrence
General Liability Insurance

$2,000,000 In the Aggregate
Business Liability Insurance $500,000 Per Month
Workmen’s Compensation As required by law Per Employee
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Optional: Business Interruption Insurance | $50,000 Not less than Per Month

15.2  Future Increases

Franchisor has the right to reasonably increase the minimum liability protection requirement
annually and require different or additional insurance coverage(s) to reflect inflation, changes in standards
of liability, future damage awards, or other relevant changes in circumstances.

15.3  Carrier Standards

Such policies shall be written by an insurance company licensed in the state in which Franchisee
operates and having at least an “A” Rating Classification as indicated in the latest issue of A.M. Best’s Key
Rating Guide. Although A.M. Best groups “A” and “A-" in the same classification, Franchisor demands an
“A” rating.

154  Evidence of Coverage

Franchisee’s obligation to obtain and maintain the foregoing policies shall not be limited in any
way by reason of any insurance which may be maintained by Franchisor, nor shall Franchisee’s
performance of this obligation relieve it of liability under the indemnity provisions in Section 21.3. Upon
issuance of a policy and renewal of said policy, Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor, certificates of
insurance showing compliance with the foregoing requirements within fifteen (15) days of Franchisee’s
receipt of such certificates. Such certificates shall state that said policy or policies shall not be canceled or
altered without at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Franchisor and shall reflect proof of payment
of premiums.

15.5  Failure to Maintain Coverage

Should Franchisee not procure and maintain insurance coverage as required by this Agreement,
Franchisor has the right (but not the obligation) to immediately procure such insurance coverage and to
charge the premiums to Franchisee, which charges, together with a reasonable fee for expenses incurred by
Franchisor in connection with such procurement, shall be payable by Franchisee immediately upon notice.

16. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

16.1 Termination by Franchisee

Under no circumstances may Franchisee terminate this Agreement.

16.2  Termination by Franchisor

16.2.1 Franchisor has the right to terminate this Agreement, without any opportunity to cure by
Franchisee, if Franchisee:

(a) fails to timely establish, equip, and commence operations of the Franchised Business
according to Section 5;

(b) fails to satisfactorily complete any training program according to Section 8;
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(c) fails to maintain all required professional licenses, permits, and certifications for a period
exceeding five (5) business days;

(d) made any material misrepresentation or omission in its application for the Franchise or
otherwise to Franchisor in the course of entering into this Agreement;

(e) is convicted of or pleads no contest to a felony or other crime or offense that is likely to
adversely affect the reputation of Franchisor, Franchisee, or the Franchised Business;

6] after notice to cure, fails to refrain from activities, behavior, or conduct likely to adversely
affect the reputation of Franchisor, Franchisee, or the Franchised Business;

() discloses, duplicates, or otherwise uses in an unauthorized manner any portion of the
Operations Manual, Trade Secrets, or any other Confidential Information;

(h) if required by Franchisor, fails to have any holder of a legal or beneficial interest in
Franchisee (and any member of their immediate families or households), and any officer, director,
executive, manager or member of the professional staff and all employees of Franchisee, execute a
nondisclosure and non-competition agreement, in a form the same as or similar to the Nondisclosure and
Non-Competition Agreement attached as Schedule 2, upon execution of this Agreement or prior to each
such person’s affiliation with Franchisee or fails to provide Franchisor with copies of all nondisclosure and
non-competition agreements signed according to Section 7.4 if requested by Franchisor;

@) abandons, fails, or refuses to actively operate the Franchised Business for five (5) or more
consecutive days (unless the Franchised Business has not been operational for a purpose approved by
Franchisor), or, if first approved by Franchisor, fails to promptly relocate the Franchised Business or any
other event rendering the Premises unusable;

G) surrenders or transfers control of the operation of the Franchised Business without
Franchisor’s approval, makes or attempts to make an unauthorized direct or indirect assignment of the
Franchise or an ownership interest in Franchisee, or fails or refuses to assign the Franchise or the interest
in the Franchise of a deceased or incapacitated owner thereof as herein required,

k) fails to maintain the Franchised Business under the primary supervision of an approved
manager during the one hundred eighty (180) days following the death or Incapacity of Franchisee or any
holder of a legal or beneficial interest in Franchisee according to Section 18.6;

1)) submits to Franchisor on two (2) or more separate occasions at any time during the term of
the Franchise any reports or other data, information or supporting records that understate any Royalty Fee
or any other fees owed to Franchisor by more than two percent (2%) for any accounting period and
Franchisee is unable to demonstrate that such understatements resulted from inadvertent error;

(m) becomes insolvent, meaning unable to pay bills as they become due in the ordinary course
of business;

(n) misuses or makes an unauthorized use of any of the Marks or commits any other act which
can reasonably be expected to impair the goodwill associated with any of the Marks;

(o) fails on two (2) or more separate occasions within any period of twelve (12) consecutive
months to submit reports or other information or supporting records when due, to pay any Royalty Fee,
Marketing Fund Contribution, amounts due for purchases from Franchisor and any Affiliate, or other
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payment when due to Franchisor or any Affiliate, whether or not such failures to comply are corrected after
notice thereof is delivered to Franchisee;

(p) violates on two (2) or more occasions any health or safety law, ordinance or regulation, or
operates the Franchised Business in a manner that presents a health or safety hazard to its customers,
employees, or the public;

(9 engages in any activity exclusively reserved to Franchisor;

(r) fails to comply with any applicable law or regulation within ten (10) days after being given
notice of noncompliance;

(s) breaches this Agreement 3 times in a 12-month period and/or fails 3 times in a 12-month
period to comply with mandatory specifications, customer service standards, or operating procedures
prescribed in the Operations Manual, whether or not previous breaches or failures are cured;

v defaults under any other agreement between Franchisor (or any Affiliate) and Franchisee,
such that Franchisor or its Affiliate, as the case may be, has the right to terminate such agreement or such
agreement automatically terminates;

(w) performs Targeted Marketing in any geographic location outside of the Territory, whether
or not such geographic location falls within another franchisee’s territory or the territory of any other
Franchisor-controlled business.

) fails to refer business opportunities or offers received by third parties, if such business
opportunities or offers would take place in any geographic location which falls under the territory of other
franchisees, Franchisor’s associated businesses, or which are directly controlled by the Franchisor.

16.2.2 Except as otherwise provided in Section 16.2.1, Franchisor has the right to terminate this
Agreement for the following breaches and defaults by giving notice of such termination stating the nature
of the default; provided, however, that Franchisee may avoid termination by curing such default or failure
(or by providing proof acceptable to Franchisor that Franchisee has made all reasonable efforts to cure such
default or failure and shall continue to make all reasonable efforts to cure until a cure is effected if such
default or failure cannot reasonably be cured before the effective date of the termination) within the

specified period:

(a) within five (5) days of receiving notice of Franchisee’s failure to pay any amounts due to
Franchisor;

(b) within ten (10) days of receiving notice of Franchisee’s failure to maintain insurance as

specified in Section 15 of this Agreement; or

(c) within thirty (30) days of receiving notice of any other default by Franchisee or upon
Franchisee’s failure to comply with any mandatory specification, standard, or operating procedure
prescribed in the Operations Manual or otherwise prescribed in writing.

16.2.3 For any default of this Agreement which triggers Franchisor’s ability to terminate,
Franchisor may as an alternative to termination at its sole and absolute discretion, modify or completely
eliminate any rights Franchisee may have with respect to the Territory, effective ten (10) days after delivery
of written notice to Franchisee.
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16.3 Reinstatement and Extension

If provisions of this Agreement provide for periods of notice less than those required by applicable
law, or provide for termination, cancellation or non-renewal other than in accordance with applicable law,
Franchisor may reinstate or extend the term of this Agreement for the purpose of complying with applicable
law by submitting a written notice to Franchisee without waiving any of Franchisor’s rights under this
Agreement.

16.4  Right of Franchisor to Discontinue Services to Franchisee

If Franchisee is in breach of any obligation under this Agreement, and Franchisor delivers to
Franchisee a notice of termination according to Section 16.2.2, Franchisor has the right to suspend its
performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement including, without limitation, the sale or supply
of any products or services for which Franchisor is an Approved Supplier to Franchisee, until such time as
Franchisee corrects the breach.

16.5  Right of Franchisor to Operate Franchised Business

Following the delivery of a notice of termination according to Section 16.2.2, if necessary in
Franchisor’s discretion, Franchisor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to assume the operation of
the Franchised Business until such time as Franchisee corrects the breach. Franchisor may charge a
management fee as stated in the Operations Manual from time to time, currently equal to TWO HUNDRED
AND FIFTY DOLLARS ($250.00) per day, and Franchisor shall be entitled to reimbursement of any
expenses Franchisor incurs that are not paid out of the operating cash flow of the Franchised Business.

17. RIGHTS AND DUTIES UPON EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION
17.1  Actions to be Taken

Except as otherwise provided herein, upon termination or expiration, this Agreement and all rights
granted hereunder to Franchisee shall terminate and Franchisee shall:

(a) immediately cease to operate the Franchised Business and shall not thereafter, directly or
indirectly, represent to the public or hold itself out as a present or former franchisee of Franchisor;

(b) cease to use the Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information, the System and the Marks,
including, without limitation, all slogans, symbols, logos, advertising materials, stationery, forms, and any
other items which display or are associated with the Marks;

(c) take such action as may be necessary to cancel or assign to Franchisor, at Franchisor’s
option, any assumed name or equivalent registration filed with state, city, or county authorities which
contains the name “Sugaring NYC” or any other Mark, and Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with
evidence satisfactory to Franchisor of compliance with this obligation within thirty (30) days after
termination or expiration of this Agreement;

(d) pay all sums owing to Franchisor and any Affiliate. In the event of termination for any
default of Franchisee, such sums shall include, but not be limited to, all damages, costs, and expenses,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees, with respect to litigation, arbitration, appellate, or bankruptcy
proceedings, unpaid Royalty Fees, loss of future Royalty Fee payments incurred by Franchisor as a result
of any early termination of this Agreement, and any other amounts due to Franchisor or any Affiliate;
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(e) pay to Franchisor all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by
Franchisor subsequent to the termination or expiration of the Franchise in obtaining injunctive or other
relief for the enforcement of any provisions of this Agreement;

) immediately return to Franchisor the Operations Manual, Trade Secrets, and all other
Confidential Information, including records, files, instructions, brochures, agreements, disclosure
statements, and any and all other materials provided by Franchisor to Franchisee relating to the operation
of the Franchised Business (all of which are acknowledged to be Franchisor’s property);

(2) assign all telephone listings and numbers for the Franchised Business to Franchisor and
shall notify the telephone company and all listing agencies of the termination or expiration of Franchisee’s
right to use any telephone numbers or facsimile numbers associated with the Marks in any regular, classified
or other telephone directory listing and shall authorize transfer of same to or at the direction of Franchisor;
and

(h) comply with all other applicable provisions of this Agreement.
17.2  Post-Termination Covenant Not to Compete

17.2.1 Franchisee acknowledges that the restrictive covenants contained in this Section and in
Section 17 are fair and reasonable.

17.2.2 Except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, neither Franchisee, nor any holder
of a legal or beneficial interest in Franchisee, nor any officer, director, executive, manager or member of
the professional staff of Franchisee, shall, for a period of two (2) years after the expiration or termination
of this Agreement, regardless of the cause of termination, either directly or indirectly:

(a) offer Competitive Business services located or operating (a) at or within a twenty-five (25)
mile radius of the Franchised Business, or (b) within a twenty-five (25) mile radius of any other Sugaring
NYC Business in existence at the time of termination or expiration, or (c) any other business owned or
operated by the Franchisor in existence at the time of termination or expansion;

(b) solicit or otherwise attempt to induce or influence any customer or other business associate
of Franchisor to terminate or modify his, her or its business relationship with Franchisor or to compete
against Franchisor; or

(c) In furtherance of this Section, Franchisor has the right to require certain individuals to
execute standard form nondisclosure or non-competition agreements in a form the same as or similar to the
Nondisclosure and Non-Competition Agreement attached as Schedule 2.

17.3  Unfair Competition

If Franchisee operates any other business, Franchisee shall not use any reproduction, counterfeit,
copy or colorable imitation of the Marks, either in connection with such other business or the promotion
thereof, that is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception, or that is likely to dilute Franchisor’s rights
in the Marks. Franchisee shall not utilize any designation of origin, description or representation that falsely
suggests or represents an association or connection with Franchisor. This Section is not intended as an
approval of Franchisee’s right to operate other businesses and in no way is it intended to contradict Sections
17, 17.1 or 17.2. Franchisee shall make such modifications or alterations to the Franchised Business
(including changing telephone and facsimile numbers) immediately upon termination or expiration of this
Agreement as may be necessary to prevent any association between Franchisor or the System and any
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business subsequently operated by Franchisee or others at the Franchised Business. Franchisee shall make
such specific additional changes to the Franchised Business as Franchisor may reasonably request for that
purpose including, without limitation, removal of all physical and structural features identifying or
distinctive to the System. If Franchisee fails or refuses to comply with the requirements of this Section,
Franchisor has the right to enter upon the Franchised Business for the purpose of making or causing to be
made such changes as may be required, at the expense of Franchisee, which expense Franchisee shall pay
upon demand.

17.4  Franchisor’s Option to Purchase Certain Business Assets

Franchisor has the right (but not the obligation), for a period of thirty (30) days after termination
or expiration of this Agreement, to purchase any or all assets of the Franchised Business including
improvements, vehicles, service tools and equipment, supplies and other inventory or equipment. The
purchase price shall be equal to the assets’ book value. If Franchisor elects to exercise this option to
purchase, it has the right to set off all amounts due from Franchisee under this Agreement, if any, against
the purchase price.

17.5  Survival of Certain Provisions

All obligations of Franchisor and Franchisee, which expressly or by their nature survive the
expiration or termination of this Agreement, shall continue in full force and effect subsequent to and
notwithstanding their expiration or termination and until satisfied or by their nature expire.

18. TRANSFERABILITY OF INTEREST
18.1  Transfer by Franchisor

This Agreement and all rights and duties hereunder are fully transferable in whole or in part by
Franchisor and such rights will inure to the benefit of any person or entity to whom transferred; provided,
however, that with respect to any assignment resulting in the subsequent performance by the assignee of
the functions of Franchisor, the assignee shall assume the obligations of Franchisor hereunder and
Franchisor shall thereafter have no liability for the performance of any obligations contained in this
Agreement.

18.2  Transfer by Franchisee to a Third Party

The rights and duties of Franchisee as in this Agreement, and the Franchise herein granted, are
personal to Franchisee (or its owners), and Franchisor has entered into this Agreement in reliance upon
Franchisee’s personal or collective skill and financial ability. Accordingly, neither Franchisee nor any
holder of a legal or beneficial interest in Franchisee may sell, assign, convey, give away, pledge, mortgage,
sublicense or otherwise transfer, whether by operation of law or otherwise, any interest in this Agreement,
the Franchise granted hereby, the assets of the Franchised Business or any part or all of the ownership
interest in Franchisee without the prior written approval of Franchisor. Any purported transfer without such
approval shall be null and void and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. If Franchisee is in
compliance with this Agreement, Franchisor’s consent to such transfer shall be conditioned upon the
satisfaction of the following requirements:

(a) Franchisee has complied with the requirements in Section 19;

(b) all obligations owed to Franchisor, and all other outstanding obligations relating to the
Franchised Business, are fully paid and satisfied;
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(c) Franchisee (and any transferring owners, if Franchisee is a business entity) has executed a
general release, in a form the same as or similar to the General Release attached as Schedule 1, of any and
all claims against Franchisor, including its officers, directors, shareholders, managers, members, partners,
owners, employees and agents (in their corporate and individual capacities), including, without limitation,
claims arising under federal, state or local laws, rules or ordinances, and any other matters incident to the
termination of this Agreement or to the transfer of Franchisee’s interest herein or to the transfer of
Franchisee’s ownership of all or any part of the Franchise; provided, however, that if a general release is
prohibited, Franchisee shall give the maximum release allowed by law;

(d) the prospective transferee has satisfied Franchisor that it meets Franchisor’s management,
business and financial standards, and otherwise possesses the character and capabilities, including business
reputation and credit rating, as Franchisor may require to demonstrate ability to conduct the Franchised
Business;

(e) the transferee and, if Franchisor requires, all persons owning any interest in the transferee,
have executed the then-current franchise agreement for new franchisees, which may be substantially
different from this Agreement, including different Royalty Fee, Internet Advertising Program Fee and
Marketing Fund Contribution rates and other material provisions, and the franchise agreement then
executed shall be for the term specified in such agreement;

® the transferee has executed a general release, in a form the same as or similar to the General
Release attached as Schedule 1, of any and all claims against Franchisor and its officers, directors,
shareholders, managers, members, partners, owners, employees and agents (in their corporate and
individual capacities), with respect to any representations regarding the Franchise or the business conducted
pursuant thereto or any other matter that may have been made to the transferee by Franchisee;

(2) Franchisee has provided Franchisor with a complete copy of all contracts and agreements
and related documentation between Franchisee and the prospective transferee relating to the intended sale
or transfer of the Franchise;

(h) Franchisee, or the transferee, has paid to Franchisor, before the transaction is completed, a
transfer fee in the amount of the greater of 10% of the sales prices or 25% of our then-current initial
franchise fee;

1) the transferee, or all holders of a legal or beneficial interest in the transferee, has agreed to
be personally bound jointly and severally by all provisions of this Agreement for the remainder of its term
by executing a personal guaranty in such form as prepared by Franchisor;

G) the transferee has obtained all necessary consents and approvals by third parties and all
applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, ordinances, and requirements applicable to the transfer have
been complied with or satisfied;

(k) Franchisee has, and if Franchisee is an entity, all of the holders of a legal and beneficial
interest in Franchisee have executed and delivered to Franchisor a nondisclosure and non-competition
agreement in a form satisfactory to Franchisor and in substance the same as the nondisclosure and non-
competition covenants contained in Sections 7 and 17; and
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1)) the transferee agrees that it shall complete, to Franchisor’s satisfaction, a training program
in substance similar to the initial training described in Section 8.1 prior to assuming the management of the
day-to-day operation of the Franchised Business.

18.3  Transfer to a Controlled Entity

18.3.1 If Franchisee wishes to transfer this Agreement or any interest herein to a corporation,
limited liability company or other legal entity which shall be entirely owned by Franchisee (“Controlled
Entity”), which Controlled Entity is being formed for the financial planning, tax or other convenience of
Franchisee, Franchisor’s consent to such transfer shall be conditioned upon the satisfaction of the following
requirements:

(a) the Controlled Entity is newly organized and its charter or articles of formation provides
that its activities are confined exclusively to the operation of the Franchised Business;

(b) Franchisee or all holders of a legal or beneficial interest in Franchisee own all of the equity
and voting power of the outstanding stock or other capital interest in the Controlled Entity;

(c) all obligations of Franchisee to Franchisor or any Affiliate are fully paid and satisfied;
provided, however, that neither Franchisee nor the Controlled Entity shall be required to pay a transfer fee
as required according to Section 18.2(h);

(d) the Controlled Entity has entered into a written agreement with Franchisor expressly
assuming the obligations of this Agreement and all other agreements relating to the operation of the
Franchised Business. If the consent of any other party to any such other agreement is required, Franchisee
has obtained such written consent and provided the same to Franchisor prior to consent by Franchisor;

(e) all holders of a legal or beneficial interest in the Controlled Entity have entered into an
agreement with Franchisor jointly and severally guaranteeing the full payment of the Controlled Entity’s
obligations to Franchisor and the performance by the Controlled Entity of all the obligations of this
Agreement;

63} each stock certificate or other ownership interest certificate of the Controlled Entity has
conspicuously endorsed upon the face thereof a statement in a form satisfactory to Franchisor that it is held
subject to, and that further assignment or transfer thereof is subject to, all restrictions imposed upon transfers
and assignments by this Agreement; and

(8) copies of the Controlled Entity’s articles of incorporation or organization, bylaws,
operating agreement, federal tax identification number, and other governing regulations or documents,
including resolutions of the board of directors authorizing entry into this Agreement, have been promptly
furnished to Franchisor. Any amendment to any such documents shall also be furnished to Franchisor
immediately upon adoption.

18.3.2 The term of the transferred franchise shall be the unexpired term of this Agreement,
including all renewal rights, subject to any and all conditions applicable to such renewal rights.

18.3.3 Franchisor’s consent to a transfer of any interest in this Agreement, or of any ownership
interest in the Franchised Business, shall not constitute a waiver of any claims Franchisor may have against
the transferor or the transferee, nor shall it be deemed a waiver of Franchisor’s right to demand compliance
with the terms of this Agreement.
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18.4  Franchisor’s Disclosure to Transferee

Franchisor has the right, without liability of any kind or nature whatsoever to Franchisee, to make
available for inspection by any intended transferee of Franchisee all or any part of Franchisor’s records
relating to this Agreement, the Franchised Business or to the history of the relationship of the parties hereto.
Franchisee hereby specifically consents to such disclosure by Franchisor and shall release and hold
Franchisor harmless from and against any claim, loss or injury resulting from an inspection of Franchisor’s
records relating to the Franchised Business by an intended transferee identified by Franchisee.

18.5  For-Sale Advertising

Franchisee shall NOT, without prior written consent of Franchisor, place in, on or upon the area of
the Franchised Business, or in any communication media, any form of advertising relating to the sale of the
Franchised Business or the rights granted hereunder.

18.6  Transfer by Death or Incapacity

Upon the death or Incapacity of Franchisee (if Franchisee is an individual) or any holder of a legal
or beneficial interest in Franchisee (if Franchisee is a business entity), the appropriate representative of such
person (whether administrator, personal representative or trustee) shall, within a reasonable time not
exceeding one hundred eighty (180) days following such event, transfer such individual’s interest in the
Franchised Business or in Franchisee to a third party approved by Franchisor. Such transfers, including
transfers by will or inheritance, shall be subject to the conditions for assignments and transfers contained
in this Agreement. During such one hundred eighty (180) day period, the Franchised Business must remain
at all times under the primary management of an Designated Manager who otherwise meets Franchisor’s
management qualifications.

Following such a death or Incapacity of such person as described in this Section 18.6, if necessary
in Franchisor’s discretion, Franchisor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to assume operation of the
Franchised Business until the deceased or incapacitated owner’s interest is transferred to a third party
approved by Franchisor. Franchisor shall be given access to the Franchised Business, even if located within
Franchisee’s or its Designated Manager’s principal residence, and shall not be held liable for trespass or
any related tort. Franchisor may charge a management fee as stated in the Operations Manual from time to
time, currently equal to $375 per person per day, and Franchisor shall be entitled to reimbursement of any
expenses Franchisor incurs that are not paid out of the operating cash flow of the Franchised Business.

19. RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL
19.1 Submission of Offer

If Franchisee, or any of its owners, proposes to sell or otherwise transfer (including a transfer by
death or Incapacity according to Section 18.6) the Franchised Business (or any of its assets outside of the
normal course of business), any ownership interest in Franchisee or any ownership interest in the Franchise
granted hereunder, Franchisee shall obtain and deliver a bona fide, executed written offer or proposal to
purchase, along with all pertinent documents including any contract or due diligence materials, to
Franchisor, except with regards to a sale or transfer to a family member. The offer must apply only to an
approved sale of the assets or interests listed above and may not include any other property or rights of
Franchisee or any of its owners.
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19.2  Franchisor’s Right to Purchase

Franchisor shall, for thirty (30) days from the date of delivery of all such documents, have the right,
exercisable by written notice to Franchisee, to purchase the offered assets or interest for the price and on
the same terms and conditions contained in such offer communicated to Franchisee. Franchisor has the right
to substitute cash for the fair market value of any form of payment proposed in such offer. Franchisor’s
credit shall be deemed at least equal to the credit of any proposed buyer. After providing notice to
Franchisee of Franchisor’s intent to exercise this right of first refusal, Franchisor shall have up to sixty (60)
days to close the purchase. Franchisor shall be entitled to receive from Franchisee all customary
representations and warranties given by Franchisee as the seller of the assets or such ownership interest or,
at Franchisor’s election, such representations and warranties contained in the proposal.

19.3  Non-Exercise of Right of First Refusal

If Franchisor does not exercise its right of first refusal within thirty (30) days from the date of
delivery of all such documents, the offer or proposal may be accepted by Franchisee or any of its owners,
subject to Franchisor’s prior written approval as required by Section 18.2. Should the sale fail to close
within 120 days after the offer is delivered to Franchisor, Franchisor’s right of first refusal shall renew and
be implemented in accordance with this Section.

19.4  Sales or Transfers to Family Excepted

If Franchisee proposes to sell or otherwise transfer the Franchised Business (or any of its assets
outside of the normal course of business), any ownership interest in Franchisee or any ownership interest
in the Franchise granted hereunder to a member of Franchisee’s (or its owners’) family, then the terms and
conditions of this Section shall be inapplicable. Nothing in this Section 19.4 shall be construed to relieve
Franchisee from full compliance with the terms and conditions of Section 18.2 prior to a sale or transfer to
family according to this Section.

20. BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF FRANCHISEE

Franchisee represents, and Franchisor enters into this Agreement in reliance upon such
representation, that the individual(s) identified in Schedule 6 is/are the sole holder(s) of a legal or beneficial
interest (in the stated percentages) of Franchisee.

21. RELATIONSHIP AND INDEMNIFICATION
21.1  Relationship

This Agreement is purely a contractual relationship between the parties and does not appoint or
make Franchisee an agent, legal representative, joint-venturer, partner, employee, servant, or independent
contractor of Franchisor for any purpose whatsoever. Franchisee may not represent or imply to third parties
that Franchisee is an agent of Franchisor, and Franchisee is in no way authorized to make any contract,
agreement, warranty, or representation on behalf of Franchisor, or to create any obligation, express or
implied, on Franchisor’s behalf. During the term of this Agreement, and any extension or renewal hereof,
Franchisee shall hold itself out to the public only as a franchisee and an owner of the Franchised Business
operating the Franchised Business according to a franchise from Franchisor. Franchisee shall take such
affirmative action as may be necessary to do so including, without limitation, exhibiting a notice of that
fact in a conspicuous place on all forms, stationery or other written materials, the content of which
Franchisor has the right to specify. Under no circumstances shall Franchisor be liable for any act, omission,
contract, debt, nor any other obligation of Franchisee. Franchisor shall in no way be responsible for any
injuries to persons or property resulting from the operation of the Franchised Business by Franchisee. Any
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third-party contractors and vendors retained by Franchisee to convert or construct the premises are
independent contractors of Franchisee alone.

21.2  Standard of Care

This Agreement does not establish a fiduciary relationship between the parties. Unless otherwise
specifically provided in this Agreement with respect to certain issues, whenever this Agreement requires
Franchisee to obtain Franchisor’s written consent or permits Franchisee to take any action or refrain from
taking any action, Franchisor is free to act in its own self-interest without any obligation to act reasonably,
to consider the impact on Franchisee or to act subject to any other standard of care limiting Franchisor’s
right, except as may be provided by statute or regulation.

21.3  Indemnification

Franchisee shall hold harmless and indemnify Franchisor, any Affiliate, all holders of a legal or
beneficial interest in Franchisor and all officers, directors, executives, managers, members, partners,
owners, employees, agents, successors and assigns (collectively “Franchisor Indemnities”) from and against
all losses, damages, fines, costs, expenses or liability (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other
costs of litigation) incurred in connection with any action, suit, demand, claim, investigation or proceeding,
or any settlement thereof, which arises from or is based upon Franchisee’s (a) ownership or operation of
the Franchised Business; (b) violation, breach or asserted violation or breach of any federal, state or local
law, regulation or rule; (c) breach of any representation, warranty, covenant, or provision of this Agreement
or any other agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor (or an Affiliate); (d) defamation of Franchisor
or the System; (e) acts, errors or omissions committed or incurred in connection with the Franchised
Business; or (f) infringement, violation or alleged infringement or violation of any Mark, patent or copyright
or any misuse of the Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information. The obligations of this Section 21.3
shall expressly survive the termination of this Agreement.

21.4  Right to Retain Counsel

Franchisee shall give Franchisor immediate notice of any such action, suit, demand, claim,
investigation, or proceeding that may give rise to a claim for indemnification by a Franchisor Indemnity.
Franchisor has the right to retain counsel of its own choosing in connection with any such action, suit,
demand, claim, investigation or proceeding. In order to protect persons, property, Franchisor’s reputation
or the goodwill of others, Franchisor has the right to, at any time without notice, take such remedial or
corrective actions as it deems expedient with respect to any action, suit, demand, claim, investigation or
proceeding if, in Franchisor’s sole judgment, there are grounds to believe any of the acts or circumstances
listed above have occurred. If Franchisor’s exercise of its rights under this Section causes any of
Franchisee’s insurers to refuse to pay a third-party claim, all cause of action and legal remedies Franchisee
might have against such insurer shall automatically be assigned to Franchisor without the need for any
further action on either party’s part. Under no circumstances shall Franchisor be required or obligated to
seek coverage from third parties or otherwise mitigate losses in order to maintain a claim against Franchisee.
The failure to pursue such remedy or mitigate such loss shall in no way reduce the amounts recoverable by
Franchisor from Franchisee. Franchise agrees to not be a party to class action suit against Nartov Ventures,
LLC or any of its Affiliates under any circumstances.

22. GENERAL CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS
22.1 No Waiver

No failure of Franchisor to exercise any power reserved to it hereunder, or to insist upon strict
compliance by Franchisee with any obligation or condition hereunder, and no custom nor practice of the
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parties in variance with the terms hereof, shall constitute a waiver of Franchisor’s right to demand exact
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. Waiver by Franchisor of any particular default by Franchisee
shall not be binding unless in writing and executed by Franchisor and shall not affect nor impair
Franchisor’s right with respect to any subsequent default of the same or of a different nature. Subsequent
acceptance by Franchisor of any payment(s) due shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Franchisor of any
preceding breach by Franchisee of any terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement.

22.2  Injunctive Relief

As any breach by Franchisee of any of the restrictions contained in Sections 6, 7, and 17 would
result in irreparable injury to Franchisor, and as the damages arising out of any such breach would be
difficult to ascertain, in addition to all other remedies provided by law or in equity, Franchisor shall be
entitled to seek injunctive relief (whether a restraining order, a preliminary injunction or a permanent
injunction) against any such breach, whether actual or contemplated, without the necessity of posting
security or bond and Franchisee shall be responsible for Franchisor’s reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in
pursuing the same. Franchisor’s right to seek injunctive relief will not affect the parties” waiver of jury trial
and covenant to arbitrate all disputes in accordance with Section 23.7. Franchisor’s rights herein shall
include pursuing injunctive relief through arbitration or in a state or federal court.

22.3  Notices

All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed
received: (a) at the time delivered by hand to the recipient party (or to an officer, director or partner of the
recipient party); (b) on the next business day after transmission by facsimile or other reasonably reliable
electronic communication system; (c) two (2) business days after being sent via guaranteed overnight
delivery by a commercial courier service; or (d) five (5) business days after being sent by Registered Mail,
return receipt requested. Either party may change its address by a written notice sent in accordance with
this Section 22.3. All notices, payments and reports required by this Agreement shall be sent to Franchisor
at the following address, or at such other address as Franchisor may provide:

Nartov Ventures, LLC

Attn.: Dmytro Nartov

1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6
West Palm Beach, Florida 33409

22.4  Cost of Enforcement or Defense

If Franchisor is required to enforce this Agreement in a judicial or arbitration proceeding, if it is
the prevailing party, it shall be entitled to reimbursement of its costs, including reasonable accounting and
attorneys’ fees, in connection with such proceeding.

22.5 Unlimited Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations

All holders of a legal or beneficial interest in Franchisee of five percent (5%) or greater shall be
required to execute, as of the date of this Agreement, the Unlimited Guaranty and Assumption of
Obligations attached as Schedule 3, through which such holders agree to assume and discharge all of
Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement and to be personally liable hereunder for all of the same.
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22.6  Approvals

Whenever this Agreement requires the prior approval or consent of Franchisor, Franchisee shall
make a timely written request to Franchisor for such approval and, except as otherwise provided herein,
any approval or consent granted shall be effective only if in writing. Franchisor makes no warranties or
guarantees upon which Franchisee may rely, and assumes no liability or obligation to Franchisee or any
third party to which it would not otherwise be subject, by providing any waiver, approval, advice, consent
or services to Franchisee in connection with this Agreement, or by reason of any neglect, delay or denial of
any request for approval.

22.7  Entire Agreement

This Agreement, its exhibits and the documents referred to herein shall be construed together and
constitute the entire, full and complete agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee concerning the
subject matter hereof and shall supersede all prior agreements. No other representation, oral or otherwise,
has induced Franchisee to execute this Agreement, and there are no representations (other than those within
Franchisor’s Disclosure Document), inducements, promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, between the
parties not embodied herein, which are of any force or effect with respect to the matters in or contemplated
by this Agreement or otherwise. No amendment, change or variance from this Agreement shall be binding
on either party unless executed in writing by both parties. Nothing in the agreement or in any related
agreement is intended to disclaim the representations made in the Franchise Disclosure Document.

22.8  Severability and Modification

Except as noted below, each paragraph, part, term and provision of this Agreement shall be
considered severable. If any paragraph, part, term or provision herein is ruled to be unenforceable,
unreasonable or invalid, such ruling shall not impair the operation of or affect the remaining portions,
paragraphs, parts, terms and provisions of this Agreement, and the latter shall continue to be given full force
and effect and bind the parties; and such unenforceable, unreasonable or invalid paragraphs, parts, terms or
provisions shall be deemed not part of this Agreement. If Franchisor determines that a finding of invalidity
adversely affects the basic consideration of this Agreement, Franchisor has the right to, at its option,
terminate this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the above, each of the covenants contained in Sections 7 and 17 shall be construed
as independent of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement. If all or any portion of any such
covenant is held to be unenforceable, unreasonable, or invalid, then it shall be amended to provide for
limitations on disclosure of Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information or on competition to the
maximum extent provided or permitted by law.

22.9 Construction

All captions herein are intended solely for the convenience of the parties, and none shall be deemed
to affect the meaning or construction of any provision hereof.

22.10 Force Majeure

Whenever a period of time is provided in this Agreement for either party to perform any act, except
pay monies, neither party shall be liable nor responsible for any delays due to strikes, lockouts, casualties,
acts of God, war, terrorism, governmental regulation or control or other causes beyond the reasonable
control of the parties, and the time period for the performance of such act shall be extended for the amount
of time of the delay. This clause shall not result in an extension of the term of this Agreement.
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22.11 Timing

Time is of the essence. Except as in Section 22.10, failure to perform any act within the time
required or permitted by this Agreement shall be a material breach.

22.12 Withholding Payments

Franchisee shall not, for any reason, withhold payment of any Royalty Fees or other amounts due
to Franchisor or to an Affiliate. Franchisee shall not withhold or offset any amounts, damages or other
monies allegedly due to Franchisee against any amounts due to Franchisor. No endorsement or statement
on any payment for less than the full amount due to Franchisor will be construed as an acknowledgment of
payment in full, or an accord and satisfaction, and Franchisor has the right to accept and cash any such
payment without prejudice to Franchisor’s right to recover the full amount due, or pursue any other remedy
provided in this Agreement or by law. Franchisor has the right to apply any payments made by Franchisee
against any of Franchisee’s past due indebtedness as Franchisor deems appropriate. Franchisor shall set off
sums Franchisor owes to Franchisee against any unpaid debts owed by Franchisee to Franchisor.

22.13 Further Assurances

Each party to this Agreement will execute and deliver such further instruments, contracts, forms or
other documents, and will perform such further acts, as may be necessary or desirable to perform or
complete any term, covenant or obligation contained in this Agreement.

22.14 Third Party Beneficiaries

Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall be
deemed, to confer upon any person or legal entity other than Franchisor or Franchisee, and their respective
successors and assigns as may be contemplated by this Agreement, any rights or remedies under this
Agreement.

22.15 Multiple Originals

Both parties will execute multiple copies of this Agreement, and each executed copy will be deemed
an original.

23. DISPUTE RESOLUTION
23.1  Choice of Law

This Agreement is effective upon its acceptance in Florida by our authorized officer. Except as to
claims governed by federal law, Florida law governs all claims that in any way relate to or arise out of this
Agreement or any of the dealings of the parties (“Claims”). However, no laws regulating the sale of
franchises or governing the relationship between franchisor and franchisee shall apply unless the
jurisdictional requirements of such laws are met independently of this paragraph.

23.2  Jurisdiction and Venue
You and we agree that venue and jurisdiction for any Claims, except those required to be submitted
to arbitration, shall be proper solely in the state and federal court nearest to our corporate headquarters,

presently located in Palm Beach County, Florida.

Sugaring NYC Franchise Agreement
40



23.3  Jury Waiver

In any trial between any of the parties as to any Claims, you and we agree to waive our rights to a
jury trial and instead have such action tried by a judge.

23.4 Class Action Waiver

You agree to bring any Claims, if at all, individually and you shall not join such claim with claims
of any other person or entity or bring, join or participate in a class action against us.

23.5 Limitation of Damages

Franchisee and Franchisor each waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any right or claim for
any punitive or exemplary damages against the other and agree that if there is a dispute with the other, each
will be limited to the recovery of actual damages sustained by it including reasonable accounting and legal
fees as provided in Section 22.4. Franchisee waives and disclaims any right to consequential damages in
any action or claim against Franchisor concerning this Agreement or any related agreement. In any claim
or action brought by Franchisee against Franchisor concerning this Agreement, Franchisee’s contract
damages shall not exceed and shall be limited to refund of Franchisee’s Franchise Fee and Royalty Fees.

23.6 Limitation of Actions

You agree to bring any Claims against us, if at all, within one (1) year of the occurrence of the
facts giving rise to such Claims, and that any action not brought within this period shall be barred as a
claim, counterclaim, defense, or set-off.

23.7  Prior Notice of Claims

As a condition precedent to commencing an action for a Claim, you must notify us within thirty
(30) days after the occurrence of the violation or breach, and failure to timely give such notice shall preclude
any claim for damages.

23.8 Internal Dispute Resolution

You must first bring any Claim to our CEO, after providing notice as in Section 23.7 above. You
must exhaust this internal dispute resolution procedure before you may bring your Claim before a third

party.
23.9 Mediation and Arbitration

Before you may bring any Claim against us, you agree to try for a period of 60 days to mediate
such claim before a mutually agreed to mediator in the city or county where our headquarters are located.
If we cannot mutually agree on a mediator, you and we agree to use the mediation services of the American
Arbitration Association (“AAA”), and split any AAA and mediator fees equally.

If mediation is unsuccessful and you decide to pursue a legal claim against us, you agree to bring
such claim solely in binding arbitration conducted in the city or county where our headquarters is located,
in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association then in
effect. The proceedings will be held by a single arbitrator. The decision of the arbitrator will be final and
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binding upon the parties. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court
having personal and subject matter jurisdiction.

23.10 Waiver of Bond

You agree that if we are forced to bring suit to enforce any provision of this Agreement, you agree
to waive any requirement that we post bond to obtain a temporary, preliminary, or permanent injunction to
enforce these duties.
23.11 Attorney Fees

If we are the substantially prevailing party as to any Claims, you agree to reimburse our costs and
attorney fees incurred in pursuing or defending the Claims.

23.12 Third Party Beneficiaries

Our officers, directors, members, sharcholders, agents, and employees are express third party
beneficiaries of the terms of the Dispute Resolution provisions contained herein.

24. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
24.1 No Violation of Other Agreements

Franchisee represents that its execution of this Agreement will not violate any other agreement or
commitment to which Franchisee or any holder of a legal or beneficial interest in Franchisee is a party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby have duly
executed this Agreement.

NARTOV VENTURES, LLC [FRANCHISEE]
By: By:

Print Name: Print Name:
Title: Title:
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SCHEDULE 1 TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

GENERAL RELEASE
THIS GENERAL RELEASE is made and given on this day of , 20
by , (“RELEASOR”) an individual/corporation/

limited liability company/partnership with a principal address of , in consideration of:

the execution by Nartov Ventures, LLC, a Florida limited liability company
(“RELEASEE”), of a successor Franchise Agreement or other renewal documents renewing the franchise
(the “Franchise”) granted to RELEASOR by RELEASEE according to that certain Franchise Agreement
(the “Franchise Agreement”) between RELEASOR and RELEASEE; or

RELEASEE'’S consent to RELEASOR’S assignment of its rights and duties under the
Franchise Agreement; or

RELEASEE’S consent to RELEASOR’S assumption of rights and duties under the
Franchise Agreement;

and other good and valuable consideration, the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, and accordingly
RELEASOR hereby releases and discharges RELEASEE, RELEASEE’s officers, directors, shareholders,
managers, members, partners, owners, employees and agents (in their corporate and individual capacities),
and RELEASEE’s successors and assigns, from any and all causes of action, suits, debts, damages,
judgments, executions, claims and demands whatsoever, in law or in equity, that RELEASOR and
RELEASOR’s heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns had, now have or may have, upon
or by reason of any matter, cause or thing whatsoever from the beginning of the world to the date of this
RELEASE arising out of or related to the Franchise or the Franchise Agreement, including, without
limitation, claims arising under federal, state and local laws, rules and ordinances.

This General Release shall not be amended or modified unless such amendment or modification is
in writing and is signed by RELEASOR and RELEASEE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, RELEASOR has executed this General Release as of the date first
above written.

RELEASOR:

(type/print name)
By:
Name:
Title:

(or, if an individual)
Signed:

Name printed:
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SCHEDULE 2 TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
NONDISCLOSURE AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

This “Agreement” made as of the day of ,201 ,is by and between
, (“Franchisee,” “we,” “us,”
or “our”) and (“Individual,” “you,” or “your”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Franchisee is a party to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
20__ (“Franchise Agreement”) by and between Franchisee and the Franchisor, Nartov Ventures, LLC
(“Company”); and

WHEREAS, Franchisee desires Individual to have access to and review certain Trade Secrets and
other Confidential Information, which are more particularly described below; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee is required by the Franchise Agreement to have Individual execute this
Agreement prior to providing Individual access to said Trade Secrets and other Confidential Information;
and

WHEREAS, Individual understands the necessity of not disclosing any such information to any
other party or using such information to compete against Company, Franchisee or any other franchisee of
Company in any business (i) that offers or provides (or grants franchises or licenses to others to operate a
business that offers or provides) products and services the same as or similar to those provided by
Franchisee or (ii) in which Trade Secrets and other Confidential Information (as defined below) could be
used to the disadvantage of Franchisee, or Company, any affiliate of Company or Company’s other
franchisees (hereinafter, “Competitive Business”); provided, however, that the term “Competitive
Business” shall not apply to any business operated by Franchisee under a Franchise Agreement with
Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and undertakings stated here, and
intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereby mutually agree as follows:

1. Trade Secrets and Confidential Information

Individual understands Franchisee possesses and will possess Trade Secrets and other
Confidential Information that are important to its business.

a) For the purposes of this Agreement, a “Trade Secret” is information in any form
(including, but not limited to, materials and techniques, technical or non-technical data, formulas, patterns,
recipes compilations, programs, devices, methods, techniques, drawings, processes, financial data, financial
plans, product plans, passwords, lists of actual or potential customers or suppliers) related to or used in the
Sugaring NYC Business that is not commonly known by or available to the public and that information: (i)
derives economic value, actual or potential, from not being generally known to, and not being readily
ascertainable by proper means by, other persons who can obtain economic value from its disclosure or use;
and (ii) is the subject of efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances to maintain its secrecy.

b) For the purposes of this Agreement “Confidential Information” means technical and
non-technical information used in or related to Sugaring NYC that is not commonly known by or available
to the public, including, without limitation, Trade Secrets and information contained in the Operations
Manual and training guides and materials. In addition, any other information identified as confidential when
delivered by Franchisee shall be deemed Confidential Information. Confidential Information shall not
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include, however, any information that: (i) is now or subsequently becomes generally available to the public
through no fault of Individual; (ii) Individual can demonstrate was rightfully in its possession, without
obligation of nondisclosure, prior to disclosure according to this Agreement; (iii) is independently
developed without the use of any Confidential Information; or (iv) is rightfully obtained from a third party
who has the right, without obligation of nondisclosure, to transfer or disclose such information.

¢) Any information expressly designated by Company or Franchisee as “Trade Secrets” or
“Confidential Information” shall be deemed such for all purposes of this Agreement, but the absence of
designation shall not relieve Individual of his or her obligations hereunder in respect of information
otherwise constituting Trade Secrets or Confidential Information. Individual understands Franchisee’s
providing of access to the Trade Secrets and other Confidential Information creates a relationship of
confidence and trust between Individual and Franchisee with respect to the Trade Secrets and other
Confidential Information.

2. Confidentiality/Non-Disclosure

a) Individual shall not communicate or divulge to (or use for the benefit of) any other
person, firm, association, or corporation, with the sole exception of Franchisee, now or at any time in the
future, any Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information. At all times from the date of this Agreement,
Individual must take all steps reasonably necessary and/or requested by Franchisee to ensure that the
Confidential Information and Trade Secrets are kept confidential according to the terms of this Agreement.
Individual must comply with all applicable policies, procedures and practices that Franchisee has
established and may establish from time to time with regard to the Confidential Information and Trade
Secrets.

b) Individual’s obligations under paragraph 2(a) of this Agreement shall continue in effect
after termination of Individual’s relationship with Franchisee, regardless of the reason or reasons for
termination, and whether such termination is voluntary or involuntary, and Franchisee is entitled to
communicate Individual’s obligations under this Agreement to any future customer or employer to the
extent deemed necessary by Franchisee for protection of its rights hereunder and regardless of whether
Individual or any of its affiliates or assigns becomes an investor, partner, joint venturer, broker, distributor
or the like in a Sugaring NYC Business.

3. Non-Competition

a) During the term of Individual’s relationship with Franchisee and for a period of two (2)
years after the expiration or termination of Individual’s relationship with Franchisee, regardless of the cause
of expiration or termination, Individual shall not, directly or indirectly, divert or attempt to divert any
business or customer of Franchisee or the Company to any Competitive Business, by direct or indirect
inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to
the goodwill associated with the Company’s service mark “Sugaring NYC” and such other trade names,
trademarks, service marks, trade dress, designs, graphics, logos, emblems, insignia, fascia, slogans,
drawings and other commercial symbols as the Company designates to be used in connection with Sugaring
NYC or the Company’s uniform standards, methods, procedures and specifications for the establishment
and operation of a Sugaring NYC business.

b) During the term of Individual’s relationship with Franchisee and for a period of two (2)
years thereafter, regardless of the cause of termination, Individual shall not, directly or indirectly, offer
Competitive Business services anywhere within a TWENTY FIVE (25) mile radius of any Sugaring NYC
location without the express written consent of Franchisee and the Company.
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¢) During the term of Individual’s relationship with Franchisee and for a period of two (2)
years thereafter, regardless of the cause of termination, Individual shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit or
otherwise attempt to induce or influence any business associate of Franchisee, Company or any other
Sugaring NYC Business to compete against, or terminate or modify his, her or its business relationship
with, Franchisee, Company or any other Sugaring NYC Business.

4. Reasonableness of Restrictions

Individual acknowledges that each of the terms stated here, including the restrictive
covenants, is fair and reasonable and is reasonably required for the protection of Franchisee, Company, and
Company’s Trade Secrets and other Confidential Information, the Company’s business system, network of
franchises and trade and service marks, and Individual waives any right to challenge these restrictions as
being overly broad, unreasonable or otherwise unenforceable. If, however, a court of competent jurisdiction
determines that any such restriction is unreasonable or unenforceable, then Individual shall submit to the
reduction of any such activity, time period or geographic restriction necessary to enable the court to enforce
such restrictions to the fullest extent permitted under applicable law. It is the desire and intent of the parties
that the provisions of this Agreement shall be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under the laws and
public policies applied in any jurisdiction where enforcement is sought.

S. Relief for Breaches of Confidentiality, Non-Solicitation, and Non-Competition

Individual further acknowledges that an actual or threatened violation of the covenants
contained in this Agreement will cause Franchisee and Company immediate and irreparable harm, damage
and injury that cannot be fully compensated for by an award of damages or other remedies at law.
Accordingly, Franchisee and/or Company shall be entitled, as a matter of right, to an injunction from any
court of competent jurisdiction restraining any further violation by Individual of this Agreement without
any requirement to show any actual damage or to post any bond or other security. Such right to an injunction
shall be cumulative and in addition to, and not in limitation of, any other rights and remedies that Franchisee
and Company may have at law or in equity.

6. Dispute Resolution

a) Choice of Law. Except as to claims governed by federal law, Florida law governs all claims
that in any way relate to or arise out of this Agreement or any of the dealings of the parties (“Claims”).
However, no laws regulating the sale of franchises or governing the relationship between franchisor and
franchisee shall apply unless the jurisdictional requirements of such laws are met independently of this
paragraph.

b) Jurisdiction and Venue. You and we agree that venue and jurisdiction for any Claims, except
those required to be submitted to arbitration, shall be proper solely in the state and federal court nearest to
our corporate headquarters.

c) Jury Waiver. In any trial between any of the parties as to any Claims, you and we agree to
waive our rights to a jury trial and instead have such action tried by a judge.

d) Class Action Waiver. You agree to bring any Claims, if at all, individually and you shall not
join such claim with claims of any other person or entity or bring, join or participate in a class action against
us.

¢) Punitive Damages Waiver. As to any Claims, you and we agree to waive our rights, if any, to
seek or recover punitive damages.
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f) Limitation of Actions. You agree to bring any Claims against us, if at all, within one (1) year
of the occurrence of the facts giving rise to such Claims, and that any action not brought within this period
shall be barred as a claim, counterclaim, defense, or set-off.

g) Prior Notice of Claims. As a condition precedent to commencing an action for a Claim, you
must notify us within thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the violation or breach, and failure to timely
give such notice shall preclude any claim for damages.

h) Internal Dispute Resolution. You must first bring any Claim to our CEO, after providing
notice as in Section 6(g) above. You must exhaust this internal dispute resolution procedure before you
may bring your Claim before a third party.

i) Mediation and Arbitration. Before you may bring any Claim against us court, you agree to try
for a period of 60 days to mediate such claim before a mutually agreed to mediator in the city or county
where our headquarters are located. If we cannot mutually agree on a mediator, you and we agree to use
the mediation services of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”), and split any AAA and mediator
fees equally.

If mediation is unsuccessful and you decide to pursue a legal claim against us, you agree to bring
such claim solely in binding arbitration conducted in the city or county of our headquarters in accordance
with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association then in effect. The
proceedings will be held by a single arbitrator. The decision of the arbitrator will be final and binding upon
the parties. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having personal
and subject matter jurisdiction.

j) Waiver of Bond. You agree that if we are forced to bring suit to enforce any provision of this
Agreement, you agree to waive any requirement that we post bond to obtain a temporary, preliminary, or
permanent injunction to enforce these duties.

k) Attorney Fees. If we are the substantially prevailing party as to any Claims, you agree to
reimburse our costs and attorney fees incurred in pursuing or defending the Claims.

7. Miscellaneous

a) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations and discussions
between Individual and Franchisee. This Agreement cannot be altered or amended except by an agreement
in writing signed by the duly authorized representatives of the parties.

b) This Agreement shall be effective as of the date this Agreement is executed and shall be
binding upon the successors and assigns of Individual and shall inure to the benefit of Franchisee, its
subsidiaries, successors and assigns. Company is an intended third-party beneficiary of this Agreement with
the independent right to enforce the confidentiality and non-competition provisions contained herein.

c) The failure of either party to insist upon performance in any one (1) or more instances
upon performance of any terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be construed a waiver of future
performance of any such term, covenant or condition of this Agreement and the obligations of either party
with respect thereto shall continue in full force and effect.
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d) In the event that any part of this Agreement shall be held to be unenforceable or invalid,
the remaining parts hereof shall nevertheless continue to be valid and enforceable as though the invalid
portions were not a part hereof.

e) This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written instrument duly
executed by Individual, Franchisee and Company.

f) The existence of any claim or cause of action Individual might have against Franchisee
or Company will not constitute a defense to the enforcement by Franchisee or Company of this Agreement.

INDIVIDUAL CERTIFIES THAT HE OR SHE HAS READ THIS AGREEMENT
CAREFULLY, AND UNDERSTANDS AND ACCEPTS THE OBLIGATIONS THAT IT IMPOSES
WITHOUT RESERVATION. NO PROMISES OR REPRESENTATIONS HAVE BEEN MADE TO
SUCH PERSON TO INDUCE THE SIGNING OF THIS AGREEMENT.

THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE COMPANY IS A THIRD-PARTY
BENEFICIARY TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THAT THE COMPANY SHALL BE ENTITLED
TO ENFORCE THIS AGREEMENT WITHOUT THE COOPERATION OF THE FRANCHISEE.
INDIVIDUAL AND FRANCHISEE AGREE THAT THIS AGREEMENT CANNOT BE
MODIFIED OR AMENDED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE COMPANY.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Franchisee has hereunto caused this Agreement to be executed by its
duly authorized officer, and Individual has executed this Agreement, all being done in duplicate originals

with one (1) original being delivered to each party as of the day and year first above written.

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Its:

INDIVIDUAL:

Signature:

Name Printed:
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SCHEDULE 3 TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
UNLIMITED GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS

THIS UNLIMITED GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS is given this day
of , 20 , by

In consideration of, and as an inducement to, the execution of that certain Franchise Agreement
dated herewith (“Agreement”) by Nartov Ventures, LLC (“Franchisor”), each of the
undersigned hereby personally and unconditionally guarantees to Franchisor and its successors and assigns,
for the term of the Agreement and thereafter as provided in the Agreement, that

(“Franchisee™) shall punctually pay and perform each and every undertaking, agreement and
covenant in the Agreement. Each of the undersigned shall be personally bound by, and personally liable
for, Franchisee’s breach of any provision in the Agreement, including those relating to monetary obligations
and obligations to take or refrain from taking specific actions or engaging in specific activities, such as
those contemplated by Sections 6, 7, and 17 of the Agreement. Each of the undersigned waives: (a)
acceptance and notice of acceptance by Franchisor of the foregoing undertakings; (b) notice of demand for
payment of any indebtedness or non-performance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (c) protest and
notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness or non-performance of any obligations hereby
guaranteed; (d) any right it may have to require that an action be brought against Franchisee or any other
person as a condition of liability; and (e) any and all other notices and legal or equitable defenses to which
it may be entitled.

Each of the undersigned consents and agrees that: (a) its direct and immediate liability under this
Guaranty shall be joint and several; (b) it shall render any payment or performance required under the
Agreement upon demand if Franchisee fails or refuses punctually to do so; (c) such liability shall not be
contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by Franchisor of any remedies against Franchisee or any other
person or entity; and (d) such liability shall not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any
extension of time, credit or other indulgence which Franchisor may from time to time grant to Franchisee
or to any other person including, without limitation, the acceptance of any partial payment or performance,
or the compromise or release of any claims, none of which shall in any way modify or amend this Guaranty,
which shall be continuing and irrevocable during the term of the Agreement.

This Guaranty represents the entire agreement and understanding of these parties concerning the
subject matter hereof, and supersedes all other prior agreements, understandings, negotiations and
discussions, representations, warranties, commitments, proposals, offers and contracts concerning the
subject matter hereof, whether oral or written.

Successors and Assigns; Death of Guarantor. This Guaranty shall be binding upon Guarantor and
his or her heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of Franchisor
and its successors, endorsees, transferees and assigns. Without limiting any other provision hereof,
Guarantor expressly agrees that Guarantor’s death shall not serve as a revocation of or otherwise affect the
guaranty made hereunder and that Guarantor’s estate and heirs shall continue to be liable hereunder with
respect to any Guaranteed Obligations created or arising after Guarantor’s death.

The validity, interpretation and enforcement of this Guaranty and any dispute arising out of the
relationship between Guarantor and Franchisor, whether in contract, tort, equity or otherwise, shall be
governed by the internal laws of the State of Florida (without giving effect to principles of conflicts of law).
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Dispute Resolution. You agree to be bound by the Dispute Resolution provisions found in Section
23 of any Franchise Agreement between the parties as if set forth here and as being equally applicable to
this Guaranty and the dealings of the parties hereunder.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Guaranty has been entered into the day and year first before written.

PERSONAL GUARANTOR PERSONAL GUARANTOR

Personally and Individually (Printed Name) Personally and Individually (Printed Name)

Personally and Individually (Signature) Personally and Individually (Signature)

HOME ADDRESS HOME ADDRESS

TELEPHONE NO.: TELEPHONE NO.:

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP

IN FRANCHISEE: % IN FRANCHISEE: %

PERSONAL GUARANTOR PERSONAL GUARANTOR

Personally and Individually (Printed Name) Personally and Individually (Printed Name)

Personally and Individually (Signature) Personally and Individually (Signature)

HOME ADDRESS HOME ADDRESS

TELEPHONE NO.: TELEPHONE NO.:

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP

IN FRANCHISEE: % IN FRANCHISEE: %
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SCHEDULE 4
COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE

LEASE ADDENDUM
Option to Assume Lease
1. If (“Tenant”)  defaults wunder the Lease dated
, (“Lease”) by and between
(“Landlord”) and Tenant for the premises located at

(the “Premises”), or if
Nartov Ventures, LLC (“Franchisor”) terminates the Tenant’s franchise agreement covering
the Premises, Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that Franchisor will have the option
to assume the Lease according to Paragraph 3 below.

2. Landlord agrees to give Franchisor written notice specifying all default(s) of Tenant under the
Lease. Franchisor agrees to give written notice to Landlord if Franchisor terminates Tenant’s
franchise agreement and, in such notice, will request that Landlord provide Franchisor with a
copy of the Lease and specify any of the Tenant’s defaults thereunder. All notices will be by
nationally recognized overnight courier (with tracking capability).

3. Franchisor (or one of its real estate affiliates) may, within 30 days from (i) receipt of notice
from Landlord that Tenant has defaulted under the Lease and failed to cure such default(s) as
required or permitted by the terms of the Lease, or (ii) sending of notice to Landlord that has
terminated Tenant’s franchise agreement covering the Premises, notify Landlord of
Franchisor’s decision to assume the Lease. If Franchisor exercises its right to assume the Lease
by sending Landlord the required notice as provided in the prior sentence, (i) Landlord will
deliver possession of the Premises to Franchisor; and (ii) Franchisor will, immediately upon
such delivery, cure all of Tenant’s monetary defaults under the Lease and execute an agreement
according to which Franchisor agrees to assume all of Tenant’s rights and obligations under
the Lease, subject to the next paragraph.

4. If Franchisor exercises its right to assume the Lease according to Paragraph 3 above, Landlord
agrees that Franchisor (i) may, without Landlord’s consent, sublet the Premises to or assign the
Lease to, an approved franchisee of Franchisor, provided in either instance that Franchisor
remains liable for the payment of rent and the performance of Tenant’s duties under the Lease,
(i1) may assign, without recourse, its rights under the Lease upon receiving Landlord’s prior
written consent, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, and
subject to the terms of the Lease, (iii) will not be bound by the terms of any amendment to the
Lease executed by Tenant without obtaining Franchisor’s prior written approval, (iv) will not
be subject to any provision of the Lease that requires Tenant to continuously operate a business
in the Premises during any period that the Premises is closed for remodeling or while
Franchisor is seeking to obtain and train a new franchisee, provided however, that such period
of closure will not exceed 60 days in each instance; and (v) mays, if it subleases the Premises to
a franchisee as provided above, retain all rent or other consideration payable under such
sublease.

5. If Franchisor exercises its right to assume the Lease according to Paragraph 3 above, within 10
days after written demand, Tenant agrees to assign all of its right, title and interest in the Lease

to Franchisor and, if Tenant does not do so, Tenant appoints Franchisor as its agent to execute
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all documents that may be necessary for Franchisor to take assignment of the Lease.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein Tenant shall remain liable to
Landlord for all of its obligations under the Lease and to Franchisor for all amounts that
Franchisor pays to Landlord to cure Tenant’s defaults under the Lease, including interest,
reasonable collection costs and de-identification costs (the parties acknowledging that
Franchisor may enter the Premises without being guilty of trespass or tort to de-identify the
Premises). Franchisor may assign this Option and its rights hereunder to any affiliate,
subsidiary, parent, successor or assign of Franchisor provided the conditions herein as to
assignment are met. The assignee must be an approved licensed franchisee of Franchisor. This
Option may be signed in any number of counterparts by facsimile or otherwise, each of which
shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. A
facsimile signature may be used for any purpose in lieu of an original signature.

LANDLORD: TENANT:
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
FRANCHISOR:

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:
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Sugaring NYC Franchise Agreement

SCHEDULE 5 TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
ACH PAYMENT AGREEMENT

ACCOUNT NAME:

CUSTOMER NUMBER:

FRANCHISE NAME:

AUTHORIZATION AGREEMENT FOR ACH Payments

(I/we) do hereby authorize Nartov Ventures, LLC, hereinafter named the “Franchisor”, to initiate
(debit or credit) entries to (my/our) (Checking Account / Savings Account) as indicated and named below
as the depository financial institution, hereafter named FINANCIAL INSTITUTION according to the terms
of the Franchise Agreement by and between us and the Franchisor.

(I/we) acknowledge that the origination of ACH transactions to my (my/our) account must comply
with the provisions of U.S. law. Furthermore, if any such debit(s) should be returned NSF, (I/we) authorize
the Franchisor to collect such debit(s) by electronic debit and subsequently collect a returned debit NSF fee
of $75.00 per item by electronic debit from my account identified below. In the event all funds and interests
are not received by Franchisor within 15 days from presentment and intended withdrawal from our account
by Franchisor, then we will be deemed in default of the Franchise Agreement. We further agree to pay all
reasonable costs of collection including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs incurred
by Franchisor. I am a duly authorized check signer on the financial institution account identified below,
and authorize all of the above as evidenced by my signature below.

CHECK (ACH) INFORMATION ROUTING NUMBER:
ACCOUNT NUMBER:

DEPOSITORY NAME:

BRANCH:

CITY: STATE: ZIP:

COMPANY NAME:

FIRST NAME/LAST NAME:

BILLING ADDRESS:

CITY STATE Z1P

PHONE NUMBER:

CUSTOMER NUMBER:

SIGNATURE ON FILE:

PHONE OR EMAIL APPROVAL AUTHORIZATION NUMBER:

FRANCHISEE:

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:
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SCHEDULE 6 TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
HOLDERS OF LEGAL OR BENEFICIAL INTEREST
IN FRANCHISEE; OFFICERS; DIRECTORS

Holders of Legal or Beneficial Interest:

Name: Name:

Position/Title: Position/Title:

Home Address: Home Address:

Telephone No.: Telephone No.:

E-mail address: E-mail address:

Percentage of ownership: % Percentage of ownership: %
Name: Name:

Position/Title: Position/Title:

Home Address: Home Address:

Telephone No.: Telephone No.:

E-mail address: E-mail address:

Percentage of ownership: % Percentage of ownership: %
Name: Name:

Position/Title: Position/Title:

Home Address: Home Address:

Telephone No.: Telephone No.:

E-mail address: E-mail address:

Percentage of ownership: % Percentage of ownership: %

Officers and Directors:

Name: Name:

Position/Title: Position/Title:

Home Address: Home Address:

Telephone No.: Telephone No.:

E-mail address: E-mail address:

Percentage of ownership: % Percentage of ownership: %
Name: Name:

Position/Title: Position/Title:

Home Address: Home Address:

Telephone No.: Telephone No.:

E-mail address: E-mail address:

Percentage of ownership: % Percentage of ownership: %

Sugaring NYC Franchise Agreement Schedule 6: Holders of Legal Interest



SCHEDULE 7 TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
STATE ADDENDA TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

Section 16.2 is deleted and in its place are substituted the following:

16.2.1 Termination by Us Without Right to Cure. We may terminate this Agreement without
notice and the opportunity to cure for any of the following reasons:

(a) The franchisee or the business to which the franchise relates has been judicially determined to
be insolvent, all or a substantial part of the assets thereof are assigned to or for the benefit of any creditor,
or the franchisee admits his or her inability to pay his or her debts as they come due;

(b) The franchisee abandons the franchise by failing to operate the business for five consecutive
days during which the franchisee is required to operate the business under the terms of the franchise, or any
shorter period after which it is not unreasonable under the facts and circumstances for the franchisor to
conclude that the franchisee does not intend to continue to operate the franchise, unless such failure to
operate is due to fire, flood, earthquake, or other similar causes beyond the franchisee’s control;

(c) The franchisor and franchisee agree in writing to terminate the franchise;

(d) The franchisee makes any material misrepresentations relating to the acquisition of the franchise
business or the franchisee engages in conduct which reflects materially and unfavorably upon the operation
and reputation of the franchise business or system;

(e) The franchisee fails, for a period of 10 days after notification of noncompliance, to comply with
any federal, state, or local law or regulation, including, but not limited to, all health, safety, building, and
labor laws or regulations applicable to the operation of the franchise;

(f) The franchisee, after curing any failure in accordance with Section 16.2.2 engages in the same
noncompliance whether or not such noncompliance is corrected after notice;

(g) The franchisee breaches the franchise agreement three or more times in a 12-month period,

whether or not corrected after notice;
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(h) The franchised business or business premises of the franchise are seized, taken over, or
foreclosed by a government official in the exercise of his or her duties, or seized, taken over, or foreclosed
by a creditor, lienholder, or lessor, provided that a final judgment against the franchisee remains unsatisfied
for 30 days (unless a supersedeas or other appeal bond has been filed); or a levy of execution has been made
upon the license granted by the franchise agreement or upon any property used in the franchised business,
and it is not discharged within five days of such levy;

(1) The franchisee is convicted of a felony or any other criminal misconduct which is relevant to
the operation of the franchise;

(j) The franchisee fails to pay any franchise fees or other amounts due to the franchisor or its
affiliate within five days after receiving written notice that such fees are overdue; or

(k) The franchisor makes a reasonable determination that continued operation of the franchise by
the franchisee will result in an imminent danger to public health or safety.

16.2.2 Termination by Us with Opportunity to Cure. We may terminate this Agreement, after
sending you notice and a 60 day opportunity to cure, for any other breach of this Agreement.

Section 23.6 of the Franchise Agreement, titled “Limitation of Actions” is amended to clarify that this
provision does not apply to any claims under the California Franchise Investment Law.

Sections 24.1, 24.2, 24.4, and 25 of the franchise agreement are hereby deleted.

Any provision of a franchise agreement, franchise disclosure document, acknowledgement, questionnaire,
or other writing, including any exhibit thereto, disclaiming or denying any of the following shall be deemed
contrary to public policy and shall be void and unenforceable:

(a) Representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents to a prospective franchisee.
(b) Reliance by a franchisee on any representations made by the franchisor or its

(c) Reliance by a franchisee on the franchise disclosure document, including any exhibit thereto.
(d) Violations of any provision of this division.

Franchisees must sign a personal guaranty, making you and your spouse individually liable for your
financial obligations under the agreement if you are married. The guaranty will place your and your
spouse’s marital and personal assets at risk, perhaps including your house, if your franchise fails.

b (Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"
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No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
licable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on an:

statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This

provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
See  NASAA STATEMENT OF POLICY REGARDING THE USE OF FRANCHISE

QUESTIONNAIRES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS.
https://www.nasaa.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/sop-franchise-questionnaires.pdf.

e {Formatted: Font: Not Bold j
{Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 3.5", Right: J

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:

Nartov Ventures, LLC 0.04", Line spacing: Multiple 1.01 li, No widow/orphan

control

By: By:

By: Date:
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ILLINOIS ADDENDUM
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

1. Illinois law governs the Franchise Agreement.

2. In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois is
void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois.

3. Franchisee rights upon termination and non-renewal are in sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act.

4. In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition,
stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance
with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

5. The Franchise Agreement is modified to also provide that we defer collection of all Initial
Franchise Fees until we have satisfied our pre-opening obligations to you and you have commenced
doing business under the Franchise Agreement. The Illinois Attorney General’s Office imposed this
deferral requirement due to our financial condition.

6. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on behalf of the Franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed
in connection with the franchise.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:

By: Date:
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

1. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must
be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

2. A general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall
not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

3. This franchise agreement provides that disputes are resolved through arbitration. A
Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a franchisee to
waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. In
light of the Federal Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement
is legally enforceable.

4. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or
waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability
incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

5. The Franchise Agreement is amended to add the following language: "Based upon the
franchisor's financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a financial
assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the
franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement. In addition, all
development fees and initial payments by area developers shall be deferred until the first franchise
under the development agreement opens."

6. Termination upon bankruptcy of the franchisee may not be enforceable under federal
bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101 et seq.).

7. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting
on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

8. Nothing herein shall bar Franchisee from bringing a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:

Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:
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MINNESOTA ADDENDUM
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

e Minn. Stat. §80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation
to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to
consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the
Franchise Disclosure Document or agreements can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s
rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or (2) franchisee’s rights to any
procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

e With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat.
Sec. 80C.14 Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require (except in certain specified cases), that a franchisee
be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal
of the franchise agreement and that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably
withheld.

e The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names,
logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs or
expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the name.

e Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the trademarks. Refer to
Minnesota Statutes 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

e Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a
general release.

e The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may seek
injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400)J.

Also, a court will determine if a bond is required.
Any Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5.
Section 3.8 of the Franchise Agreement is modified to reduce the fee for insufficient funds to $30.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:

By: Date:
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NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

1. You are not required to sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise agreement.
2. The franchise agreement is amended to also provide as follows:
“Covenants not to compete are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota.”

3. The provisions concerning choice of law, jurisdiction and venue, jury waiver, and waiver of punitive
damages are hereby deleted and in their place is substituted the following language:

“You agree to bring any claim against us, including our present and former employees, agents, and
affiliates, which in any way relates to or arises out of this Agreement, or any of the dealings of the
parties hereto, solely in arbitration before the American Arbitration Association.”

4. North Dakota law governs any cause of action arising out of the franchise agreement.

5. Any requirement in the Franchise Agreement that requires you to pay all costs and expenses incurred by

us in enforcing the agreement is void. Instead, the prevailing party in any enforcement action is entitled to
recover all costs and expenses including attorney's fees.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:

By: Date:
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RHODE ISLAND ADDENDUM
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

1. If the franchise agreement contains any provisions that conflict with the Rhode Island
Franchise Investment Act, the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail to the extent of such conflict.

2. Any provision in the franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum
outside of Rhode Island is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Rhode Island
Franchise Investment Act.

3. Any provision in the franchise agreement requiring the application of the laws of a state
other than Rhode Island is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Rhode Island
Franchise Investment Act.

4. The Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act stipulates that you cannot release or waive any
rights granted under this Act. Any provision of this franchise agreement, which constitutes a waiver of
rights granted under the Act, is superseded.

5. You agree to bring any claim against us, including our present and former employees and

agents, which in any way relates to or arises out of this Agreement, or any of the dealings of the parties
hereto, solely in arbitration before the American Arbitration Association.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:

By: Date:
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SOUTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

1. The Franchise Agreement is clarified to also indicate that 50% of the initial franchise fee and

50% of royalties are deemed paid for the use of our Marks and 50% are deemed paid for our
training, support, and franchise system.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:

By: Date:
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VIRGINIA ADDENDUM
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

The Franchise Agreement is amended to also include the following:
The Virginia State Corporation Commission’s Division of Securities and Retail Franchising requires

us to defer payment of the initial franchise fee and other initial payments owed by franchisees to the
franchisor until the franchisor has completed its pre-opening obligations under the franchise

agreement.”
FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC
By: By:
By: Date:
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection
Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions
which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the
areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or
mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the
time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of
arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a
franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of
franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant
to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by
independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of
limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a
jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or
actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an
employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party
seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted
annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against
an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent
contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained
in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and
unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee
from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting
or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise
agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.
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The franchise agreement is amended to also provide: “Based upon our financial condition the Washington
Securities Division requires that we defer the payment of all initial fees due to the franchisor and/or its
affiliates by the franchisee until all pre-opening obligations of the franchisor are completed and the
franchise is open for business. Accordingly, you will not be required to pay the initial fees until we have
completed our pre-opening obligations to you and you are open for business.”

Section 17.2.2(a) is modified to also provide that the post-term non-compete will only apply to a 25 mile
radius of your Franchised Business.

Section 21.3 is modified to also provide that the indemnification does not extend to liabilities resulting from
the gross negligence of willful misconduct of any Franchisor indemnitee.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum.
FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:

Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:

By: Date:
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WISCONSIN ADDENDUM
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

1. Ifthe Franchise Agreement contains any provision that conflict with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership
Law, the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail to the extent of such conflict.

2. The Franchise Agreement is amended to also include the following language:

With respect to franchises governed by Wisconsin law, the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law applies
to most, if not all, franchise agreements and prohibits the termination, cancellation, non-renewal or
the substantial change of the competitive circumstances of a dealership agreement without good
cause. That Law further provides that 90 days’ prior written notice of a proposed termination, etc.
must be given to the dealer. The dealer has 60 days to cure the deficiency and if the deficiency is
cured, the notice is void.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:

By: Date:
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SCHEDULE 8 TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

SBA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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SOP 5010 5(I) Appendix 9

ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE' AGREEMENT

“rp, 1958 S
Nigrart

THIS ADDENDUM (“Addendum”) is made and entered into on ,20 , byand

between (“Franchisor™), located

at ,and
(“Franchisee”), located

at

Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a Franchise Agreement on , 20, (such

Agreement, together with any amendments, the “Franchise Agreement”). Franchisee is applying for
financing(s) from a lender in which funding is provided with the assistance of the U. S. Small Business
Administration (“SBA”). SBA requires the execution of this Addendum as a condition for obtaining SBA-
assisted financing.

In consideration of the mutual promises below and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which the parties acknowledge, the parties agree that notwithstanding any other terms in the
Franchise Agreement or any other document Franchisor requires Franchisee to sign:

CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP

o If Franchisee is proposing to transfer a partial interest in Franchisee and Franchisor has an
option to purchase or a right of first refusal with respect to that partial interest, Franchisor
may exercise such option or right only if the proposed transferee is not a current owner or
family member of a current owner of Franchisee. If the Franchisor’s consent is required for
any transfer (full or partial), Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold such consent. Inthe
event of an approved transfer of the franchise interest or any portion thereof, the transferor
will not be liable for the actions of the transferee franchisee.

FORCED SALE OF ASSETS

e If Franchisor has the option to purchase the business personal assets upon default or
termination of the Franchise Agreement and the parties are unable to agree on the value of
the assets, the value will be determined by an appraiser chosen by both parties. If the
Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchise location is operating, Franchisee will not
be required to sell the real estate upon default or termination, but Franchisee may be
required to lease the real estate for the remainder of the franchise term (excluding additional

! While relationships established under license, jobber, dealer and similar agreements are not generally described as
““franchise’” relationships, if such relationships meet the Federal Trade Commission’s (FTC’s) definition of a franchise (see
16 CFR § 436), they are treated by SBA as franchise relationships for franchise affiliation determinations per 13 CFR §
121.301(6)(S).

Effective Date: January 1, 2018 395
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renewals) for fair market value.
COVENANTS

o If the Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchise location is operating, Franchisor
has not and will not during the term of the Franchise Agreement record against the real
estate any restrictions on the use of the property, including any restrictive covenants,
branding covenants or environmental use restrictions. If any such restrictions are currently
recorded against the Franchisee’s real estate, they must be removed in order for the
Franchisee to obtain SBA-assisted financing.

EMPLOYMENT

e Franchisor will not directly control (hire, fire or schedule) Franchisee’s employees. For
temporary personnel franchises, the temporary employees will be employed by the
Franchisee not the Franchisor.

As to the referenced Franchise Agreement, this Addendum automatically terminates when SBA no longer
has any interest in any SBA-assisted financing provided to the Franchisee.

Except as amended by this Addendum, the Franchise Agreement remains in full force and effect according
to its terms.

Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that submission of false information to SBA, or the withholding of
material information from SBA, can result in criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and other
provisions, including liability for treble damages under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 -3733.
Authorized Representative of FRANCHISOR:

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Authorized Representative of FRANCHISEE:

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Note to Parties: This Addendum only addresses “affiliation” between the Franchisor and Franchisee.
Additionally, the applicant Franchisee and the franchise system must meet all SBA eligibility requirements

Effective Date: January 1, 2018 396
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NARTOV VENTURES, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Area Development Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made this day of

, 20 by and between Nartov Ventures, LLC, a Florida limited liability company with its
principal business located at 1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409
(“we” or “us”) and whose principal business address is
(“developer” or “you”). If the developer is a limited liability company, corporation, or partnership, certain
provisions of the Agreement also apply to your owners and will be noted.

RECITALS

A. We have developed a unique system for operating a business that provides hair removal
company using a proprietary organic sugaring paste resulting in a less painful, longer lasting hair removal
experience using certain standards and specifications;

B. Many of the services and products are prepared and undertaken according to specified
procedures or made with proprietary formulas, techniques and mixes;

C. We own the rights to the USPTO Mark “Sugaring NYC” Trademark and other trademarks used
in connection with the Operation of a Sugaring NYC Business;

D. We have decided to sublicense the right to develop and operate Sugaring NYC Locations;

E. You desire to develop and operate several Sugaring NYC locations and we, in reliance on your
representations, have approved your franchise application to do so in accordance with this Agreement.

In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and consideration below, you and we
agree as follows:

DEFINITIONS
1. For purposes of this Agreement, the terms below have the following definitions:

A. “Locations” means the Sugaring NYC locations you develop and operate according to this
Agreement.

B. “Products” means the specific services and products in our franchise information packet, or as
we may modify, add, or change them from time to time.

C. “Principal Owner” means any person who directly or indirectly owns a 10% or greater interest
in the developer when the developer is a corporation, limited liability company, a partnership, or a similar
entity. However, if we are entering into this Agreement totally or partially based on the financial
qualifications, experience, skills or managerial qualifications of any person or entity who directly or
indirectly owns less than a 10% interest in the developer, that person or entity may, in our sole discretion,
be considered a Principal Owner for all purposes under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the
execution of the personal guaranty referenced in Section 10.J below. In addition, if the developer is a
partnership entity, then each general partner is a Principal Owner, regardless of the percentage ownership
interest. If the developer is one or more individuals, each individual is a Principal Owner of the developer.
You must have at least one Principal Owner.
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D. “System” means the Sugaring NYC System, which consists of distinctive products and services
prepared according to special and confidential processes and formulas with unique preparation, service and
delivery procedures and techniques, offered in a setting of distinctive exterior and interior layout, design
and color scheme, signage, furnishings and materials and using certain distinctive types of facilities,
equipment, supplies, business techniques, methods and procedures together with sales promotion programs,
all of which we may modify and change from time to time.

E. “Trademarks” means the Sugaring NYC Trademark and Service Mark that is registered with the
United States Patent and Trademark Office and the trademarks, service marks and trade names in each
Franchise Agreement, as we may modify and change from time to time, and the trade dress and other
commercial symbols used in the Locations. Trade dress includes the designs, color schemes and image we
authorize you to use in the operation of the Locations from time to time.

GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
2. The following provisions control with respect to the rights granted hereunder:

A. We grant to you, under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the right to develop and
operate NUMBER (#) Sugaring NYC locations (each a “Location”, and collectively, the “Locations”)
within the territory described on Appendix A (“Development Territory™).

B. You are bound by the Development Schedule in Appendix B (“Development Schedule”). Time
is of the essence for the development of each Location in accordance with the Development Schedule. Each
Location must be developed and operated according to a separate Franchise Agreement that you enter into
with us according to Section 4.B below.

C. If you are in compliance with the Development Schedule set forth on Appendix B, we will not
develop or operate or grant anyone else a franchise to develop and operate a Sugaring NYC Location
business in the Development Territory prior to the earlier of (i) the expiration or termination of this
Agreement; (ii) the date on which you must execute the Franchise Agreement for your last Location
according to the terms of the Development Schedule or (iii) the date on which the Designated Area for your
final Location under this Agreement is determined, except (a) for the Special Sites defined in Section 2.D
below; (b) in the event that the Development Territory covers more than one city, county or designated
market area, the protection for each particular city, county or designated market area shall expire upon the
earliest of (1) any of the foregoing events or (2) the date when the Designated Area for your final Location
to be developed in such city, county or designated market area under this Agreement is determined; or (c)
as otherwise provided in this Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement, upon the earliest occurrence of any of the foregoing
events (i) the Development Territory shall expire and (ii) we will be entitled to develop and operate, or to
franchise others to develop and operate, Sugaring NYC Locations in the Development Territory, except as
may be otherwise provided under any Franchise Agreement that has been executed between us and you and
that has not been terminated. At the time you execute your final Franchise Agreement under the
Development Schedule, you must have an Authorized Location for your final Location.

D. The rights granted under this Agreement are limited to the right to develop and operate Locations
located in the Development Territory, and do not include (i) any right to sell Products and services identified
by the Trademarks at any location or through any other channels or methods of distribution, including the
internet (or any other existing or future form of electronic commerce), other than at Locations within the
Development Territory, (ii) any right to sell Products and services identified by the Trademarks to any
person or entity for resale or further distribution, or (iii) any right to exclude, control or impose conditions
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on our development or operation of franchised, company or affiliate owned Locations at any time or at any
location outside of the Development Territory. You may not use “Sugaring NYC” or any of the other
Trademarks as part of the name of your corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other similar
entity.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from
outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

You acknowledge and agree that (i) we and our affiliates have the right to operate or franchise
within the Designated Area one or more facilities selling all or some of the Products, using the Trademarks
or any other trademarks, service marks or trade names, without compensation to any franchisee, provided
however, that such facilities shall not be mobile facilities but rather from a fixed location if it is confined
to your Designated Area; (ii) we and our affiliates have the right outside of the Development Territory to
grant other franchises or operate company or affiliate owned Sugaring NYC Locations and offer, sell or
distribute any products or services associated with the System (now or in the future) under the Trademarks
or any other trademarks, service marks or trade names or through any distribution channel or method, all
without compensation to any developer; and (iii) we and our affiliates have the right to operate and franchise
others to operate Locations or any other business within and outside the Development Territory under
trademarks other than the Sugaring NYC Trademarks, without compensation to any developer, except that
our operation of, or association or affiliation with, Locations (through franchising or otherwise) in the
Development Territory that compete with Sugaring NYC Locations in the service oriented Location
segment will only occur through some form of merger or acquisition with an existing Location chain.

In addition, we and our affiliates have the right to offer, sell or distribute, within the Development
Territory, any Products or services associated with the System (now or in the future) or identified by the
Trademarks, or any other trademarks, service marks or trade names, except for Prohibited Items (as defined
below), through any distribution channels or methods, without compensation to any developer. The
distribution channels or methods include, without limitation, grocery stores, club stores, convenience stores,
wholesale, hospitals, clinics, health care facilities, business or industry locations (e.g. manufacturing site,
office building), military installations, military commissaries or the internet (or any other existing or future
form of electronic commerce).

The Prohibited Items are the following items that we will not sell in the Development Territory
through other distribution channels or methods: NONE.

Further, you acknowledge that certain locations within the Development Territory are by their
nature unique and separate in character from sites generally developed as Sugaring NYC Locations. As a
result, you agree that the following locations (“Special Sites”) are excluded from the Development Territory
and we have the right, subject to our then-current Special Sites Impact Policy, to develop or franchise such
locations: (1) military bases; (2) public transportation facilities; (3) sports facilities, including race tracks;
(4) student unions or other similar buildings on college or university campuses; (5) amusement and theme
parks; and (6) community and special events.

E. This Agreement is not a Franchise Agreement and you have no right to use in any manner the

Trademarks by virtue of this Agreement. You have no right under this Agreement to sublicense or sub-
franchise others to operate a business or Location or use the System or the Trademarks.
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DEVELOPMENT FEE
3. You must pay a Development Fee as described below:

A. As consideration for the rights granted in this Agreement, you must pay us a “Development Fee”
of $40,000.00 x # of Locations, representing the number of Locations to be developed under this
Agreement. The Initial Franchise Fee for the first Location is $45,000.00.

The Development Fee is consideration for this Agreement and not consideration for any Franchise
Agreement, is fully earned by us upon execution of this Agreement and is non-refundable. The part of the
Initial Franchise Fee that is included in the Development Fee is credited against the Initial Franchise Fee
payable upon the signing of each individual Franchise Agreement. The balance of the Initial Franchise Fee
for the first Location must be paid at the time of execution of this Agreement, together with the execution
by you of the Franchise Agreement for the first Location. The total amount to be paid by you at the time of
execution of this Agreement according to this Section, including both the Development Fee and the balance
of the Initial Franchise Fee for your first Location, is $

B. You must submit a separate application for each Location to be established by you within the
Development Territory as further described in Section 4. Upon our consent to the site of your Location, a
separate Franchise Agreement must be executed for each such Location. Upon the execution of each
Franchise Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement control the establishment and
operation of such Location.

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE
4. The following provisions control with respect to your development rights and obligations:

A. You are bound by and strictly must follow the Development Schedule. By the dates set forth
under the Development Schedule, you must enter into Franchise Agreements with us according to this
Agreement for the number of Locations described under the Development Schedule. You also must comply
with the Development Schedule requirements regarding (i) the Location type to be developed and the
opening date for each Location and (ii) the cumulative number of Locations to be open and continuously
operating for business in the Development Territory. If you fail to either execute a Franchise Agreement or
to open a Location according to the dates in the Franchise Agreement, we, in our sole discretion, may (i)
require that you hire a franchise development expert with recognized experience in developing franchises
in a similar line of business to ours or (ii) immediately terminate this Agreement according to Section 7.B.

B. You may not develop a Location unless (i) at least 45 days, but no more than 60 days, prior to
the date in the Development Schedule for the execution of each Franchise Agreement, you send us a notice
(a) requiring that we send you our then current disclosure documents, (b) confirming your intention to
develop the particular Location and (c) sending us all information necessary to complete the Franchise
Agreement for the particular Location and (ii) all of the following conditions have been met (these
conditions apply to each Location to be developed in the Development Territory):

1. Your Submission of Proposed Site. You must find a proposed site for the Location which
you reasonably believe to conform to our site selection criteria, as modified by us from
time to time, and submit to us a complete site report (containing such demographic,
commercial, and other information and photographs as we may reasonably require) for
such site.
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2. Our Consent to Proposed Site. You must receive our written consent to your proposed
site. We agree not to unreasonably withhold consent to a proposed site. Prior to granting
our consent to a site, you must have the site evaluated by the proprietary site evaluator
software that has been developed by MapQuest or any similar mapping software. In
approving or disapproving any proposed site, we will consider such matters as we deem
material, including demographic characteristics of the proposed site, traffic patterns,
competition, the proximity to other businesses, the nature of other businesses in proximity
to the site, and other commercial characteristics (including the purchase or lease obligations
for the proposed site) and the size of premises, appearance and other physical
characteristics. Our consent to a proposed site, however, does not in any way constitute a
guaranty by us as to the success of the Location.

3. Your Submission of Information. You must furnish to us, at least 30 days prior to the
earliest of (i) the date in the Development Schedule by which you must execute a Franchise
Agreement or (ii) the actual date in which the Franchise Agreement would be executed, a
franchise application for the proposed Location, financial statements and other information
regarding you, the operation of any of your other Locations within the Development
Territory and the development and operation of the proposed Location (including, without
limitation, investment and financing plans for the proposed Location) as we may
reasonably require.

4. Your Compliance with Our Then-Current Standards for Franchisees. You must receive
written confirmation from us that you meet our then-current standards for franchisees,

including financial capability criteria for the development of a new Location. You
acknowledge and agree that this requirement is necessary to ensure the proper development
and operation of your Locations, and preserve and enhance the reputation and goodwill of
all Sugaring NYC Locations and the goodwill of the Trademarks. Our confirmation that
you meet our then-current standards for the development of a new Location, however, does
not in any way constitute a guaranty by us as to your success.

5. Good Standing. You must not be in default of this Agreement, any Franchise Agreement
entered into according to this Agreement or any other agreement between you or any of
your affiliates and us or any of our affiliates. You also must have satisfied on a timely basis
all monetary and material obligations under the Franchise Agreements for all existing
Locations.

6. Execution of Franchise Agreement. You and we must enter into our then-current form
of Franchise Agreement for the proposed Location. You understand that we may modify
the then-current form of Franchise Agreement from time to time and that it may be different
than the current form of Franchise Agreement, including different fees and obligations.
You understand and agree that any and all Franchise Agreements will be construed and
exist independently of this Agreement. The continued existence of each Franchise
Agreement will be determined by the terms and conditions of such Franchise Agreement.
Except as specifically in this Agreement, the establishment and operation of each Location
must be in accordance with the terms of the applicable Franchise Agreement.

C. You must begin substantial construction of each of the Locations at least 150 days before the
deadline to open each of the Locations if the Location will be in a free-standing location or at least 120 days
before the deadline to open the Location if the Location will be in a non-free standing location. In addition,
on or before the deadlines to start construction you must submit to us executed copies of any loan documents
and/or any other document that proves that you have secured adequate financing to complete the
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construction of the Location by the date you are obligated to have that Location open and in operation. In
the event that you fail to comply with any of these obligations, we will have the right to terminate this
Agreement without opportunity to cure according to subparagraph 7.B.

D. You acknowledge that you have conducted an independent investigation of the prospects for the
establishment of Locations within the Development Territory, and recognize that the business venture
contemplated by this Agreement involves business and economic risks and that your financial and business
success will be primarily dependent upon the personal efforts of you and your management and employees.
We expressly disclaim the making of, and you acknowledge that you have not received, any estimates,
projections, warranties or guaranties, express or implied, regarding potential Gross Revenues, profits,
earnings or the financial success of the Locations you develop within the Development Territory.

E. You recognize and acknowledge that this Agreement requires you to open Locations in the future
according to the Development Schedule. You further acknowledge that the estimated expenses and
investment requirements in the Franchise Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement are only
estimates and are subject to increase over time, and that future Locations likely will involve different initial
investment and operating capital requirements than those stated in the Franchise Disclosure Document or
Franchise Agreement provided to you prior to the execution of this Agreement. You are obligated to execute
all the Franchise Agreements and open all the Locations on the dates set forth on the Development Schedule,
regardless of (i) the requirement of a greater investment, (ii) the financial condition or performance of your
prior Locations, or (iii) any other circumstances, financial or otherwise. The foregoing shall not be
interpreted as imposing any obligation upon us to execute the Franchise Agreements under this Agreement
if you have not complied with each and every condition necessary to develop the Locations.

TERM

5. Unless sooner terminated in accordance with Section 7 of this Agreement, the term of this
Agreement and all rights granted to you will expire on the date that your last Sugaring NYC Location is
scheduled to be opened under the Development Schedule.

YOUR DUTIES
6. You must perform the following obligations:

A. You must comply with all of the terms and conditions of each Franchise Agreement, including
the operating requirements specified in each Franchise Agreement.

B. You and your owners, officers, directors, shareholders, partners, members and managers (if any)
acknowledge that your entire knowledge of the operation of a Sugaring NYC Location and the System,
including the knowledge or know-how regarding the specifications, standards and operating procedures of
the services and activities, is derived from information we disclose to you and that certain information is
proprietary, confidential and constitutes our trade secrets. The term “trade secrets” refers to the whole or
any portion of know-how, knowledge, methods, specifications, processes, procedures and/or improvements
regarding the business that is valuable and secret in the sense that it is not generally known to our
competitors and any proprietary information contained in the manuals or otherwise communicated to you
in writing, verbally or through the internet or other online or computer communications, and any other
knowledge or know-how concerning the methods of operation of the Locations. You and your owners,
officers, directors, shareholders, partners, members and managers (if any), jointly and severally, agree that
at all times during and after the term of this Agreement, you will maintain the absolute confidentiality of
all such proprietary information and will not disclose, copy, reproduce, sell or use any such information in
any othtioer business or in any manner not specifically authorized or approved in advance in writing by us.
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We may require that you obtain nondisclosure and confidentiality agreements in a form satisfactory to us
from the individuals identified in the first sentence of this paragraph and other key employees.

C. You must comply with all requirements of federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations.

D. If you at some time in the future desire to make either a public or a private offering of your
securities, prior to such offering and sale, and prior to the public release of any statements, data, or other
information of any kind relating to the proposed offering of your securities, you must secure our written
approval, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld. You must secure our prior written consent to
any and all press releases, news releases and any and all other publicity, the primary purpose of which is to
generate interest in your offering. Only after we have given our written approval may you proceed to file,
publish, issue, and release and make public any said data, material and information regarding the securities
offering. It is specifically understood that any review by us is solely for our own information, and our
approval does not constitute any kind of authorization, acceptance, agreement, endorsement, approval, or
ratification of the same, either expressly or implied. You may make no oral or written notice of any kind
whatsoever indicating or implying that we and/or our affiliates have any interest in the relationship
whatsoever to the proposed offering other than acting as Franchisor. You agree to indemnify, defend, and
hold us and our affiliates harmless, and our affiliates’ directors, officers, successors and assigns harmless
from all claims, demands, costs, fees, charges, liability or expense (including attorneys’ fees) of any kind
whatsoever arising from your offering of information published or communicated in actions taken in that
regard.

E. If neither you, your Principal Owner, nor any other person in your organization possesses, in our
judgment, adequate experience and skills to allow you to locate, obtain, and develop prime locations in the
Development Territory to allow you to meet your development obligations under this Agreement, we can
require that you hire or engage a person with those necessary skills.

DEFAULT AND TERMINATION
7. The following provisions apply with respect to default and termination:

A. The rights and territorial protection granted to you in this Agreement have been granted in
reliance on your representations and warranties, and strictly on the conditions in Sections 2, 4 and 6 of this
Agreement, including the condition that you comply strictly with the Development Schedule.

B. You will be deemed in default under this Agreement if you breach any of the terms of this
Agreement, including the failure to meet the Development Schedule, or the terms of any Franchise
Agreement or any other agreements between you or your affiliates and us or our affiliates. All rights granted
in this Agreement immediately terminate upon written notice without opportunity to cure if: (i) you become
insolvent, meaning unable to pay bills as they become due in the ordinary course of business, (ii) you fail
to meet the development obligations in the Development Schedule attached as Appendix B, (iii) failure to
start substantial construction of any of the Locations by the date established in Section 4.C (iv) failure to
secure financing for the construction of any of the Locations by the date in Section 4.C (v) you fail to
comply with any other provision of this Agreement and do not correct the failure within 30 days after
written notice of that failure is delivered to you, or (vi) we have delivered to you a notice of termination of
a Franchise Agreement in accordance with its terms and conditions.

C. Alternatively, and at our discretion, in the event that you fail to meet the Development Schedule,
we may elect to modify the Development Schedule and reduce the number of Locations granted to you
therein to a schedule which we believe, in our sole and absolute discretion, which you are more capable of
managing.
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RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF PARTIES UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION

8. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, all rights granted to you will automatically
terminate, and:

A. All remaining rights granted to you to develop Locations under this Agreement will
automatically be revoked and will be null and void. You will not be entitled to any refund of any fees. You
will have no right to develop or operate any business for which a Franchise Agreement has not been
executed by us. We will be entitled to develop and operate, or to franchise others to develop and operate,
Sugaring NYC Locations in the Development Territory, except as may be otherwise provided under any
Franchise Agreement that has been executed between us and you and that has not been terminated.

B. You must immediately cease to operate your business under this Agreement and must not
thereafter, directly or indirectly, represent to the public or hold yourself out as a present or former developer
of ours.

C. You must take such action as may be necessary to cancel or assign to us or our designee, at our
option, any assumed name or equivalent registration that contains the name or any of the words “Sugaring
NYC” or any other Trademark of ours, and you must furnish us with evidence satisfactory to us of
compliance with this obligation within thirty (30) days after termination or expiration of this Agreement.

D. You must assign to us or our designee all your right, title, and interest in and to your telephone
numbers and must notify the telephone company and all listing agencies of the termination or expiration of
your right to use any telephone number in any regular, classified or other telephone directory listing
associated with the Trademarks and to authorize transfer of same at our direction.

E. You must, within thirty (30) days of the termination or expiration, pay all sums owing to us and
our affiliates, including the balance of the Initial Franchise Fees that we would have received had you
developed all of the Locations in the Development Schedule.

All unpaid amounts will bear interest at the rate of 18% per annum or the maximum contract rate
of interest permitted by governing law, whichever is less, from and after the date of accrual. In the event of
termination for any default by you, the sums due will include all damages, costs, and expenses, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, incurred by us as a result of the default. You also must pay to us
all damages, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses that we incur
subsequent to the termination or expiration of this Agreement in obtaining injunctive or other relief for the
enforcement of any provisions of this Agreement.

F. If this Agreement is terminated solely for your failure to meet the Development Schedule and
for no other reason whatsoever, and you have opened at least 50% of the total number of Locations provided
for in the Development Schedule, you may continue to operate those existing Locations under the terms of
the separate Franchise Agreement for each Location. On the other hand, if this Agreement is terminated
under any other circumstance, we have the option to purchase from you at book value all the assets used in
the Locations that have been developed prior to the termination of this Agreement. Assets include leasehold
improvements, equipment, automobiles/trucks/vans, furniture, fixtures, signs, inventory, liquor licenses,
and other transferable licenses and permits for the Locations.

We have the unrestricted right to assign this option to purchase. We or our assignee will be entitled
to all customary warranties and representations given by the seller of a business including, without

limitation, representations and warranties as to (i) ownership, condition and title to assets; (ii) liens and
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encumbrances relating to the assets; and (iii) validity of contracts and liabilities, inuring to us or affecting
the assets, contingent or otherwise. The purchase price for the assets of the Locations will be determined in
accordance with the post-termination purchase option provision in the individual Franchise Agreement for
each Location (with the purchase price to include the value of any goodwill of the business attributable to
your operation of the Location if you are in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Franchise
Agreement for that Location). The purchase price must be paid in cash at the closing of the purchase, which
must take place no later than 90 days after your receipt of notice of exercise of this option to purchase, at
which time you must deliver instruments transferring to us or our assignee: (i) good and merchantable title
to the assets purchased, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances (other than liens and security interests
acceptable to us or our assignee), with all sales and other transfer taxes paid by you; and (ii) all licenses and
permits of the Locations that may be assigned or transferred. If you cannot deliver clear title to all of the
purchased assets, or in the event there are other unresolved issues, the closing of the sale will be
accomplished through an escrow. We have the right to set off against and reduce the purchase price by any
and all amounts owed by you to us, and the amount of any encumbrances or liens against the assets or any
obligations assumed by us. You and each holder of an interest in you must indemnify us and our affiliates
against all liabilities not so assumed. You must maintain in force all insurance policies required according
to the applicable Franchise Agreement until the closing on the sale.

G. All of our and your obligations that expressly or by their nature survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding its
expiration or termination and until they are satisfied or by their nature expire.

TRANSFER
9. The following provisions govern any transfer:

A. We have the right to transfer all or any part of our rights or obligations under this Agreement to
any person or legal entity who agrees to be bound by its terms.

B. This Agreement is entered into by us with specific reliance upon your personal experience, skills
and managerial and financial qualifications. Consequently, this Agreement, and your rights and obligations
under it, are and will remain personal to you. You may only Transfer your rights and interests under this
Agreement if you obtain our prior written consent and you transfer all of your rights and interests under all
Franchise Agreements for Locations in the Development Territory. Accordingly, the assignment terms and
conditions of the Franchise Agreements shall apply to any Transfer of your rights and interests under this
Agreement. As used in this Agreement, the term “Transfer” means any sale, assignment, gift, pledge,
mortgage or any other encumbrance, transfer by bankruptcy, transfer by judicial order, merger,
consolidation, share exchange, transfer by operation of law or otherwise, whether direct or indirect,
voluntary or involuntary, of this Agreement or any interest in it, or any rights or obligations arising under
it, or of any material portion of your assets, or of any interest in you.

C. THE COMPANY’S RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL. If developer (or its owners) shall at any
time determine to sell, assign or transfer for consideration this Agreement (or an interest therein) or an
ownership interest in developer, or all or substantially all of the assets of developer, developer (or its
owners) shall obtain a bona fide, executed written offer and earnest money deposit from a responsible and
fully disclosed prospective purchaser and submit an exact copy of such offer to us. However, if the offeror
proposes to buy any other property or rights, other than rights under Franchise Agreements executed
pursuant hereto, from developer or any of its affiliated entities (or their respective owners) such proposal
must be under a separate, contemporaneous offer. The price and terms of purchase offered to developer (or
its owners) for the interest in this Agreement and Franchise Agreements or developer (or any affiliated
entities) shall reflect the bona fide price offered therefore and shall not reflect any value for any other
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property or rights. We shall have the right, exercisable by written notice delivered to developer or its owners
within fifteen (15) days from the date of delivery of an exact copy of such offer to us, to purchase this
Agreement (or such interest in this Agreement) or such ownership interest in developer or such assets for
the price and on the terms and conditions contained in such offer, provided that we may substitute cash for
any form of payment proposed in such offer, our credit shall be deemed equal to the credit of any proposed
purchaser and we shall have not less than fifteen (15) days to prepare for closing. If we do not exercise our
right of first refusal, developer (or its owners) may complete the sale to such purchaser according to and on
the terms of such offer, subject to our approval, provided, however, that if the sale to such purchaser is not
completed within one hundred eighty (180) days after delivery of such offer to us, or if there is a material
change in the terms of the sale, we shall again have the right of first refusal provided herein.

D. DEATH OR PERMANENT DISABILITY OF DEVELOPER. Upon the death or permanent
disability of developer or an owner of developer, the executor, administrator, conservator or other personal
representative of such person shall transfer his interest within a reasonable time, not to exceed six (6)
months from the date of death or permanent disability, to a third party approved by us. Such transfer,
including, without limitation, transfer by devise or inheritance, shall be subject to all the terms and
conditions for assignments and transfers contained in Section and, unless transferred by gift, devise or
inheritance, subject to the terms of Section 9(C) hereof. Failure to dispose of such interest within said period
of time shall constitute a breach of this Agreement.

E. CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL OF TRANSFER. If developer (or, if developer is a
corporation or partnership, its shareholders or partners) is in full compliance with this Agreement and all
Franchise Agreements, we shall not unreasonably withhold our approval of a transfer that meets all the
applicable requirements of this Section 9(E). The proposed transferee and its owners must be individuals
of good moral character and otherwise meet our then applicable standards for developers of Locations. A
transfer of this Agreement may be made only in connection with the transfer to the same transferee of all
interests of developer (and all of its affiliated entities) in every Location developed according to this
Agreement. If the transfer is of the development rights granted under this Agreement or a controlling
interest in developer, or is one of a series of transfers which in the aggregate constitute the transfer of the
development rights granted under this Agreement or a controlling interest in developer, all of the following
conditions must be met prior to or concurrently with the effective date of the transfer:

(1) the transferee must have sufficient business experience, aptitude and financial resources to
operate developer’s business and develop the Development Area;

(2) Developer must pay us and our affiliates all amounts owed to us or our affiliates which are then
due and unpaid and submit all required reports and statements which have not yet been
submitted;

(3) the transferee must agree to be bound by and expressly assume all of the terms and conditions
of this Agreement for the remainder of its term;

(4) Developer (and its owners) must execute general releases of any and all claims against us, our
affiliates, officers, directors, employees and agents;

(5) all Franchise Agreements between us and Developer or any affiliated entity must be transferred
to the transferee of this Agreement (or the transferee of a controlling interest in developer);

(6) Developer or the transferee must pay us a transfer fee in an amount equal to the Company’s

out-of-pocket expenses, which shall not exceed Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000), relating
to review and approval of the proposed transfer; and this transfer fee shall be in addition to any
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and all transfer fees paid in connection with the transfers of Franchise Agreements in
conjunction with this transfer;

7

~

the transferee and/or its personnel must agree to complete our training program to our
satisfaction, for which the transferee must pay to the Company its then-current training fee;
and

(8) We shall not have exercised its right of first refusal according to Section 9C hereof. If the
proposed transfer is to or among owners of developer who have executed the attached form of
Owner’s Guaranty and Assumption of Developer’s Obligations, none of the above
requirements shall apply, and it should only require notice to the Company. Subparagraph (8)
shall not apply to transfers by gift, bequest or inheritance. In connection with any assignment
permitted under this Section 9E, developer shall provide us with all documents to be executed
by developer and the proposed assignee or transferee at least thirty (30) days prior to execution.

MISCELLANEOUS
10. The parties agree to the following provisions:

A. You agree to indemnify, defend, and hold us, our affiliates and our officers, directors,
shareholders and employees harmless from and against any and all claims, losses, damages and liabilities,
however caused, arising directly or indirectly from, as a result of, or in connection with, the development,
use and operation of your Locations, as well as the costs, including attorneys’ fees, of defending against
them (“Franchise Claims”). Franchise Claims include, but are not limited to, those arising from any death,
personal injury or property damage (whether caused wholly or in part through our or our affiliate’s active
or passive negligence), latent or other defects in any Location, or your employment practices. In the event
a Franchise Claim is made against us or our affiliates, we reserve the right in our sole judgment to select
our own legal counsel to represent our interests, at your cost.

B. Should one or more clauses of this Agreement be held void or unenforceable for any reason by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such clause or clauses will be deemed to be separable in such
jurisdiction and the remainder of this Agreement is valid and in full force and effect and the terms of this
Agreement must be equitably adjusted so as to compensate the appropriate party for any consideration lost
because of the elimination of such clause or clauses.

C. No waiver by us of any breach by you, nor any delay or failure by us to enforce any provision
of this Agreement, may be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach or be deemed an
estoppel to enforce our rights with respect to that or any other or subsequent breach. This Agreement may
not be waived, altered or rescinded, in whole or in part, except by a writing signed by you and us. This
Agreement constitutes the sole agreement between the parties with respect to the entire subject matter of
this Agreement and embodies all prior agreements and negotiations with respect to the business. You
acknowledge and agree that you have not received any warranty or guarantee, express or implied, as to the
potential volume, profits or success of your business. There are no representations or warranties of any
kind, express or implied, except as contained in this Agreement.

D. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any notice, demand or communication
provided for must be in writing and signed by the party serving the same and either delivered personally or
by a reputable overnight service or deposited in the United States mail, service or postage prepaid, and if
such notice is a notice of default or of termination, by registered or certified mail, and addressed as follows:
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1. If to us, addressed to Nartov Ventures, LLC at 1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6,
West Palm Beach, Florida 33409,

2. If to you, addressed to you at the last address we have on file for you;

Or, in either case, to such other address as may have been designated by notice to the other
party. Notices for purposes of this Agreement will be deemed to have been received if
mailed or delivered as provided in this subparagraph.

E. Any modification, consent, approval, authorization or waiver granted in this Agreement required
to be effective by signature will be valid only if in writing executed by the Principal Owner or, if on behalf
of us, in writing executed by our President or one of our authorized Vice Presidents.

F. Applicable Law. You agree to be bound by the Dispute Resolution provisions found in Section
23 of any Franchise Agreement between the parties as if set forth here and as being equally applicable to
this Agreement and the dealings of the parties hereunder.

G. If you are a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or partnership or other legal
entity, all of your Principal Owners must execute the form of undertaking and guarantee at the end of this
Agreement. Any person or entity that at any time after the date of this Agreement becomes a Principal
Owner must execute the form of undertaking and guarantee at the end of this Agreement.

H. You and we are independent contractors. Neither party is the agent, legal representative, partner,
subsidiary, joint venturer or employee of the other. Neither party may obligate the other or represent any
right to do so. This Agreement does not reflect or create a fiduciary relationship or a relationship of special
trust or confidence.

1. In the event of any failure of performance of this Agreement according to its terms by any party
due to force majeure will not be deemed a breach of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, “force
majeure” shall mean acts of God, State or governmental action, riots, disturbance, war, strikes, lockouts,
slowdowns, prolonged shortage of energy supplies or any raw material, epidemics, fire, flood, hurricane,
typhoon, earthquake, lightning and explosion or other similar event or condition, not existing as of the date
of signature of this Agreement, not reasonably foreseeable as of such date and not reasonably within the
control of any party hereto, which prevents in whole or in material part the performance by one of the
parties hereto of its obligations hereunder.

J. This Agreement and all related agreements executed simultaneously with this Agreement
constitute the entire understanding of the parties and supersede any and all prior oral or written agreements
between you and us on the matters contained in this Agreement; but nothing in this or any related agreement
is intended to disclaim the representations we made in the latest franchise disclosure document that we
furnished to you.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed the foregoing Agreement as of the dates

written below.

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document

Franchisor

NARTOV VENTURES, LLC

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Developer

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Guarantors
By:

Name:

Date:

By:

Name:

Date:

By:

Name:

Date:
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APPENDIX A
DEVELOPMENT TERRITORY

Your Development Territory shall consist of the area
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APPENDIX B

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE
Cumulative Number of
. Date by Which Franchise . Units Operating in
Unit Number Agreement Must be Signed Opening Date Territory by the Date in the
Preceding Column
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
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APPENDIX C TO AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
OWNER’S GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF DEVELOPER’S OBLIGATIONS

As an inducement to Nartov Ventures, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (“Company”) to
execute Nartov Ventures, LLC's Area Development Agreement between Company and
(“Developer” or “You”) dated , 20 (the
“Agreement”), the undersigned, jointly and severally, hereby unconditionally guarantee to Company and
Company’s successors and assigns that all of Developer’s monetary and other obligations under the
Agreement will be punctually paid and performed.

Upon demand by the Company, the undersigned each hereby jointly and severally agree to
immediately make each payment required of Developer under the Agreement and waive any right to require
the Company to: (a) proceed against Developer for any payment required under the Agreement; (b) proceed
against or exhaust any security from Developer; (c) pursue or exhaust any remedy, including any legal or
equitable relief, against Developer; or (d) give notice of demand for payment by Developer. Without
affecting the obligations of the undersigned under this Guarantee, the Company may, without notice to the
undersigned, extend, modify, or release any indebtedness or obligation of Developer, or settle, adjust, or
compromise any claims against Developer, and the undersigned each hereby jointly and severally waive
notice of same and agree to remain and be bound by any and all such amendments and changes to the
Agreement.

The undersigned each hereby jointly and severally agree to defend, indemnify and hold Company,
Company’s affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, employees, and agents harmless against any
and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s
fees, reasonable costs of investigation, court costs, and arbitration fees and expenses) resulting from,
consisting of, or arising out of or in connection with any failure by Developer to perform any obligation of
Developer under the Agreement, any amendment thereto, or any other agreement executed by Developer
referred to therein.

The undersigned each hereby jointly and severally acknowledge and expressly agree to be
individually bound by all of the covenants contained in the Agreement, and acknowledge and agree that
this Guarantee does not grant the undersigned any right to use the “Sugaring NYC” marks or system
licensed to Developer under the Agreement.

This Guarantee shall terminate upon the termination or expiration of the Agreement, except that all
obligations and liabilities of the undersigned which arose from events which occurred on or before the
effective date of such termination shall remain in full force and effect until satisfied or discharged by the
undersigned, and all covenants which by their terms continue in force after the expiration or termination of
the Agreement shall remain in force according to their terms.

Upon the death of an individual guarantor, the estate of such guarantor shall be bound by this
Guarantee, but only for obligations hereunder existing at the time of death; and the obligations of the other
guarantors will continue in full force and effect.

If the Company is required to enforce this Guarantee in a judicial or arbitration proceeding, and
prevails in such proceeding, the Company shall be entitled to reimbursement of its costs and expenses,
including, but not limited to, reasonable accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys’ assistants’, arbitrators’, and
expert witness fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses, and
travel and living expenses, whether incurred prior to, in preparation for, or in contemplation of the filing of
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any such proceeding. If the Company is required to engage legal counsel in connection with any failure by
the undersigned to comply with this Guarantee, the undersigned shall reimburse the Company for any of
the above-listed costs and expenses the Company incurs.

Dispute Resolution. You agree to be bound by the Dispute Resolution provisions found in Section
23 of any Franchise Agreement between the parties as if set forth here and as being equally applicable to
this Guaranty and the dealings of the parties hereunder.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has signed this Guarantee as of the date of the
Agreement.

Guarantors
By:

Name:
Date:

By:
Name:
Date:

By:
Name:
Date:
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APPENDIX D TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

LIST OF PRINCIPALS

Holders of Legal or Beneficial Interest:

Name:

Position/Title:

Home Address:

Telephone No.:

E-mail Address:

Percentage of Ownership: %

Name:

Position/Title:

Home Address:

Telephone No.:

E-mail Address:

Percentage of Ownership: %

Name:

Position/Title:

Home Address:

Telephone No.:

E-mail Address:
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Name:

Position/Title:

Home Address:

Telephone No.:

E-mail Address:

Percentage of Ownership: %

Name:

Position/Title:

Home Address:

Telephone No.:

E-mail Address:

Percentage of Ownership: %

Name:

Position/Title:

Home Address:

Telephone No.:

E-mail Address:
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Percentage of Ownership: %
Officers and Directors:

Name:

Position/Title:

Home Address:

Telephone No.:

E-mail Address:

Name:

Position/Title:

Home Address:

Telephone No.:

E-mail Address:
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Percentage of Ownership: %

Name:

Position/Title:

Home Address:

Telephone No.:

E-mail Address:

Name:

Position/Title:

Home Address:

Telephone No.:

E-mail Address:
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APPENDIX E
TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

STATE ADDENDA TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM
TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Area Development Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

Any provision of a franchise agreement, franchise disclosure document, acknowledgement, questionnaire,
or other writing, including any exhibit thereto, disclaiming or denying any of the following shall be deemed
contrary to public policy and shall be void and unenforceable:

(a) Representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents to a prospective franchisee.
(b) Reliance by a franchisee on any representations made by the franchisor or its

(c) Reliance by a franchisee on the franchise disclosure document, including any exhibit thereto.
(d) Violations of any provision of this division.

Franchisees must sign a personal guaranty, making you and your spouse individually liable for your
financial obligations under the agreement if you are married. The guaranty will place your and your
spouse’s marital and personal assets at risk, perhaps including your house, if your franchise fails.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
licable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on an
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
See  NASAA STATEMENT OF POLICY REGARDING THE USE OF FRANCHISE
QUESTIONNAIRES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS.

https://www.nasaa.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/1 1/sop-franchise-questionnaires.pdf.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:
By: Date:
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ILLINOIS ADDENDUM
TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Area Development Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

1. Illinois law governs the Area Development Agreement.

2. In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois is
void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois.

3. Franchisee rights upon termination and non-renewal are in sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act.

4. In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition,
stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance
with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

5. The Area Development Agreement is modified to also provide that we defer collection of
Initial Franchise Fees until we have satisfied our pre-opening obligations to you and you have
commenced doing business under the Franchise Agreement. Payment of the Development Fee is
deferred until the first franchise business opens. The Illinois Attorney General’s Office imposed this
deferral requirement due to our financial condition.

6. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on behalf of the Franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed
in connection with the franchise.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:
By: Date:
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM
TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Area Development Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

1. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must
be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

2. A general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall
not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

3. This franchise agreement provides that disputes are resolved through arbitration. A
Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a franchisee to
waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. In
light of the Federal Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement
is legally enforceable.

4. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or
waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability
incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

5. The Area Development Agreement is amended to add the following language: "Based
upon the franchisor's financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a
financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until
the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement. In addition, all
development fees and initial payments by area developers shall be deferred until the first franchise
under the development agreement opens."

6. Termination upon bankruptcy of the franchisee may not be enforceable under federal
bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101 et seq.).

7. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting
on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

8. Nothing herein shall bar Franchisee from bringing a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:
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By: Date:
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MINNESOTA ADDENDUM
TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Area Development Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

e Minn. Stat. §80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation
to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to
consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the
Franchise Disclosure Document or agreements can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s
rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or (2) franchisee’s rights to any
procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

e With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat.
Sec. 80C.14 Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require (except in certain specified cases), that a franchisee
be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal
of the franchise agreement and that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably
withheld.

e The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names,
logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs or

expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the name.

e Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the trademarks. Refer to
Minnesota Statutes 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

e Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a
general release.

e The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may seek
injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400)J.

Also, a court will determine if a bond is required.
Any Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:
By: Date:
Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document Exhibit E: Area Development Agreement
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM
TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

As to franchises governed by the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, if any of the
terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection
Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions
which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the
areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or
mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the
time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of
arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a
franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of
franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant
to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by
independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of
limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a
jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or
actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an
employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party
seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted
annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against
an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent
contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained
in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and
unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee
from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting
or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise
agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document Exhibit E: Area Development Agreement
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A release or waiver of rights signed by the franchisee shall not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act except when executed according to a negotiated settlement after the
agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as
those that unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, rights or
remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable.

The Area Development Agreement is amended to also provide: “Because the Franchisor has material pre-
opening obligations with respect to each franchised business the Franchisee opens under the Area
Development Agreement, the State of Washington will require that the franchise fees be released
proportionally with respect to each franchised business.”

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Nartov Ventures, LLC

By: By:
By: Date:
Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document Exhibit E: Area Development Agreement
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EXHIBIT F TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NARTOV VENTURESLLC

FINANCIAL REPORT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
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Indeperdiert Audiar's Repont
To the Member

NARTOV VENTURES LLC
West Pudrs Baach, Flonds

Report an the Andit of the Finmacial Statements

Opcacn

We have saditad the g bedamce shects of NARTOV VENTURES LLC s of Decasber $1, 2008, and 2022,
ard the relaied sttarncnts of operations, monbeny’ (defict ) xad ool flows for the yers ended Decersber 31, 2023, 2022,
and 2021, xad the relaied solcs © (el talcments

In our e francal satcnats sioved b sbove proent feddy, = all metorid repecty, the Srancial postion of
VB‘“RBLLC-JN-&!I.M‘M—!&:‘J&Q-'-‘-:‘M
for the yous ended December 31, 2008, 202 and 2121, i sccordence with sccomsting prncipler generally sccoptad

the Ursied Sttes of Amerca

Saw for Opovion

We condixciod owr madits t» scoordmoe with smadiing stancheds scoepted in the Uniled Stxiex of Amencs
(QAAS). Our resporsa bistics usder hose tmdod we farther = the Audior s Reponabibtics for the Andit of

the Frsmcial Ststcraests section of oor report. Wee e reguared to be mdependest of NARTOV VENTURES LIC sd o
meet cor olber cthicd roponebilficy, in sccondence with the relevant cthical ropuirenats relating o cer sadix We
belicve that the mad evidence we bave obtenad s afficicnt snd sppropriste to provide s beds for cer sadit optrion.

Raopennbditics of Menapement for the Fnancal Satements

Mamgenen! = sopommible for e propeston od far procntston of Be fimscad saionots 0 sccondece with
sccounting penciples scocpied = e United Stetes of Amenca, wnd for e dosgn, mplanantation, sd
ramsicnmce of amirel rdevant © e prepaestion md fair prosentatios of fimescid saicnents that e free fom
malorsd rodsianat, whether duc ko fread or gror

In preparing the Smecal saionots, mersgoment is ropred 1o cvdiaic whatha hor sc conditors or events,
comaderad 1n e sgpropeic, it rxbe smbatetial doubt sboet NARTOV VENTURES LLC'x sbelty o comtoue w a
oy concern for one per afler the duie that he Sramcial stdemants e touad.

Aadter's Rapenditio for the Andt of the Fimencial Sectomnests

Onr cbjoctives are to obtags seworable soarsnce sbout whether $ie firanciad saionets o x whole we o fromn maicral
mindscmesl, wheha das o faad or avor, d 0 soec an sudior’s report fat inclades oo opmios. Roscssble
sxmarance = % igh lovd of smrsnce bet @ not sbeoktc sounesce md Hiodfon = not 8 puesntor that = s condectad
in sccovdamce with GAAS wall alwiys detect & resterad mistsdenant whes #f contx The rak of sot detecting & mutarald
mindscracs! resaling from fread i bigher Gam for onc soudting from e, aa fresd may mwive colloscn, fogey,
iniestionsd crzteoms, mesprecristons, of e ovaride of micsd costrel. Meadsiomonts we comadered mudenad o
there = & subtastnd Blclibood et individeally or = e agpopeie, By would iflacsce the jadgraent made by 2
rexsozable wer bused oo e Sranxcial stdenate

UL Nk Sy Komd, B X 00« WL Cullwm, 010 003
(5 R
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I performing an sadit in sccordasce wilh GAAS, wet

Excrcise prefessondd judpnont and moeisssln prefessional skeptiaism throoghost the ande,
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NAKTON VENTURES LLC"s indernal . Accerdingly, no wach opirden is e

Evalate e appropriaseness of accountng polices ssed and the rossomabioness of dgnifican accounting
estonases made by (ranegener, os well s evelame e avenl preseotasion of 1 Maascel sidemans.

Conchade whnther, n cor judgrent, fhare wre conditions or evests comidorad 1 fe ageagee, dut i
subwtwrtial docht aboue NARTON VENTURES LLC's abullity % Inee as & golng for a o
poriod of thme.

We are saqeiond 10 cormmmunicase with thoss charged with govermonce segand g, smong other matieny, the planed weope
e Tening of the sadie, significant st Sndings, and conal [nternal cormol-selaad rmarsers that we iestifed duriag the
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FL Collin, Colorsdo
March 19, 2004
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NARTOV VENTURES, LLC

BALANCE SHEETS
— ASOFDECEMBERSL,
P - S| - S
ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash snd expavalents $ 242 s wan
Accosts seocvabic 58 582 61 968
Contract scquinition coots, curvent " T 588
TOTAL CURKENT ASSETS E2or g1 [ET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property sd aquipmet, nat n.m 13510
Intangrbie woct, net .20 S0
Contract scquiiton cood, aet 0% 136 M
TOTAL ASSETS I Teawr T Trenan
LIABILITIES AND MEMEER (DEFICIT::
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accousts pryable md sacruad opooe $ s s 500
Due 1o zatinsl markctng find 480 s
Nos-refindable deforred franc base foex, czrent 500 950 435 55
TOTAL CURKENT LIABILITIES 857422 B
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Nes-refindable deforred francbise foex J Ak 412 iil‘)ﬁ
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4 v
MEMBER (DEFICIT) QABAIT) (2257438
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
MEMBER (DEFICIT) $ 1AM wT $ AR

The scoompanying noles soe i istegeal punt of these feuncid stulements

5

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document



NARTOV VENTURES, LLC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

mmnmug;ommnn.

REVENUES
Frezschie foo $  eMas $  wIEs $ 190,131
Royaky foes L2 6180 581,953
Other revemo 158 &% N2 062
TOTAL REVENUES B I TZI6121 LN TT
COST OF SALES pe ¥ 1) 65120 58247
GROSS PROFIT 1,663.97% 1,151,001 S5 608
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cenensl d sdmnotrat e 40495 a2 2206
Advertinrg cxpezsc 0963 01588 105,100
Przleocral savca %312 40,983 35 %2
Deprecation sad smortestion 1,55 1550 1,55
TOTAL OFERATING EXPENSES [Z5ELE] B0 T TN
OPERATING INCOME 801,415 30,213 84781
OTHER INCOME 15,545 L %
NET INCOME T dews Toonann T

The scoompanying noles st e istegral pant of these fsancid stulcments
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NARTOV VENTURES, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBER (DEFICIT)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, 2022 AND 221

Totad
Member Accamsalated Member
Cagital (Deficx) (Deficit)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2020 S AME S AN S (s
Mazher anzinbeboes 20000 - 2000
Mazher didnbuscrs - (1,129.765) (1,129765)
Nt marene - 28 290 35290
BALANCE, DECEMEER 31, 021 e (1,309 %45) (1L22657)
Mazher ddnhuces - (1.564574) (1,5643%)
Nt marene - $34415 $34415
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2022 3 X6 3 (2IMIM) § (LBTAW)
Mazber distribution - (1458959 (1A38599)
Net marene - £16.960 116560
BALANCE. DECEMBER 31, 3123 S 3 Ooeaden 3 OEEGT

The scoompamying noles st s istegoal pant of these Geancil stucments
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NARTOV VENTURES, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Net incorne
Adustrents 1 recoacde not loax 10 net cash providad
by operating actrmbex:
eprecance
Mecogemion of contract acqraamos comts
Hocogem on of non-refndabl ¢ defierred franchae mics
(razge in sancts and lubdrten
Acccurts oo vable
Franchuse scqramtios conts
A pavadie and d cxpezacs
e to'from satioral rartetng fand
Deferred reversxe

Net cash provided by operstng activiscs
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Parchascs of property and aqupment
Net cash (umed) 12 investing activises

POR THE Y EARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

02 P )
$  Kasw $ Sumas $ 2w
% 1.5 150
121445 45120 naea
(BV2.5T) (387, 24%) (¥90,131)
e (53061) (508.907)
(163.020) anse (281 5%7)
A (2 04) R L
155812 [ 5 1) p Y
?ﬁm mu& 2008 D47
1. 234057 1440010 140741
- - (11950
- - (11950
- - 20000
—ASw) _ (sne  _(1im0es)
—Gowsw) _asans  __(moes
(1sa5) (140573) e
o 50065 X%
$ Q2w s s $  S0pas

The scoompaoying noles s 4 istegeal pant of these feancid stulcments
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NARTOV VENTURES LILC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE | - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLXCIES

NARTOV VENTURES LLC ("the Compeny™) waa formead on October 17, 2017 (lscqpton) i the stuie
of Florida, o & brzited babilty compeery. The Compezy doos bumnco under he Corspuey s corporste

Al

The Comzpuary’s CED cpersiad sevens] bedncoex of the type being fnmchised usder oo Affiladen,
Sugerng USA, LLC, Supeing Bostos, LLC, and Sugerng Chicgo, L1C

The Corspury s affiiate, Sugermg 305 LLC, » Florids Emited hubiity compesy formed on Decasber 1,
2019, merages Flonds affilste osficts.

Thone AfSlsics do not cagage = sy other bne of buaxnon, v not offcred franchines in thix bne or w1y
other bne of boenc, and do sot provide prodiucts or sarvices ko nchbeo:

The Cornpasyy s affibate, Skiscee Divect [1.C, » Florids kmited lubisty company formad on Jesary 1,
ﬁlﬁ.:ﬁh—i‘wh-i-h-.hlhmdbdﬁ-h-hlﬁlhc-
other bne of boeno

Lecazon mermance
Clhasgex o the menhar of cuticts for e yors eadad December 31, 2002, and 2021, cmust of Be
M:
200 A2 2021
Owutlcts t= operston, begimming L 3 = 20
Orstlets openad 35 2 “
Omtlcts irmmsted or clooad %) - N
Outlcts = operston, ending 1?7 L) 34
Frmxchoed ostlds w % 24
Affikatc owsed cstlcts 10 10 "0
A mmmey of sigsificant scoounting policies follows
Baxts of Presentotion
The scoompumywyg fizscial sxicmonts bave ben on == scerusd beds 1 scoordence with

scoomting prvopics gererally scogpted 1= the Stwiex of Amarics ("OAAF)

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document



NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Licofframza
Prepestion of the Compaery's frarcial stoncsts iz scoodmce with penendly scoopied sccomsting
praxciplex rEagona! b Tk ctmeo ad merzpoces et gl the rouomial ancents of

The Corspasry cormaders ull highly i mvedncnts with & mutinty of teee months or loo o the trze
of prchese o be cash eqavalents. Compazy bad no cab oquivadents m of Decenber 51, 2023, md
p. -3

Ermchises Reorables

[ h“ncﬂd-—u The alic sccosst = ad repalarly sd
d;‘ agerod coTIngs A The Corpery detormimad that s sllowarce 1
franchisee recovabics of $0, Sr_y-d“!l 2008, md 22 Freschice
debt experne was $0, 50, md 0, for e yorx cadad Decomber 51, 2008, 2002 wnd 2021 Frschisce
oty writies off were $0, $0, sd 0 for the yors endad Decomber $1, 2008, 2022 s 2021

Lommat dcpannon Costy
Contrct egzation oot coroant of corzrzronoms pod o the ke of & Fncioe by te Conpey. ey
- = incranaial codd of e Fexcioe sgraonest and o recogreand o= over

c of the freachive srocacst under the gradamcs of ASC $40-40, '(h_dm
Q‘xh'lhc-—‘.
Lropern and Egupment Net
The Company bun adoptad ASC 350 . Mt wnd Egapenart. Property snd eqpepenent e stadod
o heodoricd codd. Dieprecation —**‘unhﬂdh—

dhu—('-dyh-b--)-)
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PFOLICIES (CONTINUED)

Jmtangtble A Net

The Corrgaery ba adoptad ASC 350, rtengitia - Ooadwill xad Oz thet rajere tat goadwill md

sty with mdefirsie bver 20 loager be amortined o currangs bt be todad for mparmat o
loot mraadly. btangble socts with frsie livex we snortsed ove Bor otineted safid bva. The
wefel life of = mmpble st & the panod over which # & expected o contribute drectly or mdiectly
to fetore cash flows. [Integible smocts with mufeste bves are reviewed for szpesrmest if evant or changes
= cotrnstances indicatc fut e camrying valee might not be reovensble.

Berome Recopumion and Nos-refindabie Deferred Fronchise Foe Reverme
The Compuzy socogetoes revermae under the guidmos of ASC 606, “Contracts with Cudomary™.

Compiey s S B S spamemet b g o st e et T
Compony Ui e paimms chigioe. it ....5’,.".:3’:::".;"._..

alocsior e st prce © axh pafomence cbligaton aad rxogrears wvezae wher
e hmhpfu-coﬂw-hmc‘ld&.-dnmbk

The Cornpeary hux concladad that the poformunce oblgations sepresent & sngle perforrence obligation
dwﬁ:ﬂ&-ﬂ-f-muhdhm“-m lOy-fn-k
effectve dute of e fnexchee gpeenat

When & franchisee parcisoes & g NYC fexciee, the Compuery gramts the franchises the right to
oparde the fnechesed busson md me e proprctey mathods, techrague, ade dem, tadenueks, sd
logos ((the boooe™)  Revessex reluted o the Some we boad o e fnechec agramest. Theee
reverzes are wed fo contrae e devclopment of the Comypeny s braead, e fchie yster md provide
cogoing mgport for the Commpamy s franchisos over e e of the sgreenant. The roysdtics e balled
monthly sd se secogeiead a3 reverne when commad.

Noyonal Adversintny and Development Fand
The Compery implematad 3 Natioral Advartiang snd Development Fund © purclsoe advertisng for
e benefit of fomchiess of the Compuery sexd gy for the codt of adizizistiering e fand  Contribesionn

o e Natwrsd Advertimag Fand we % gue rovesse, The contributions e billed monthly =d
rcogrised m contributions o e fund when billed

of services xad madieriaks will be rotriciad © the x
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PFOLICIES (CONTINUED)

Jncome Tazex
The manber of the Compaery b dexiad © be trovied s & “dimrgpedad entity* for imcome b perposee.

, Soable moome md o of the Compesyy we reportied on the moome tex reterma of it
member and 20 provisoes for fodaal or saie iscome tosex have bose recorded on e sccompeenyng

balence shoot.

mcqthmmm' myg for Uncotenty = lacome Tonex®, hat repares e
Comgeery 00 dixc mootas b postion the sederd 2z ity may osly recogreze or
contizec i socogeine tex ponitons et modt & “moee licly fun not* Seobold upon cosreration by

roquinag recogrition m it Seencal stdenart or thet would sffect the Compesy ‘s menber

LConconragons of Creght Ruk

Fusexial irstunatx H:’r-ﬁd e o mgzificet cosomtations of credit mak
cormid prrsanly of cady, pe recoiwblex.  The Compary plscer i lesporery ook mvatmats
with fruescal sothtices. AL Smes Sroughost the yor $ie Compeery may, = the ordizary course of
bugacn, msnten cuh bdmces = cxoon of fadodly tmered Bt Masmsgenant doox 3ot bebove the

i exponed 10 ary ussssd moks o mch 2 The Compny gt culdit b feckieo
mnﬂuh“h-‘h frachivces tx affected by Mectatons = e
cconcrny aad the oparations of e fnexchisos.

Adwrumng Coun

The Company expenscs sdvertanng cootx m morved.  Advartng apone for the yous eaded Decenber
51,2008, 2022, wnd 2021 was $57%, 963, $301 £K3, and $105,000.

Fatr Valwe of Femancial lestrements

For coten of the francial metrumonts, ncludeg coh md coh oquivalonty, sccount
reoavable, oot and sccreed expezscs. The cerying snomsts spprocensde for vl de o
Rocendly mmed accasstng proneecemet

The & ho all recently tosed ing Stederds ("AST"). The of
k: —dm-ht' .-ﬂ::_‘ &hiﬂwp’hhh:n‘:ﬂ'm“n
e francial poaton or roedts of oparatioss of the Cozpazy.

n
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Compuery ban recognived cortam mocts md ldalition sehetnd 10 the Compey's costeacts with
frarchisom. The sccoant balences snd actvty e aa followa:

Decazsber 31,
s 20
Contract Acquinition Coatx:

Badsrce begmeng of yor $ &1 N
Defarad of fanchee scqustion codts M0 IWSN
Recogration of fraechess soqeiabios cots (121445, $65,120)

Babarce ot end of your 3 shoas $ __Ss1aW

Deferred Nop-refundable Franchise Foex:

Badarce begmzng of yor $ 38080 $ 15%aAw
Defarad of nos-refundsblic freschoe foo K500 1A 040
Recogratios of non-refenduble fonchine foo (652 58T) (87349)

Badsrce ot ond of yaur 3 _ssan $ 37529

Enxmated Recopusion of see-cxSandable deferred frmchine Socy
Extimsted revanacs o be secogeized o future relsted © sonccfundable deforad mexchoe foo
=d rehdad contract scgEaton costs &3 1= the uboce shoot ot Decanber $1, 2008, o follows
Frmchie Noz-refindablc
—Acgeigton Cods | __ Freschiee Fomn
Yor adng Decanber 51

2ms s .08 s 01 960

™4 0.0 01 960

ams 0.0 01 960

2me .08 01 960

am? .08 01 960

Theafle 250 900 1AM ST

$ 0 848 $ SgEn

B
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Lxperepauon of Revermes

Demggregatad revanscs based on e stafaction of poformunce cbigations = the Corspasry s contractx
wath freschinces for the yours endad Decersber 31, 2022, snd 2021 tx 2 follows:

am3 20y o
Peformuance obligations stidicd ot 2
pomt | time $ 128450 $ M $ s
Peformance obligatioss mtidiad trosgh
e prouge of tre E45 5% 367,49 190181
Totad revermaex 3 __Losnass 3 1216131 3 81546

NOTE 3 - PROFERTY AND EQUIFMENT, NET
Property snd eqraprsent, net cormist of the followsng st Deoasber 31:

b 202
Louchold srprvenests $ 15 $ 1590
Accurmdsied deprocation (2.920) (2.199)

Sam_ 3 use
Deprecation axpane was $75), $750, md $750 for the youx ended Decanber 31, 2003, 2002 mnd 2021,
ropectively.

NOTE 4 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Intamgible socts, nct comsst of e followeng st Decomber $1:

2003 A2
Wetete $ a0 $ a0
Trademuark 1000 1 000

000 700
Accsrrdsdad wrectwaton (1.500) (1. 200)

$ 5200 $ S0

Amortaation expee win $600, $600, md $600 for the yours eadad December 51, 2008, 2002 xad 2021,
ropectively. Amortiodion i epeacted fo be $800 per yerr in fatere pariode
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AS OF DECEMSBER 31, 2021
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Independent Asdited's Repent

To the Mernber

NAFTOW VENTURES LILC

Wt Pabm Baach, Floride

Heport an B Finamial Stwtomcnn

We hove adind the acoomourrvine badasce abact of NARTOV VENTUNFE 176 w of Dyiprsber 11, 3631, sed the

relased staemwnts of perations, membery” (deficit) and cosh Sows Sor the year endiod Decensber 11, 021 and the reluad
rotes 10 Meancial Sarrsens.

Mavepemens's Rogassitiliy fiv tre Flnavcia! Stavwents

MEBERETE & NI b lhe preparsice and ik on of these Meancial eab in sccordasce with
mmm»«mhuuunmofmmmmummmm
maricaance of nterl ool rekevast to the prepacsion ad fir p won of Seascial s fhat e free $om
madterid misstarent, whefur duc be froxd or arror.

Ardives 'y Sepenaiy

Owr biley b %0 express e apiion oo those flaancial easrsents ool oo ser sadte We conduoiad cur sadis is

tcordance with zadting swndrds pereraly sccepbed Ie fhe Livtad Sises of Arserica. Thewo sandwds wquire et we
plen and perform o aedit 10 obtain reesormble sourasce aboat whether the liamcial sttaments are oo oo maerid
aeotdoTrt.

Anuiliuﬁ-mfmnmummohi--dlnﬂ-uakumm-.-dmuhﬁmu
Wl Thep 3 ocnd Gepend on the madior's judgraan, cluding $oe pocomant of 19e risks of naseriel
misstsiorent of the fluncld sserents, wixther doc %o fraad or ooy, In making Bose rick ssacavens, tw e
Censeders indomad comral relevant %0 the ety 's prepantion and Sdr preseaition of fhe fisascal stdements (s sofer 31
Gt aadi procadurcs that are approprine i the Groaratances, bt et ¢ the puspase of cge W a0 apkiion o0 the
efMeutivencm of the crtry’s | d contred. Acondegdy, we 20 weah opinies. An sadt alwo ischudes exaliating
mmmdm—ummmmm«wrmmu“mw
Panpemsont, s well xx evalasing the overal| p bon of the {idead Maancial suscrscen.

We t(knlhh-l.nm“-nln!l!ldﬂlblm-lwwm'knbﬂnun‘uﬂlh
Ovwon

18 oo pinion e finascal statemwerts refermed % shove presest furly, in all reasorial respects, the fiancial poakion of
NARTOV VENTUIRFR 155 we of Dacgrabar 21, 2031, nd 2020 arsl the remsii o i opCiabons asd fnds wad Mirms

fuﬁe)umﬂbnnbw!l.!ﬂl.hmdmwmmmuwm; sivepied in dhe Ursted Stees
of Awwrica

QMQ o Pﬁ Lot C_

Dervwer, Colorado
April 15, 2002

L5950 Py St = Thewwton, €7} N0
Wl LR S T ONT) PO
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NARTOV VENTURES, LILC
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2021

2
ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash a2 oqurval cots s S80008
Accoures reca vable S
Contract scgmeton coes, cament Nnue
TOTAL CLRRENT 10RO
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and aqupment, net 14240
Ireangibic semct, net a4
Coctract acqgmuton coe, nct R AN ]
TOTAL ASSETS s Lo
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER (DEFICIT):
CURRENT LIABILITIES
A payutic aad 4 expermce s Bt
e o manosal marketing fand 21087
Nos-refeadabic defered Sanchusc foo, carrest X148
TOTAL CLURRENT LIABILITIES o
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Nos-refeadabls defered fanchesc oo 2545514
TOTAL LANILITIES 270011
MEMBER (DENCIT) (L249W)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
MEMBER (DEFICIT) $ 1513

The scovenpaerying soles are o istegrad puet of these finmncial stalancets.

-
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REVENUES
Franchise focn
Koyaky foo

TOTAL REVENLES
COST OF SALEs
GCROSS PROFIT

OFERATING EXPFENSES
(ezerl and adrmezitrat ve

Afvertazg cxpenac
I'yodemosal sernces

[eprocabos and snortzaton
TOTAL OFERATING EXPFENSES
OPERATING INCOME

NARTOV VENTURES, LLC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE Y EAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2021

5

The scovenpasrying soles are an istegrad puet of these finuncial stalancsts.
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NARTOV VENTURES, L1LC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMEER (DEFICTT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2020
Member contnibetions
Menmber Genbunoss
Net izcome

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 221

Total

Merzber Acoam ubuted Member
—Copltsl =~ (Delickt) - ([Oelick)
s QBs 5 e s
20,000 - A0
- (1,129045) (1,129.765)
1,250 20

The scooenpasrying soles are an islegral puet of these firuncial stalancets.

6
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NARTOV VENTURES, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

POR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Net noomme

Afzemen 10 reconcibe 361 loax 1 3 cash provided

¥y opensiag acsvites
[epewcianon
Facogritoe of CONTAC! BSFE I COER

Fecogrisoe of soe-refandable deferad franchs se wies

Change o smets and labiltues
Accoumes recetvable

Nz cash peovided ¥y cpemNiag ACT Vites
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Perchasss of property and equ ipmest
Net cash (3wl iz mvesing acTVites
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Mezber com Tidatoes
Mezber dumbetaona
Nt cash (amd) by francing sctvites
NET INCREASE IN CASH
CASI, beginniag of year
CASI, wod of year
SUFTLEMENTAL DESCLOSURES

Caab pabd for mrierea
Canb puid for woe

The scovenpusrying soles are an islegrad puet of these firuncial stalanests.

7
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
roucies

NARTOV VENTURES LLC ("the Corspany™) was formed on October 17, 2017 (Inccption) 12 the wiais
of Flonda, = a lirtod hisbelity corspany. The Company does busnom snder the Company's corporats
rame SUCARING NYC. The Company offers for mie fnnchuscs t opente busscmes that offer orgasic
bar rersoval services with & proprictary suganag pasis under the tadermark and trade mamse SUCGAKING
NYC.

Ay
The Company's CHO operated several busnomes of the type boing fnchessd under our Affilmies,
Suganng LBA, LLC, Sagarng loston, 11.C, and Suganng Chacaga, 11.C

The Company s s¥iliaste, Segarng 308 LLC, » Florsds levited lisbelity corspazy formed os Decemnber 1,
2019, manages Flonds afliste outicts

These Affikaton do not engage = any other hine of bemnem, have not offessd Sanchiscs is this I or sy
other line of bumnem, and do not prowide prodicts or scrvices 1o fnnchesces.

The Comparry s affilinte, Skiscare [hroct LLC, & Flonda Smrated lisbelity corspazy formed os Jareary 1,
2019, provides sugaring mpphes o our frsachmccs, bt has acver offerad fanchesas iz fis dne or sy

other lise of bumncm.

Locasies informegion

Changes 12 the mamber of osticts for the year ended December 51, 221, conuet of the followeng:

2021

Outess n opersson, begmaing 2

Outes opesed 13

Outiers terminated or closed -

Outers n opersson, eading g 33

Frechised cordets

AShase cwded cetien n

L0V J2

In Decamiber 2009, 8 nowed stram of coronavrus was = Wotan, Oura. The Waorld Health
Sax doclared the ongbreak t constitsr & Health lmergency of Interrationad

Concern™ The COVID-1% outhreak u darsptng mpply chars and sffecting prodecton sad mics scom
s mange of indutnes. The extent of he smpact of COVID-19 on the Company”s operational and firsacil
perforrzance will depead on certun developracsts, iackadng the Guratios and gpeead of the custreak,
Impact on our cestomers, employscs, and vendors all of whech arc sacertam and cannot be prodicted. At
thas pore, the extest to which COVID- 1% may smpact cor fisascal condibon or seadts of operations =
weertin
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 — NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A mxrerary of mgndicast sccounting policies Sallows
Barts of Mresavasion

The sccompanying fizancial extoments bave boes prepared on an accreal bams i accordasce with
sccounting prisaples general ly accepted in the Ursted States of Amenca (MUAAT).

Ll of Busimases.

Preparstion of the Company's firascal staicrscsts = accordance with gesendly sccopted accosstng
prscples saqures mamgersent 0 ke catirmates and ssesrptions $at affect the reported amosnts of
smcty and Rabiktics, daclossse of axy costmgent amcts and lubilto ot $e dete of the fimancial
exiomernts and mporied amounts of revesues and opomes darng e mportng penod. Actad rowsis
could differ from those eateraios.

L and Cosh Noadalons

The Compary conmders all bighly liguad isvestments with & matunty of theos months or lom  the Sme
of parchasc 1o be cmh eqavalests. The Company had 50 cash cquialents s of December 31, 2021,

The Compaery s fraschmes reomvables primanly romdt Som inital fraschess foce, soyalky foes other foce
charged to fanchisces.  Tirzing of revesse scogrstios my be éifferest from the trreng of invoscng ©
castorsers.  The Compazy soconds a2 accosnts reoavable whes reversa i recogmcred prior §o invoicing,
or snearsed reverse when sevenae i secogeoed after mvascing.  The Companty reports these sscenabies
uf net reakaable walue.

Mamugement deterrancs the allowssce for dosbtfel accosnts bascd on hasoncal lomscs, cervest
cxpoctationn, aaé aconamic condboma. (On 8 conizmng bass, rmanagersent aralyres delngeent sccounts
roavable and, csce $hoss sccounts rocci vable are deterrmned 40 be uncolloctible, they are wrttcs off
theough & charge againat an coatng alowssce sccowre. [he allowsnce sccoent @ reviewed mgularly and
ww“.w The Company detcrrained that sz allowsace on ostrtanding

fraschmos recorvables of $) was necosmary as of Decersber 51, 2021, Fraschmos bad debt cxponse was
), for the your endod Decersber 31, 2001, Franchisce smounts writien off were 50 for the yoar endad
December 31, 221

Lomrocs dopeisiion Corx

Contract soqamtion costs conmst of comreanons pad on the mis of & franchise by the Compary. They
ot capeaiond as an incremental cont of the fanceas agreament and are rocogeond A% AN S over
the Iz of the fruachusc agroament under the pradasce of ASC $40-40, "Other Amcts aad Deferad Conts -
Contracts with Cusorsen™.
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 -~ NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Lroperey and Soulpma Nax

The Compary has adopted ASC 340 ~ Poperty, Mast saé lqupment. Iroperty and oquapment s sxted
=t hesoncal codt. Deprocation » prowided ueng streght-lne metiod based on the cxtraatod wcfid bves
of the selated smets (generally these $0 soven poars).

Lamngyiie Aol Mot

The Company has adopted ASC 350, Intangrbles ~ Coodwall sad Other that sogures that goodwill and
istangble smcts weth indefinse bves no longer be amortzed 10 carminge b be texied for impairment =t
loaxt smveally. Intmagible swcts with fizse lives are amortond over $heir cxtirmated wefel lvex. The
umciid I of s intangibic sanct 12 the penod over which if is expected 0 contribets diroctly or mdwectly

o ftwre cask Sowe. Intang bic anscts with infizse li ves are rewviewad for impasrmeest if events or changes
12 crcerwtances indicate that the camying valse rmight not be recovenble.

Bevon Becopuiion and Nowrefndable DeSerred Fronchise Fos Nevome
The Company secognoes sevense under the gmdance of ASC 608, "Contracts with Customeny™.

h(m%-—.pmﬁqu_-l—h-“.
Corzpary’s franchisces. Hach franchise agroement is comprsed of several chhgatione The

Corspany identfics those performance obligations, deterrancs the costact prce for cack performasce
obligation, aliocaics e tarmachios price 0 aach performance sbligation and recogreass reverse when
the Company has mtufiad the performance obligaton by tamsdermng control of the good or service o the

The Companry b conchaded that the performance obligatons represcst & mngle performance obligeton
aad secognox e isrtal Sanchise fom ower the form of the contract which is camvesdy 10 years from the
cffoctive date of he fraschue agrooment.

Whes a franchisce purchascs & Suganng NYC franchiss, e Company grants the fraschmcs the nght o
opersic the Sanchised busnom and use the propoctary methods, teckrigues, trade deoas, tadersarks, and
logos (Mthe liccrae™) Neovesues rolated to the liccrae wre hased on the Sancluse agmoment. Thase
revesses ave saod 40 contizee the developrest of the Compary s brand, the franchue sysom aad provide
oogoing sspport for the Companry's fraschmocs ower the torm of the agroemest.  The soyaites wow bullad
mornthly and s roognond as revesix whes carsed

Neviona( Adrising and Developmeny Mund

The Compazy implameriad & Nabosal Advertming sad Dewdopment Fusd to purchase advertiang for
the berefit of frnchesces of the Corspazy xad pay for $ac comt of sdmmmiicning the fund. Costibutiors
o the Natorml Adwertung Fund are 1% gom srwvense, The costritions ae hlled mostily and
recogmrod s contributions 1o the fund when billed

Mevesse fom services and nasenals will be smoognond upos provinomng shipmene and irvascng. Salas
of services and uterals well be rextnciad 1o the Companry ‘s frunchesccs.
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Lacomee Jone

The memsber of the Compazy b cloctod io be troated as & "Swrcganded extty ™ for income tax parposes.
Accordingly, txable iscome and lomes of the Compazy are reported on the income tax returma of
mamber and no provimons for federal o swie sscome taxes has bomn recorded on the accompaTing
balsce sboct

The Company sdopted ASC 740-10-25-4 *Accossting for Uncertenty = Income Tases”, that roquarcs the
Comspany o discloss snoortais fax powsorns.  Under the standand an entity may only recogrize or
costrae 90 rocogmine tax potions that meet & “more likely than not” thembold wpos cammatios by
txc ng ssthornes

Bascd on s cxaluation, the Compazy has conchaded that thore we no sigmficant sscortus Sax pomtions
requinng recogreton is itx financial sxtomests or that wosld affoct the Corspazy’s member

Loncenpregions of Crady sk
Francid swtramcnts that mbyoct the Company to mgmsicast concentabions of crodit nak
cosmet prevanly of cab, roavables. The Companry places it tomporary cash sswestmcnts

with Srancid inettztione. At Smes Syosghout the year the Company may, in the ordmary cosne of
bemmcns, maistun cad balances iz oxcom of faderally inesred brats. Mamagersent docs not believe the
Corspany i cxposed %0 svy sssasd niskcs on sach depowte. The Companry grasts conds to franchusces.
The Compary s abilzy % coliect the amounts due from Sanchisces = affoctod by flucthations in the
cconosTy and the opervtora of the fraschmoes.

Adversiumng Comy

The Company expermes advertinng codts ax incaned. Advertinng expenac for $he your ended December
31, 202 twas $105,200.

Katr Valee of Minanciol Insoraments

For ootz of the Company's Srancid instuments, inchadng cad and cash oqmvalests, sccounts
recavable, accounts paysbis and scomaed expermes.  The casrying amounts approccerale Sur walue due o
thar short matunitics.

Rocaty Lomed scoomnsing proncuncements
The Compary has sdopted all recently mmmd Accounting Standards Updates ("ASL™) The adoption of

the recently tmvsad ASUly, inclading those not yet cffoctve, s not asscipated 0 have s matenal effect on
the firmacial pomrton or rexsits of operstionn of the Compary.
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 2 - CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Compasry has recogrized certus babikbon relutod to the Company 's contracts with franchmces. The
acconre balances and actvity arc aa follows

Deceniber 31,
2021
Contract Acquidtion Costx

Talazce begmzrg of year s 199,580
Deferral of frnchine acqamnon cout m a0
Fecogn tre of Tz chise soqaamon coex (8.247)

Dalence at end of year s 443 40

Deferved Noa-refandabie Pranchise Fees:

Talazce begmaing of year s T80, 543
Deferral of aon-rftundable freachne fes 2.0e8.047
Fecogn txe of non-retndable freachom Sees (so.nn

Dalence at end of year 5 A%

Lmimered Necopsiion of sooreetmadable deSrred & anchise focs

latizmtod reverses 42 be scogrezed in fatess penads selsted 1o soe-refesdable defernd franchuse Soex
aad related fraschee scqumiton cots ax reported = the balance shoet st December 51, 2021, man

followx:
Tranhios Novef mdabde
Aiaten Cowa Frasuhios Fess
Your sndng Decscider 31
€023 s ©9 s mI e
b o) “®H b pAS
A4 “®Hm b pAS
€08 “®Hm b pAS
A0 9 b pA% L
Thamaiur lﬂ?‘ TM
s 4040 5 2664
Desaggregerion of Survennes
[Dasggrogated seversacs hasad on the mbidfaction of performasce obligetons o the Comparny's contracts
weth Snnchusces is s Soll owa:
—a__
Paforzance cbigeions ucheied o & polnt I tie s 2o
Paforzance cbigeions ueidfed Sroug Se panuge of e ST

Toml mverses S o ﬂo.

12
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 3 - FROFERTY AND EQUIFMENT, NET
Property aad eqrapracst, set conut of the followeng st December 31:

L aaseboid mpesvesests $ 1w
Accivaiaed devecaice (1.450)
s 2w
Deprecistion experas was $7350 for the yoar ended Decernber 31, 2021, respactrvaly.
NOTE 4 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Intangiblc sucts, net conmat of $he following at Decersber 31
2021
W e $ 4o
Trademark 1
7,000
Accivaiaced srcaranon (800)
3 o0

Amortization experse was $400 for the year ended Docernber 51, 2001, respectrvaly. Ameortization is
expocted to be $1,200 per year in next futare penods.

NOTE S~ RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Licos Areemas

The Compusyy huex two Beeroe sgreements datad December 1, 2017, for the we of the Sugaring
NYC indomarks  The Compuery bao 3 Bome sgreement with the Comspuery s Affiliste,
Segering USA LLC, for the we md sublicnsng of the woed Mk “Sugarisg NYC™ w oer
frimchisoss for e in opersting We have & licemse wilh
hh:@hh_mdhwwbu for use
s oparsting Sugaring NYC busdncees &‘lﬂ-mnp’a—lmm-‘l
ray be lrminsed spon & maderial breach not semakial sfier 30 duya” wrillen notice

NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lidgazon

The Company may be mbject 90 vanows cluirss, logal actiors and complaist anmng i the crdmary
course of bemnem. Iz e opimos of maragement, all maters are of sach lond, or invol ve such smossts,
that srfavorsble dspomtion, if sy, would sot have & mateniadl efact on the Srancal postion of the

Coezpary.

13
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NARTOV VENTURES LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Liate of Memopemaryt s Kralaasion

Marugement bas eval ustcd siweguent cvents through Apnl 15, 2002, the date on wisch the firmacal
Extorerts were avad able 1o be temsad

4
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EXHIBIT G-1 TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
LIST OF CURRENT FORMER FRANCHISEES

The following is a list of the names of all current franchisees and the address and telephone number of
each of their outlets as of our last fiscal year end (12/31/2023):

Alabama

Tajmah Belyeu

Palace Properties Inc.
1031 Brocks Gap Pkwy
Hoover, AL 35244
(205) 687-8427

Nicolas & Kristen Gregg
465 Highland Drive
Arab, AL 35016

(256) 640-9441

Arizona

Abby & Leland Husband
Sugaring Jonesboro, LLC
3301 Mallard Pointe Ln
Jonesboro, AR 72404
(662) 871-1660

Arkansas

Rina and Yosh Patel
Shiva Sugar LLC
7321 West Sunset #D1
Springdale, AR 72762
(479) 318-9101

California

Lynn Nguyen-P
9976 Broadmoor Dr.

San Ramon, California 94583

(925) 360-1725
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Sharell Powers

7101 Ensworth Ct
Huntsville, AL 35806
(256) 520-3543

Trang Anh & Anh Pham
NTAPham LLC

20131 Stagg St
Win-netka, CA 91306
(818) 578-9780

Masoumeh Dagoudi
& Farhad Ghanbari
122 Kretzer Ct.
Huntsville, AL 35806
(256) 929-5228



Colorado

George A. Gardiner & Stephanie S. Gardiner

Gardiner Consulting Group, LLC
16513 Trinity Loop

Broomfield, CO 80023

(303) 229-5000 / (303) 777-9089

Florida

Arum Patel

1293 Cornerstone Blvd., Suite B
Daytona, FL 32114

(386) 254-9484

Gilbert & Yvena Fevry

Gravity Management Group LLC
10200 SW 8th Court Unit 103
Pembroke Pines, FL 33025

(786) 285-4421

Peter Kemp | Stephanie Toothaker
901 Ponce De Leon Dr.

Ft Lauderdale FL 33316

(954) 647-4474 / (954) 648-9376

Stephanie Arnold
1023 SE 27th Terrace
Cape Coral FL, 33904
(810) 459-0778

Georgia

Queena Jenkins & Jawuan Jenkins

3122 Esplanad Circle SW
Atalanta, GA 30311
(334) 5387520 / (404) 922-2819
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Valeria Gorstein

Sugaring Miami Mama LLC
15512 Biscayne Blvd

North Miami, FL 33160
(786) 202-2627

Angel Mia Garcia & Erwin
Horvath

AE Horvath Holdings LLC
1326 Hollywood Blvd
Hollywood FL 33019
(321) 616-4539

Suwannee Medina

SAJ Management, Inc.
3557 West 94th terrace,
Hialeah, FL 33018
(786) 395-8218

Phani Kumar Reddy Maram
& Keerthi Reddy
Anathreddigari

1765 Hardford terrace
Alpharetta GA 30004
(814) 440-6252

Ronald Brilliant

14942 Pines Blvd
Pembroke Pines, FL 33027
(208) 340-3146

(2 Territories)

Nedgie J Surlin

5355 Gar-field Rd
Delray Beach, FL 33484
(516) 225-6694

Philip Tandett &
Leonora DeCerio

Organic Sugarista LLC
6137 55th Avenue Cir E
Bradenton, FL 34203
(770) 318-1438



Indiana

Danny Valdivis

1683 N. Crewstview Drive
LaPorte, IN 46350

(708) 263-8862

Illinois

Kaylee and Jonte Wells
Sugar Me Chicago, LLC
1971 N. Halsted St.
Chicago 60814

(888) 647-8427

(2 Territories)

Dmytro Sukhoverkhyi
681 Country Club Dr.

Bensenville, IL 60106
(703) 258-2040

Kentucky

Doug & Sandi Parkey

115 Hidden Valley Lane
Somerset, KY 42503

(606) 875-9118 | (931) 787-4867

Maryland

Jigisha Patel

Jai Rudra LLC,

4212 Perry River Road
Perry Hall, MD 21128

(908) 434-8535
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Kaylee Wells & Jonte Wells
Sugar Me Chicago

6 Farmington Court Lake

in the Hills, Illinois 60156
(773) 992-0507

Ravninder Sandal & Sheeraz
Igbal

Excellere LLC

257 Sonora Dr
Elgin IL 60124

Emily Musson
2400 Malvern Hill Ct
Louisville, KY 40242
(646) 249.6432

Tara & Eddie Bradley
Sugaring Bowie LLC
14106 Hammermill Field Dr

Bowie, MD 20720
(215) 435-9024 / (803) 606-
4600

Anastasia Nikulina, Roman
Budko

1 N Main Street, Apt 319
Algonquin, IL 60102

790 S Randall Road, Unit D
Algonquin IL 60102

(973) 641-4117

Ashli Hill

Greater Purpose Investments
LLC

808 W Van Buren St Apt
309

Chicago, IL 60607

(785) 766-3050



Michigan

Daria Pidkorytova Mareclo Ferreira
556 N. Willard Saint Belle Beauty LLC
Canton, MI 48187 2770 Warner Dr.

(989) 330-8162
(2 Territories)

West Bloomfield 48324 MI
(423) 451-9330

Mississippi

Brian Brown

Joseph Hodges
Wesley Minga & Kathleen Minga Sweet Street Investments LLC
114 Parkside Cove 190 West Northern Street

Saltillo, MS 38866
(662) 315-2680

Hernando, MS 38632
(662) 408-7273

Brian Brown & Terri Locastro
Sugaring Golf Coast LLC

8069 Creekwood Cir W
Southaven, MS 38671

(662) 408-7273 / (251) 978-7788

Missouri

Robin Conner

5161 Washington Place St.
Louis, Missouri 63108
(314) 412-2243

New Hampshire

Kari Baker

Sweet Escape by Kari, Inc.

128 S River Rd, Bldg C, Unit 4
Bedford, NH 03110

(603) 703-3923

New Jersey

Felicia Williams

16 Willowmere Ave
Montclair NJ

(973) 687-2484

Bogdana Arshynova

14-06 Fair Lawn Ave

Fair Lawn, NJ 07410
dana.arshynova@gmail.com
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Komal Patel
6035 Fleur De Lis Cir. West
Olive Branch, MS 38654

Ileane & David Frank
All Sugared Up LLC
24 Spruce Hollow Road
Greenbrook NJ, 08812
(201) 303-2529



New York

Elizabeth Holden & Ursula Holden Brian Kutayiah Nakia Overby
& Porasah White 14 Duryea Place 94-03 108th St #3
South Richmond Hill, NY
290 Sunrise Hwy Lynbrook, New York 11563 11419
Rockville Centre, NY 11570 (516) 491-7963 (917) 293-9564

(910)546-1121 / (646) 853-4882

Donald Yesiley and Carolina Costa
CCDY Sugaring LI-1, Inc

8 Rodsfield Court

Huntington, NY 11743

(631) 388-1060/ (631) 449-2686

Nevada

Brianna gonzalez Mona Dahdah

261 Delta Waters Street Las Vegas Sugaring LLC
Henderson, NV 89074 11120 Coco Lane

(702) 807-0253 Las Vegas, Nevada 89141

(310) 930-7123

North Carolina

Elizabeth Ndichu &
Jackson Nyasimi 13625 Firenza Circle Apt 302
108 Shadow Mist Ct Charlotte NC, 28273

(248) 719-1721 / (313) 590-
Apex, NC 27539 7492

(919) 536-8344
Ohio

DeLetria Walters
Sugaring?BExact LLC
1209 Greenvale Ave
Akron, OH 44313
(330) 606-8866

Oregon

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document



Sejal Patel & Ashish Patel
10648 SE Deer Fern Street
Portland, OR 97086

(917) 867-0511

Pennsylvania

Mustafa Jamil

1300 Wildflower Cir Apt 101
Washington PA 15301

(609) 770-1130

Tennessee

Kelley Woods
PKPE Inc.

1235 Ridgeway Rd
Memphis, TN 38119

(901) 791-2779
Texas

Dylan and Nila Patel
Sugaring DNA, LLC

2401 Lakeside Parkway, Suite 120

Flower Mound, TX 75022

(210) 454-1797 / (210) 393-7020

Nila Patel

2401 Lakeside Parkway, Suite 120

Flower Mound, TX 75022
(214) 513-0166
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Ashruta Shankrappa Shettar
& Naga Kalpana Pilli

AK Entrepreneurs LLC

508 Mulberry Dr

Mechanicsburg, PA 17050
(412)-916-0759 / (972) 489-
7165

Leslie & Eric Kostamma
Main Star Ventures, LLC
106 Glass Springs Drive

Franklin, TN 37064
(615) 305-5118 / (615) 429-
1615

Leah McLin

Bare Belle, LLC

4020 FM 1463, Suite 102
Fulshear, TX 77441
(281) 665-3402

Anita Chaison &

Kenneth Chaison

Chaison LLC

20607 Redbud Rain Drive

Katy, TX 77449
(409) 284-2789 / (409) 473-
6106

Neil Patel

9814 Rostock Lane

San Antonio, TX 78023
(210) 819-1274

Mike Ganbaatar, Eddie
Sung,

& YenFu (Jas) Chu

5704 Morning Wind Drive
McKinney, TX 75070
(469) 885-8284



Joslynn Price & Terrell
Gissendanner

JG Beauty Group, Inc., a Texas
corporation

11617 Coral Hills Dr.

Dallas, TX 75229

(405) 921-7537 / (585) 733-9922

Chinekwu Osakwe
4008 Chapel Ridge
Tyler, TX 75707
(267) 664-8413

Samantha Uballe
4414 88th St

Lubbock, TX 79424

(901) 412-0663

Kidada Mitchell & Quanique Toston
KiQue Ventures LLC

6612 Dewitt Rd

Sachse, TX 75048

(615) 293-0490 / (214) 282-6632

Utah

Kami & Kirk Jolly
2107 W 1685 S

West Haven, UT 84401
(801) 458-8673

Washington

Jennifer Flint

Sugaring Northwest LLC

4779 Point Fosdick Dr, Unit 400
Gig Harbor, WA 98335

(253) 853-7847
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Cesar iglesias

10825 Basal Edge Rd.,
Helotes, TX 78023
2108679563

Naayab Ali & Sunil Budwani
SUNAA LLC

12522 Patrick Palace
Houston Texas 77089

3124 Maple Hill Dr.

Friendswood Texas 77546
(832) 2444178 / (832) 228-
6128

Anne & Ryan Litz
1149 Eagles Watch Trail

Winter Springs, FL 32708
(407) 920-8664 / (407) 463-
6353

Jose Garza

4016 Xanthisma Ave,
Mcallen, TX 78504
956-451-8337

Jennifer Flint

Sugaring Northwest, LLC
10625 82nd Ave NW

Gig Harbor WA 98332
253.225.4035

Monica & Sameet Patel

Maya Beauty LLC
4770 Teel Pkwy #9103

Frisco, TX 75034
(870) 476-2740 / (870) 692-
9690

Christina & Heath Gault
340 Providence Drive
Prosper, TX 75078

Candace Fraser

242 N Carson Cub Ct
Montgomery, TX 77316
Candace

(281) 660-1562

Jennifer Flint

10625 82nd Ave NW
Gig Harbor WA 98332
(253) 225-4035



Wisconsin

Eryn Johnson & Bryan Johnson
704 7th Avenue

Eau Claire WI, 54703

(715) 225-0304 / (715) 214-7306

Franchise Agreement Signed But Outlet Not Yet Open (as of December 31, 2023):

Alabama

Nicolas Gregg & Kristen Gregg Masoumeh Dagoudi &

465 Highland Dr. Farhad Ghanbari

Arab, AL 35016 122 Kretzer Ct.

(256) 640-9441 Huntsville, AL 35806
(256) 929-5228

Arkansas

Rina and Yosh Patel

Shiva Sugar LLC

7321 West Sunset #D1
Springdale, AR 72762
(479) 318-9101

California

Lynn Nguyen-Pham
9976 Broadmoor Dr.
San Ramon, CA 94583
(925) 854-2986

Colorado

George Gardiner &

Stephanie Gardiner

Gardiner Consulting Group, LLC
16513 Trinity Loop

Broomfield, CO 80023

(720) 725-5118

Florida

Rebecca Anozier & Valeria Gorstein Gilbert Fevry & Yvena Fevry
Gregory Germain Sugaring Miami Mama LLC Gravity Management Group LLC
8471 NW 26" Drive 15512 Biscayne Blvd 10200 SW 8™ Ct, Unit 103

Coral Springs, FL 33065 North Miami, FL 33160 Pembroke Pines, FL 33025

(352) 871-3791 (786) 202-2627 (786) 285-4421
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Angela Mia Garcia &
Erwin Horvath

AE Horvath Holdings LLC
1326 Hollywood Blvd
Hollywood, FL 33019
(954) 420-6878

Georgia

Anuoluwapo Laguda
Kareem Wood

Renee Beckford

1788 Austell Road, Apt 89
Marietta, GA 30008

(770) 485-5601

Indiana

Danny Valdivis

1683 N. Crewstview Drive
LaPorte, IN 46350

(574) 800-1905

Illinois

Anastasi Nikulina

Roman Budko

1 N. Main Street, Apt 319
Alquonquin, IL 60102
9736414117

Ravninder Sandal &
Sheeraz Igbal
Excellere LLC

257 Sonora Dr
Elgin, IL 60124
(312) 513-9027

(2 Territories)

Maryland

Sylvia Ejeh

2008 Bermondsey Dr
Bowie, MD 20721
(240) 381-8777

Nedgie J. Surlin

5355 Garfield Rd
Delray Beach, FL 33484
(516) 225-6694

Queen Jenkins &

Jawuan Jenkins

3122 Esplanad Circle SW
Atlanta, GA 30311

(334) 538-7520

Dmytro Sukhoverkhyi
681 Country Club Dr.
Bensenville, IL 60106

Kaylee and Jonte Wells
Sugar Me Chicago, LLC*
1971 N. Halsted St.

Tel Chicago 60814
(888) 647-8427
(4 Territory ADA)
Ashli Hill

Greater Purpose
Investments LLC
808 W Van Buren St
Apt. 309

Chicago, IL 60607
(785) 766-3050

Jigisha Patel

Jai Rudra LLC

4212 Perry River Road
Perry Hall, MD 21128
(908) 434-8535
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Michigan

Tracey Bryant & Barbara Marion

22485 Trillium Dr.
Novia, MI 48375
(248) 719-1721

(2 Territories)

Missouri

Robin Conner

5161 Washington Place
St. Louis, MO 63108
(314) 412-2243

Nevada

Brianna Gonzalez

261 Delta Waters St
Henderson, NV 89074
(702) 602-5155

New Hampshire

Kari Baker

Sweet Escape by Kari, Inc.

128 S River Rd, Bldg C, Unit 4
Bedford, NH 03110

(603) 518-8634

New Jersey

Felicia Williams

16 Willowmere Ave
Montclair, NJ 07042
(973) 343-5553

Christine Molokwu
145 Madison Ave
Westfield, NJ 07090
(908) 787-6251

New York

David Cameo

3518 Flatlands Ave
Brooklyn NY 11234
(718) 213-9660

Mona Dahdah

Las Vegas Suraring LLC
11120 Coco Lane

Las Vegas, NV 89141
(310) 930-7123

Rachel Remy

7 Elm St., Apt. 3
Newark, NJ 07102
(973) 444-4583

Bogdana Arshynova
14-06 Fair Lawn Ave
Fair Lawn, NJ 07410
(732) 561-8867

Mariama and Zainab Camara
675 Morris Avenue

Bronx, NY 10451

(229) 296-0556
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Tunisia Allen
Christine Molokwu
145 Madison Ave.
Westfield, NJ 07090
(973) 454-9724

Shoshana Ostron
3518 Flatlands Ave.
Brooklyn, NY 11234
(718) 213-9600



Fergie Raphael Brian Kutayiah Elizabeth and Ursula Holden,

37 Madison Street 14 Duryea Place Porasah White

Farmingdale, NY 11735 Lynbrook, NY 11563 290 Sunrise Hwy

(516) 473-3061 (516) 491-7963 Rockville Centre, NY 11570
(910) 546-1121

Nakia Overby Donald Yeiley & Valeria Walker & Chante Walker

9403 108th St, Apt. 3 Carolina Costa Perfect Touch LLC

South Richmond Hills, NY 11419 CCDY Sugaring LI-1, Inc. 742 Wood Duck Ct

(917) 293-9564 8 Rodsfield Ct. Middletown, DE 19709

Huntington, NY 11743
(631) 770-1130

North Carolina

Elizabeth Ndichu &
Jackson Nyasimi
108 Shadow Mist Ct
Apex, NC 27539
(984) 349-4321

Pennsylvania

Mustafa Jamil Ashruta Shankrappa Shettar
1300 Wildflower Cir, Apt. 101 & Naga Kalpana Pilli
Washington, PA 15301 AK Entrepreneurs LLC
(609) 770-1130 508 Mulberry Drive

Mechanicsburg, PA 17050
Tennessee

Ramneet Kaur

Brahambir Dhillon

4038 Bordeaux Creek Cove S.
Mempbhis, TN 38125

(901) 428-0032

Texas

Joslynn Price & Cesar Iglesias Leah McLin

Terrell Gissendanner 10825 Basal Edge Rd Bare Belle, LLC

JG Beauty Group, Inc. Helotes, TX 78023 4020 FM 1463, Suite 102
11617 Coral Hills Dr. (210) 612-5204 Fulshear, TX 77441
Dallas, TX 75229 (281) 665-3402

(208) 340-3146
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Monica Patel & Sameet Patel
Maya Beauty LLC

4770 Teel Parkway, Apt. 9103
Frisco, TX 75034

(870) 476-2740

Chinkwu Osakwe
4008 Chapel Ridge
Tyler, TX 75707
(267) 664-8413

Wisconsin

Eryn and Bryon Johnson
704 7" Avenue

Eau Claire, WI 54703
(715) 450-4211

*We identify any franchisees that are area developers with an asterisk.

Dylan and

Sugaring DNA, LLC

2401 Lakeside Pkwy, Ste 120
Flower Mound, TX 75022
(469) 888-4141

Naayab Ali & Sunil Budwani
SUNAA LLC

12522 Patrick P1

Houston, TX 77089

(832) 244-4178
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Joslynn Price &
Terrell Gissendanner
11617 Coral Hills Dr.
Dallas, TX 75229
(208) 340-3146

Christina Gault & Heath Gault
340 Providence Drive
Prosper, TX 75078

(318) 729-8495



EXHIBIT G-2 TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
LIST OF FORMER FRANCHISEES

The following is a list of the names, city and state, and current business telephone number, or if unknown,
the last known home telephone number of every franchisee who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not
renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise agreement
during our most recently completed fiscal year or who have not communicated with us within 10 weeks
of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may
be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

Alabama

Jazmine Ezell-Dozier

204 5th Place

Pleasant Grove, AL 35127
(773) 587-0750

California

Tomasa Serrano

& Alfredo Uturi

18940 Cedar Valley Way
Santa Clarita, CA 91321
(818) 809-6722

Florida

Rebecca Anozier

& Gregory Germain

8471 NW 26th Drive

Coral Springs, Florida 33065
22649 SW 65th Way

Boca Raton, Florida 33428
3528713791

Georgia

Anuoluwapo Laguda, Kareem Wood & Renee Beckford
1788 Austell Road Apt B9

Marietta, Georgia 30008

(470) 265-7900

New Jersey

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document



Christine Molokwu

145 Madison Ave,

Westfield, NJ 07090

115 Old Short Hills Rd Apt 356
West Orange, NJ, 07052

(973) 454-9724 / (908) 787-6251

New York

Shoshana Ostron
Kings Highway
3518 Flatlands ave
Brooklyn NY 11234
(718) 213-9600

Texas

Leah McLin

Galleria

4020 FM 1463, Suite 102
Fulshear, Texas 77441
(281) 732-9998
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Cynthia Jones

668 Shady St.
Hempstead, NY 11550
(516) 724-2465



EXHIBIT H TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document Exhibit H: Intentionally Omitted



EXHIBIT I TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
STATE ADDENDA TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM
TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the California Franchise Investment Law, if any of the terms of the Disclosure
Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED
TOGETHER WITH THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AT LEAST 14 DAYS PRIOR TO
EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT.

Item 3 of the Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following paragraph:

Neither we nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of this disclosure document is subject to any
currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling these persons from
membership in this association or exchange.

Item 5 of the Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following:
Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following paragraphs:

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the franchisee
concerning termination, transfer, or non-renewal of a franchise. If the franchise agreement contains a
provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

Item 17.g. of the Disclosure Document is modified to state that, in addition to the grounds for immediate
termination specified in Item 17.h., the franchisor can terminate upon written notice and a 60 day
opportunity to cure for a breach of the Franchise Agreement.

Item 17.h. of the Disclosure Document is modified to state that the franchisor can terminate immediately
for insolvency, abandonment, mutual agreement to terminate, material misrepresentation, legal violation
persisting 10 days after notice, repeated breaches, judgment, criminal conviction, monies owed to the
franchisor more than 5 days past due, and imminent danger to public health or safety.

The franchise agreement requires binding arbitration. Arbitration will occur in Palm Beach County, Florida
with the costs being borne by each party. Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal
counsel to determine the applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions
Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any
provisions of a franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

The franchise agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination of the
franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

The franchise agreement requires application of the laws of Florida. This provision may not be enforceable
under California law. You may want to consult an attorney to understand the impact of out-of-state
governing law on the franchise agreement.

SECTION 31125 OF THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES US TO GIVE TO YOU A
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT APPROVED BY THE COMMISSIONER OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION
AND INNOVATION BEFORE WE ASK YOU TO CONSIDER A MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF
YOUR FRANCHISE AGREEMENT.
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YOU MUST SIGN A GENERAL RELEASE OF CLAIM IF YOU RENEW OR TRANSFER YOUR
FRANCHISE. CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE §31512 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR
RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW (CALIFORNIA CODE §§31000 THROUGH
31516). BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §20010 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS
UNDER THE FRANCHISE RELATIONS ACT (BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §§20000
THROUGH 20043).

Our website is located at www.sugaring.org

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT www.dfpi.ca.gov.

The franchise agreement contains a provision requiring you to agree to waive your right to punitive or
exemplary damages against the franchisor or any of its representatives, limiting your recovery to actual
damages. Under California Corporations Code section 31512, this provision is not enforceable in California
for any claims you may have under the California Franchise Investment Law.

The franchise agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil Code Section 1671,
certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.

Any provision of a franchise agreement, franchise disclosure document, acknowledgement, questionnaire,
or other writing, including any exhibit thereto, disclaiming or denying any of the following shall be deemed
contrary to public policy and shall be void and unenforceable:

(a) Representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents to a prospective franchisee.
(b) Reliance by a franchisee on any representations made by the franchisor or its

(c) Reliance by a franchisee on the franchise disclosure document, including any exhibit thereto.
(d) Violations of any provision of this division.

Franchisees must sign a personal guaranty, making you and your spouse individually liable for your
financial obligations under the agreement if you are married. The guaranty will place your and your
spouse’s marital and personal assets at risk, perhaps including your house, if your franchise fails.

Franchise Investment Law (Corporations Code sections 31512 and 31512.1) states that any provision of a
franchise agreement or related document requiring the franchisee to waive specific provisions of the law is
contrary to public policy and is void and unenforceable. The law also prohibits a franchisor from
disclaiming or denying (i) representations it, its employees, or its agents make to you, (ii) your ability to
rely on any representations it makes to you, or (iii) any violations of the law.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under an

applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
See  NASAA STATEMENT OF POLICY REGARDING THE USE OF FRANCHISE
QUESTIONNAIRES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS.
https://www.nasaa.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/sop-franchise-questionnaires.pdf.

Sugaring NYC Franchise Disclosure Document



The registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial Protection and
Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the commissioner.
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HAWAII ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, if any of the terms of the
Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW
OF THE STATE OF HAWAIL  FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND
CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND
CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE,
COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY
FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHSIOR, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE
EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR
OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY
CONSIDERATION BY THE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, WHICHEVER
OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH A
COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE
FRANCHISE.

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN
MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR
AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS,
CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND
THE FRANCHISEE.

Registered agent in the state authorized to receive service of process:

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, HI 96813
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ILLINOIS ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, if any of the terms of the Disclosure
Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

Illinois law governs the Franchise Agreement.

In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a franchise
agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois is void. However,
a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois.

Your rights upon Termination and Non-Renewal of an agreement are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act. In conformance with section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act,
any condition, stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive
compliance with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

Payment of Initial Franchise/Development Fees will be deferred until Franchisor has met its initial
obligations to franchisee, and franchisee has commenced doing business. This financial assurance
requirement was imposed by the Office of the Illinois Attorney General due to Franchisor’s financial
condition.

No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on behalf of
the Franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, if any of the terms
of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. Item 17.b. is modified to also provide, “The general release required as a condition of
renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.”

2. Item 17.u. is modified to also provide, “This franchise agreement provides that disputes
are resolved through arbitration. A Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive
practice to require a franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the
Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the Federal Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this
forum selection requirement is legally enforceable.”

3. Item 17.v. is modified to also provide, “Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.”

4. Items 5 and 7 of the Disclosure Document are amended to add the following
language:  "Based upon the franchisor's financial condition, the Maryland Securities
Commissioner has required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed
by franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under
the franchise agreement. In addition, all development fees and initial payments by area developers
shall be deferred until the first franchise under the development agreement opens."
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MINNESOTA ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Minnesota franchise laws, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document
are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

e Minn. Stat. §80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation
to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to
consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the
Franchise Disclosure Document or agreements can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s
rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or (2) franchisee’s rights to any
procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

e With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat.
Sec. 80C.14 Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require (except in certain specified cases), that a franchisee
be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal
of the franchise agreement and that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably
withheld.

e The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names,
logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs or
expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the name.

e Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the trademarks. Refer to
Minnesota Statutes 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

e Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a
general release.

e The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may
seek injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J.

Also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5.

Item 6 of the Disclosure Document is modified to reduce the fee for insufficient funds to $30.
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NEW YORK ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the New York franchise laws, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document
are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document:

THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT
ITEMS COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.
HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING
PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT
TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2. The following is added at the end of Item 3:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in
Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that person alleging:
a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent
conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices, or comparable civil or
misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business, which
are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature or financial condition
of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge or,
within the 10-year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been
convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil
action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud; embezzlement;
fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive practices or
comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating
to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade
regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding brought
by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities
association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,
suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange; or is
subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business activity
as a result of an action brought by a public agency or department, including, without limitation,
actions affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.
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3. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled “Requirements
for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for franchisor approval of
transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of
New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be
satisfied.

4. The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Termination by
franchisee”:

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

5. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice of
forum”, and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New
York.

6. Franchise Questionnaires and Acknowledgements--No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the
franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

7. Receipts--Any sale made must be in compliance with § 683(8) of the Franchise Sale
Act (N.Y. Gen. Bus. L. § 680 et seq.), which describes the Rev. April 2, 2024 time period a
Franchise Disclosure Document (offering prospectus) must be provided to a prospective franchisee
before a sale may be made. New York law requires a franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure
Document at the earliest of the first personal meeting, ten (10) business days before the execution
of the franchise or other agreement, or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise
relationship.
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NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the North Dakota franchise laws, if any of the terms of the Disclosure
Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

Restrictive Covenants: To the extent that covenants not to compete apply to periods after the term of the
franchise agreement, they are generally unenforceable under North Dakota law.

Applicable Laws: North Dakota law will govern the franchise agreement.
Waiver of Trial by Jury: Any waiver of a trial by jury will not apply to North Dakota Franchises.

Waiver of Exemplary & Punitive Damages: Any waiver of punitive damages will not apply to North Dakota
Franchisees.

General Release: Any requirement that the franchisee sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise
agreement does not apply to franchise agreements covered under North Dakota law.

Enforcement of Agreement: Any requirement in the Franchise Agreement that requires the franchisee to
pay all costs and expenses incurred by the franchisor in enforcing the agreement is void. Instead, the
prevailing party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorney's
fees.
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RHODE ISLAND ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, if any of the terms of the
Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

Item 17.m. of the Disclosure Document is revised to provide:
Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act prohibits a franchisee to be restricted
in choice of jurisdiction or venue. To the extent any such restriction is purported to be required by us,
it is void with respect to all franchisees governed under the laws of Rhode Island.

Item 17.w. of the Disclosure Document is revised to provide:

Rhode Island law applies.
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VIRGINIA ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, if any of the terms of the Disclosure
Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. In recognition of the restrictions contained in Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act, the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

Additional Disclosure: The following statements are added to Item 17.h.
According to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to
cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any ground for default or termination stated in the franchise

agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, if any of the
terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection
Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions
which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the
areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or
mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the
time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of
arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a
franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of
franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant
to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by
independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of
limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a
jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or
actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an
employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party
seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted
annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against
an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent
contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained
in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and
unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee
from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting
or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise
agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.
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A release or waiver of rights signed by the franchisee shall not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act except when executed according to a negotiated settlement after the
agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as
those that unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, rights or
remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual
costs in effecting a transfer.

Items 5 and 7 are modified to also provide: “The State of Washington has imposed a financial condition
under which the initial franchise fees due will be deferred until the franchisor has fulfilled its initial pre-
opening obligations under the Franchise Agreement and the franchise is open for business. Because the
Franchisor has material pre-opening obligations with respect to each franchised business the Franchisee
opens under the Area Development Agreement, the State of Washington will require that the franchise fees
be released proportionally with respect to each franchised business.”

Item 17.r. is modified to also provide that the post-term non-compete will only apply to a 25 mile radius of
your Franchised Business.
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WISCONSIN ADDENDUM
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, if any of the terms of the Disclosure
Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. Item 17 is modified to also provide:

If the franchise agreement contains any provisions that conflict with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership
Law, the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail to the extent of such conflict.

With respect to franchises governed by Wisconsin law, the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law applies
to most, if not all, franchise agreements and prohibits the termination, cancellation, non-renewal or
the substantial change of the competitive circumstances of a dealership agreement without good
cause. That Law further provides that 90 days’ prior written notice of a proposed termination, etc.
must be given to the dealer. The dealer has 60 days to cure the deficiency and if the deficiency is
cured, the notice is void.
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EXHIBIT J
STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota,
Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document
is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State Effective Date
California PendingApril 22, 2024
Illinois PendinegApril 25, 2024
Indiana PendingMarch 29, 2024
Maryland Pending
Minnesota Pending
New York PendingApril 18, 2024
Rhode Island March 24, 2024
Virginia April 12,2024
Washington Pending
Wisconsin Pending

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws,
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted
marketing plans.
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EXHIBIT K TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If Nartov Ventures, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate
in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Towa requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 14
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate
in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Michigan requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days before the execution
of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

New York requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting
or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Nartov Ventures, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and
should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the State Administrator
listed in Exhibit A.

The franchisor is Nartov Ventures, LLC, located at 1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6, West Palm
Beach, Florida 33409. Its telephone number is 805-216-6071.

Issuance Date: March 22, 2024

The following is the name, principal business address, and telephone number of the franchise seller offering
the franchise:

X Dmytro Nartov, 1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409;
805-216-6071

X Bijan Lee Majidimehr, Franchise Creator, Inc., 7300 N. Kendall Drive, Suite 340, Miami, Florida 33156;
(305) 592-9229

We authorize the respect state agencies identified on Exhibit B to receive service of process for us in the
particular state.

I have received a Franchise Disclosure Document dated March 22, 2024 including the following exhibits
on the date listed below:

A. List of State Administrators

B. State Agents for Service of Process

C. Franchise Agreement
Schedule 1-General Release
Schedule 2-Nondisclosure and Non-Competition Agreement
Schedule 3-Unlimited Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations
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Schedule 4-Collateral Assignment of Lease
Schedule 5-ACH Payment Agreement
Schedule 6-Holders of Legal or Beneficial Interest in Franchisee; Officers; Directors
Schedule 7-State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement
Schedule 8-SBA Addendum
D. Operations Manual Table of Contents
E. Area Development Agreement
Appendix A-Development Territory
Appendix B-Development Schedule
Appendix C-Owner’s Guaranty and Assumption of Developer’s Obligations
Appendix D- List of Principals
Appendix E-State Addenda to the Area Development Agreement
F. Financial Statements
G-1 List of Current Franchisees
G-2 List of Former Franchisees
H. Intentionally Omitted
I.  State Addenda to the Disclosure Document
J. State Effective Dates
K. Receipts

Please sign and print your name below, date, and return one copy of this receipt to Nartov Ventures, LLC
and keep the other for your records.

Date of Receipt Print Name

of)
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Signature
(individually or as an officer, member, or partner

a [STATE of Incorporation]
[Corporation/LLC/Partnership]
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If Nartov Ventures, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate
in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Towa requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 14
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate
in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Michigan requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days before the execution
of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

New York requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting
or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Nartov Ventures, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and
should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the State Administrator
listed in Exhibit A.

The franchisor is Nartov Ventures, LLC, located at 1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6, West Palm
Beach, Florida 33409. Its telephone number is 805-216-6071

Issuance Date: March 22, 2024

The following is the name, principal business address, and telephone number of the franchise seller offering
the franchise:

X Dmytro Nartov, 1025 North Florida Mango Road, Bay 6, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409;
805-216-6071

X Bijan Lee Majidimehr, Franchise Creator, Inc., 7300 N. Kendall Drive, Suite 340, Miami, Florida 33156;
(305) 592-9229

We authorize the respect state agencies identified on Exhibit B to receive service of process for us in the
particular state.

I have received a Franchise Disclosure Document dated March 22, 2024 including the following exhibits
on the date listed below:

A. List of State Administrators

B. State Agents for Service of Process

C. Franchise Agreement
Schedule 1-General Release
Schedule 2-Nondisclosure and Non-Competition Agreement
Schedule 3-Unlimited Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations
Schedule 4-Collateral Assignment of Lease
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Schedule 5-ACH Payment Agreement
Schedule 6-Holders of Legal or Beneficial Interest in Franchisee; Officers; Directors
Schedule 7-State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement
Schedule 8-SBA Addendum
D. Operations Manual Table of Contents
E. Area Development Agreement
Appendix A-Development Territory
Appendix B-Development Schedule
Appendix C-Owner’s Guaranty and Assumption of Developer’s Obligations
Appendix D-List of Principals
Appendix E-State Addenda to the Area Development Agreement
F. Financial Statements
G-1 List of Current Franchisees
G-2 List of Former Franchisees
H. Intentionally Omitted
I. State Addenda to the Disclosure Document
J.  State Effective Dates
K. Receipts

Please sign and print your name below, date, and return one copy of this receipt to Nartov Ventures, LLC
and keep the other for your records.

Date of Receipt Print Name

Signature
(individually or as an officer, member, or partner

of)

a [STATE of Incorporation]
[Corporation/LLC/Partnership]
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